
1

Commissioners’ Meeting
February 05, 2019 - 1:00 PM

Large Meeting Room

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

BIDS:

HEARINGS:
1. Resolution to forward for formal review the draft 2018 GMA Periodic Update of 

the Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance 

PUBLIC COMMENT: on Agenda Items being considered this meeting, limited to three 
minutes.  At the lectern, please state your name and address.

CONSENT AGENDA: Request Approval
Commissioners:

• Minutes: October 30, 2018, November 7, 2018 (a.m. and p.m.), 
November 19, 2018, November 20, 2018 and November 27, 2018

• Reappoint Keith Fouts to Civil Service Position 3 – expires Feb.1, 2023
• Reappoint Bob Andrews to Board of Adjustment– expires Jan. 14, 2025
• Appointment of Steve Ensley to Public Facility District Board 
• Set Bid Date for Official Publications – March 19, 2019
• Claim, C-760-19 Marsha Reynolds

Public Services:
• Set Bid Date - 2019 Emulsified Asphalt Supply Contract - 
• RFP for Appraisal Work for Right of Way Acquisition
• Resolution – Vacation of Right of Way – petition by Dan Carter for the 

Westerly half of “E” Street lying adjacent to Block 2 of Scammons Hill
• Equipment Transfer - Solid Waste to Pacific Beach Water / Sewer
• Surplus Radios in ER&R
• Surplus grader #325 and purchase new grader up to $320,000 
• 2019 Road Levy Digital Submittal Certification

Sheriff:
• Surplus office equipment – (2) recorders, headset, copier, printer
• Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification – United States 

Treasury and Dept. of Justice for Drug Task Force 
COMMISSIONERS:

1. WA State Dept. of Agriculture -Noxious Weed Reimbursement Agreement for 
August 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, $3,000

2. Updated Interagency Agreement and 2019 Memorandum of Agreement with 
WSU for Extension Office salaries, benefits and supplies

3. Resolution re: I-1639 enforcement in the County

DEPARTMENTS:

Packet Page 1 of 308



2

Fair, Events and Tourism:
1. 2019 Tourism Special Marketing Project/Hospitality Grant Awards

Forestry:
1. Set Auction Date for March 15, 2019 and April 19, 2019 for Timber Sales 
2. Port Blakely Right-of-Way Easement Exchange

Management Services:
1. Resolution adjusting budgeted beginning cash
2. Budget Transfer Resolution – Auditor M&O Fund, $15,000
3. Budget Transfer Resolution – Reserve for Courtroom Construction, $53,690
4. Budget Transfer Resolution – Special Projects, $100,000
5. Budget Transfer Resolution – GH Raceway, 17,400
6. Budget Transfer Resolution – Facilities Capital, $220,000
7. Annual Title VI Update & Accomplishment Report

Public Health and Social Services:
1. 2019 Professional Services Agreement with River of Life for the Dads Matter 

Program - $25,480 
2. Contract with Evergreen Treatment Services for Jail Based Services in 2019 - 

$39,700
3. Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6 with WA Dept. of Health - adding 

$19,330 and amending statements of work for three programs 
4. 2019 Professional Services Agreement with Dispute Resolution Center for 

communication and skill building classes for youth and families - $32,260 
Public Services:

1. Interlocal Agreement with Pacific County for snow removal on North River Rd.
2. Interlocal Agreement with WA State Parks and Recreation- Ocean Beach 

Access Roads Maintenance Contract –July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019
3. Emergency Resolution - Authorization to Purchase Back Up Power Generator 

for North Beach Water System - $9,590 plus tax
4. Right Of Entry for Parcel No. 191227230010 for Survey and Evaluation

Sheriff:
1. Resolution – amending Resolutions No. 01-49 and 2014-101 designating the 

elected Sheriff as custodian and increasing change fund to $500
2. Employment Agreement with Ed Patrick for Little Control Deputy Position

Treasurer:
1. Resolution - Cancellation of personal property taxes

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

PUBLIC COMMENT: on County Items, limited to three minutes.  At the lectern, please 
state your name and address.

Recess to Media Q & A

ADJOURN:
Agenda is subject to change.

If special accommodations are needed, contact the Commissioners’ Office at (360)249-3731.

Packet Page 2 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Planning & Building

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jane Hewitt

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2018 GMA Periodic Update to GHC’s Critical Areas Protection Ordinance (GHCC 
Chapters 18.02 and 18.06) Case 2018-0049

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

To consider a resolution to forward for formal review the draft 2018 GMA Periodic Update of GHC’s Critical 
Areas Protection Ordinance (GHCC Chapters 18.02 and 18.06) to the Washington Departments of 
Commerce and Ecology 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
n/a

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve resolution to forward update for review

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 2:00:00 PM

Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049Case 2018-0049 Agenda Item Page 1 of 133

Packet Page 3 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 133

Packet Page 4 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 133

Packet Page 5 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 133

Packet Page 6 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 133

Packet Page 7 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 133

Packet Page 8 of 308



Agenda Item Page 7 of 133

Packet Page 9 of 308



Agenda Item Page 8 of 133

Packet Page 10 of 308



Agenda Item Page 9 of 133

Packet Page 11 of 308



Agenda Item Page 10 of 133

Packet Page 12 of 308



Agenda Item Page 11 of 133

Packet Page 13 of 308



Agenda Item Page 12 of 133

Packet Page 14 of 308



Agenda Item Page 13 of 133

Packet Page 15 of 308



Agenda Item Page 14 of 133

Packet Page 16 of 308



Agenda Item Page 15 of 133

Packet Page 17 of 308



Agenda Item Page 16 of 133

Packet Page 18 of 308



Agenda Item Page 17 of 133

Packet Page 19 of 308



Agenda Item Page 18 of 133

Packet Page 20 of 308



Agenda Item Page 19 of 133

Packet Page 21 of 308



1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

RECORD OF ACTION 
In response to issues raised in written and oral testimony February 6, 2018 

In response to issues raised in written testimony October 2, 2018 

 

CASE 2018-0049 

 

Description of Proposal: 
The adoption of the 2018 Periodic Update to the Grays Harbor County Critical Areas 
Protection Ordinance as an amendment to the Grays Harbor County Comprehensive 
Plan.   
 
Proponent:  
Grays Harbor County, 100 West Broadway Avenue, Suite 31, Montesano, WA 98563-
3614 
 
Location of Current Proposal:  
The proposal would apply to critical areas (wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, 
frequently flooded areas, geologically hazardous area and fish & wildlife habitat 
conservation areas and the designation of mineral resource lands, forestlands and 
agricultural lands throughout Grays Harbor County.   
 
Public Notification:  
Grays Harbor County published a notice of the February 6, 2018 public hearing in both 
the January 18, 2018 and January 25, 2018 editions of The Vidette and The Daily 
World.  Additionally, the continuance of this hearing was advertised in the September 
20, 2018 edition of The Vidette. 
 
Public Participation: 
Grays Harbor County Planning Staff briefed the Planning Commission on the GMA 
Periodic Update to the CAPO in an open public meeting on December 5, 2017 
advertised to the public in The Vidette, posted on the County website with sent to 
interested parties of record via email.  A workshop on the GMA Periodic Update was 

 

Department of Public Services 
Phone: 360-249-4222 
Fax: 360-249-3203 

 

100 West Broadway; Suite 31 
Montesano, Washington 98563 

www.co.grays-harbor.wa.us 
 

Agenda Item Page 20 of 133

Packet Page 22 of 308



2 | P a g e  
 

made available to interested parties of record and the general public on December 12, 
2017.  An informational page has been posted on the Grays Harbor County website 
since October 2017 with links to the existing Critical Areas Protection Ordinance, the 
initial proposed Draft 2018 Critical Areas Protection Ordinance Update and the revisions 
under review at the October 2, 2018 meeting. 
 
Environmental Review: 
Grays Harbor County issued a State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Determination of 
Non-Significance on September 7, 2017.  This threshold determination was posted to 
the SEPA Register, circulated to agencies and advertised in The Vidette newspaper on 
September 7, 2017. 
 
Applicable Sections of the County Ordinance: 
Grays Harbor County Code Chapter 18.02 “Definitions”, Chapter 18.06 “Critical Areas 
Protection Ordinance” and Grays Harbor County Code 17.84.010 through 17.84.100 
governing amendments to Grays Harbor County Code. 
 

Agenda Item Page 21 of 133

Packet Page 23 of 308



3 | P a g e  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 11/3/2017 Draft 
 
At its February 6, 2018 public meeting the Planning Commission heard testimony and 
received written testimony expressing concern about how the proposed Critical Area 
Ordinance Update addressed four key areas of concern: 
 

1) Development on or near steep and unstable slopes including landslide runout 
areas. 1 

2) Saltwater intrusion to wells and generally how the County meets RCW 
36.70A.060(2) that requires protection of aquifers used for potable water.2 

3) Increased wetland buffers to Category III wetlands with high habitat score3 
4) Vesting of long plats and Planned Unit Developments. 

 
1) Development on or near steep and unstable slopes 
 
Discussion:  Grays Harbor Planning Staff reviews the location of every development 
proposal (subdivisions and building permits) for erosion hazard, landslide hazard and 
seismic hazard according to the requirement in the current CAPO using the Department 
of Natural Resources steep and unstable slope data, and LIDAR. If a proposal appears 
to be located in or near an area of steep and unstable slopes, the applicant is required 
to submit a Special Study from a geotechnical engineer.  See requirements in Section 
18 (entitled Special Studies) and Sections 54 & 55 (entitled Additional Requirements for 
Critical Area Reports in Geologically Hazardous Areas and Critical Area Requirements 
for Specific Hazard Areas) of the proposed GMA update.   
 
Specifically, if there are concerns about unstable slopes and landslide and landslide 
runout areas within or affected by a proposed development the Special Study must 
examine a wide variety of on-site and off-site impacts per Section 54(2) if the result of 
the site evaluation indicates a need for further study.  Proposals must meet the 
Performance Standards detailed in Section 56.  In addition to provisions in the Critical 
Areas Protection Ordinance, the International Building Code and International 
Residential Code address building clearances from ascending and descending slopes. 
 
Proposal:  The Planning and Building Division does not advise modification to language 
in the proposed 2018 Update to the Critical Area Protection Ordinance at this time.  
Special attention will be paid to comments received in the GMA Update review period 
from agencies with expertise such as the Department of Natural Resources and 
Department of Ecology.  Between required updates to its CAPO, Grays Harbor County 
                                           
1 See Futurewise letter dated 2/2/2018, pages 2-3 
2 See Futurewise letter dated 2/2/2018, page 2, page 5 and testimony by R.D. Grunbaum 
3  

Agenda Item Page 22 of 133

Packet Page 24 of 308



4 | P a g e  
 

staff will monitor any updates to CAPO model ordinance and/or state agency guidance 
and bring requested amendments forward for consideration by the Planning 
Commission and Board of County Commissioners. 
 
2) Salt Water Intrusion and protection of groundwater sources 
 
Discussion: Grays Harbor County Environmental Health Division is currently drafting 
revisions to its Water Availability Verification process (which includes testing for 
bacteriological and inorganic contaminants) in response to new Washington State 
Department of Health Guidelines. The Environmental Health Division intends to propose 
to the Board of County Commissioners for adoption, updated procedures and 
requirements, including adding chloride testing to initial sampling requirements. The 
Environmental Health Laboratory expects to acquire necessary lab equipment in its 
2019 budget cycle to provide property owners a local testing option. This requirement 
will enable baseline monitoring throughout the county as new private wells are tested 
and provide a mechanism for early indications of seawater intrusion in coastal and 
tidally influenced riverine areas. 
 
Regulations to protect existing private and public water sources and known aquifers are 
not exclusively found in the Critical Areas Protection Ordinance.  See also 1) Grays 
Harbor County Code Chapter 13.08 which adopts the current edition of the Washington 
State Department of Ecology and Washington State Department of Health Joint 
Guideline of Determining Water Availability for New Buildings or its successor and sets 
forth the review and approval process for water availability; 2) Grays Harbor County 
Code Chapter 13.12 which regulates the watershed lands for the domestic water supply 
of the Cities of Aberdeen, Hoquiam, and Montesano; 3) Grays Harbor County Code 
Chapter 13.16 which regulates cross connection and institutes backflow prevention 
requirements between consumers of water from private wells and public water systems; 
and, 4) related regulations concerning the County’s public sewer system found in Grays 
Harbor County Code Chapter 13.20 entitled County Sewage System Regulations. 

 
Proposal: Planning staff does not advise any modification to language in the proposed 
2018 Update to the Critical Area Protection Ordinance at this time.  The Planning 
Division will work closely with the Environmental Health Division as it implements 
chloride testing and may propose an interim update in the future.  New official guidance 
from the Washington State Departments of Health and Ecology regarding the Hirst 
Decision is anticipated later in 2018.   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Page 23 of 133

Packet Page 25 of 308



5 | P a g e  
 

3) Impact of proposed changes to the State Model Ordinance for Wetlands 
 

After the continuance the Planning Commission consideration of the November 3, 2017 
draft of the proposed Update to the CAPO, County staff provided the Department of 
Ecology with technical comparisons between current Grays Harbor County CAPO 
wetland setbacks and those in the proposed CAPO derived from State Model 
Ordinance.  A technical committee at the Department of Ecology reviewed these results 
against control wetlands in their sample as well as conducted a deliberative review of 
buffers supported Best Available Science.  The State Model Ordinance guidance was 
officially revised as a result and published in late July 2018.  Parametrix wetland 
biologists re-ran the required buffer widths on the study areas in Divisions 8 and 10.  
This has resulted in Seabrook withdrawing its concerns about the adoption of the buffer 
requirements in the proposed CAPO, as revised.  See correspondence in Attachment A. 
 
Proposal: Seabrook has withdrawn its concerns on the matter of non-conformity.  
See Attachment A. 
 
 
4) Impact of changes to Critical Area Protection Ordinance Planned Unit 

Development (PUD) 
 
Discussion:  Grays Harbor County staff has clarified with Seabrook that its planned 
unit development is a type of development agreement between Grays Harbor County 
and the developer as defined by RCW 36.70B.170. The agreement vests the PUD in 
the development standards, uses, and mitigation of the development of the real property 
for the duration specified in the agreement.  RCW 36.70B.170 RCW clarifies that 
vesting extends to “mitigation measure, development conditions, and other 
requirements” under chapter 43.21.C RCW (State Environmental Policy Act) and a 
build-out or vesting period. A lot in a PUD is vested to CAO buffers during the agreed 
build-out period.  Lots in the original Seabrook PUD are vested to the buffers and 
regulations defined in the PUD.   
 
Proposal: Seabrook has withdrawn its concerns on the matter of non-conformity.  
See Attachment A. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Page 24 of 133

Packet Page 26 of 308



6 | P a g e  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON 9/7/2018 Draft FINAL 
 
At its October 2, 2018 public meeting the Planning Commission received written 
testimony expressing concern about how the proposed Critical Area Ordinance Update 
addressed several areas of concern:  Staff received (via email) a letter dated October 2, 
2018 from Tim Trohimovich, Director of Planning and Law for Futurewise.  The following 
is a brief restatement of concerns raised in this letter, staff discussion and staff 
recommendation: 
 

(1) We recommend that the standards for marking buffers in Section 26 also apply to 
fish and wildlife habitat buffers and landslide buffers. This will better protect the 
buffers long-term and the fish and wildlife habitats and people and property the 
buffers protect. 

Discussion:  Certain larger projects may be appropriate for this measure.  GHC Staff 
routinely requires stream setbacks be marked in the field for subdivisions and during 
building construction where appropriate.  Staff has the authority to require signage 
with its supplemental authority through the State Environmental Policy Act. Signage is 
generally not practical on most rural properties and is effectively unenforceable as 
GHC has no means to monitor whether signage is maintained. 
 
Suggested modification to Draft: None 
 
 

(2) The aquifer recharge areas regulations in Article III should designate and protect 
all known aquifers used for wells in addition to wellhead protection areas and 
permeable soils. These aquifers provide important water sources for homes and 
businesses and should be protected.  

 
Discussion: 1) Grays Harbor County Code 13.12.010 designates and strictly 
regulates entry and allowed activity within the watersheds of the Cities of Aberdeen, 
Hoquiam, and Montesano, which are all in unincorporated Grays Harbor County.  2) 
All subdivisions and any development resulting the creation of a dwelling unit within a 
critical area recharge area of Group A and B public water systems must record on title 
a Best Management Practices Plan (BMPP) document prepared by Grays Harbor 
County.  This applies properties within the protective radius for Group A & B wells and 
for all development within the Wildcat Creek Aquifer. 3) All applications for new 
development are reviewed by Environmental Health and may be required to record a 
BMPP if the proposal is within the 1-year, 5-year or 10-year time of travel modelling to 
a public water source. 
 
These safeguards are in place in Grays Harbor County Code and WA Department of 
Health code enforced at the local and state level.  Most of the county regulation that 
protects aquifers does not appear in the Critical Areas Protection Ordinance. 
 
Suggested modification to Draft: None 
 

Agenda Item Page 25 of 133

Packet Page 27 of 308



7 | P a g e  
 

(3) Amend proposed Section 42 to protect aquifers from salt water intrusion and to 
protect ground water quantity, quality, and senior water rights holders. Again, 
these aquifers are important water sources for homes and businesses and should 
be protected from contamination and overuse.  

 
Discussion: Requirements for determining potable water supply adequacy are 
addressed in Grays Harbor County Code Chapter 13.08 entitled “Water Availability 
Program for New Buildings”.  Grays Harbor County Environmental Health Division is 
currently drafting revisions to its Water Availability Verification process (which 
includes testing for bacteriological and inorganic contaminants) in response to new 
Washington State Department of Health Guidelines. The Environmental Health 
Division intends to propose to the Board of County Commissioners for adoption, 
updated procedures and requirements, including adding chloride testing to initial 
sampling requirements. The Environmental Health Laboratory expects to acquire 
necessary lab equipment in its 2019 budget cycle to provide property owners a local 
testing option. This requirement will enable baseline monitoring throughout the county 
as new private wells are tested and provide a mechanism for early indications of 
seawater intrusion in coastal and tidally influenced riverine areas. 
 
Requirements for determining potable water supply adequacy are addressed in Grays 
Harbor County Code Chapter 13.08 entitled “Water Availability Program for New 
Buildings.   
 
It is unnecessary to duplicate these requirements within the Critical Area Protection 
Ordinance. 
 
Suggested modification to Draft: None  
 
 

(4) Amend Section 48 to require the protection of new development from sea level 
rise. Sea level rise is increasing the potential for flood damage. Please see page 
10 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion: Translation of the science into regulatory language is receiving 
considerable attention in Washington and nationwide.  The Washington Department 
of Ecology is in the process of developing additional guidance for sea level 
considerations in Shoreline Master Programs.  Staff intends to follow development of 
a model ordinance or official ECY guidance on this subject and propose an update 
the Shoreline Master Program with associated language appearing in the Critical Area 
Protection Ordinance.   Staff anticipates that Sea Level Rise may be the subject of an 
interim update to the Critical Areas Ordinance between 2018 and the next regularly 
scheduled GMA Update in 2026. 
Suggested modification to Draft:  None.  There is not sufficient direction from the 
Washington Department of Ecology for the development of regulatory language sea 
level rise. Staff does not propose draft regulatory language at this time. 
 

Agenda Item Page 26 of 133

Packet Page 28 of 308



8 | P a g e  
 

 

(5) Include landslide runout areas in the designation of geological hazards in Section 
53. Landslide runouts are deadly and damage homes.4 Designating these areas 
as landslide hazards will help protect people and property. Please see page 18 of 
this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion: See Item 7 
Suggested modification to Draft:  None – see Item 7 
 

(6) Require identification of and mitigation for coastal erosion hazards and river and 
stream bank erosion in Sections 55 and 56. This will help protect new 
development from coastal and river and stream erosion. Please see page 10 15 
this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion:  This is an improvement to the proposed draft language.   
Suggested modification to Draft: Adopt a motion to add “including coastal erosion 
and river and stream bank erosion” to Section 55(2)(i) and add “including coastal 
erosion and river and stream bank erosion”to Section 56(B)(9). 
 

(7) The 40-foot-wide landslide hazard buffers in proposed Section 56C.1 are not 
adequate to protect people and property from landslides. We recommend setting 
landslide buffers based on the specific characteristics of the landslide hazard area. 
Please see page 18 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion: The 40 foot clearance to the top and toe of slopes as defined ensures 
standard minimum clearance from ascending and descending slopes for construction 
adjacent to slopes greater than 1:3 and less than 1:1.  Meeting this standard on 
relatively mild slopes may be done prescriptively – simply staying 40 back.  
Construction adjacent to slopes greater than 1:1 almost always involves a site specific 
investigation and report by a geotechnical professional.  Steep slopes are typically 
mapped by DNR as either having erosion hazard potential or landslide hazard 
potential with site specific investigation required unless the proposal is prescriptively 
setback at least 40 feet.  This is derived directly from the International Building Code 
and the International Residential Code.  Nowhere in code is there a discussion of 
setting back 40 feet from an “identified landslide”.  This is likely a typo or a misreading 
of proposed code language without reference to section 18.02 Definitions “Clearance 
to Slopes”. 
Suggested modification to Draft:  None.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                           
 

Agenda Item Page 27 of 133

Packet Page 29 of 308



9 | P a g e  
 

(8) Earthquakes can also cause significant damage, particularly in areas where the geology and 
soils focus earthquake energy or where soils liquefy or weaken during earthquakes. Twelve 
percent of the buildings in unincorporated Grays Harbor County are estimated to be built on 
soils with a moderate-high risk of liquefaction. More precisely designating these areas and 
adopting regulations to protect buildings sited in these areas can protect people and 
property. Please see page 19 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

Discussion: This subject is ripe for further study and incorporation into an interim 
update to the CAO. 
Suggested modification to Draft: None at this time 
 
 

(9) We recommend the update reference the most recent edition of priority habitats 
and species list and the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife priority 
habitats and species management recommendations. This will make it easier to 
keep the Critical Area Protection Ordinance up to date. Please see page 20 of this 
letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion:  All references in the document should specify the “or the most recent 
edition”  
Suggested modification to Draft: Make a motion to add the phrase “or the most 
recent edition” to Article VI, Section 58(A) items 1-11. 
 
 

(10) Section 57A.3 designates habitats of local importance as fish and wildlife 
habitat conservation areas which we support. But the habitats are not identified 
and a process is not included to designate them. The update should either identify 
habitats of local importance or include a process for designating them in Section 
57. Please see page 20 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 
Discussion: Grays Harbor County does not currently have the means to designate 
habitats of local importance and relies on WDFW Priority Habitats and Species data 
and mapping, and US Fish & Wildlife Service mapping.  This language is a 
“placeholder” for future updates.  This is an area ripe for updates if Grays Harbor 
County determines a local need for designation not recognized by WDFW or USFW 
Suggested modification to Draft: None 
 
 

Agenda Item Page 28 of 133

Packet Page 30 of 308



10 | P a g e  
 

Overview of changes: 
Section   Change      
Title 

18.02.010 

Definitions  

Added definitions for new terms in code, missing definitions and clarification 
of poorly worded definitions.  New definitions are underlined, altered 
definitions are shown with a strike through and the changed wording 
underlined. 
 
See: Adaptive management program, Agricultural Activities, Existing and 
Ongoing, Altered, Alteration, Best Available Science, Best Management 
Practices, Bog, Buffers or Buffer area, Coastal lagoon, Critical protection 
areas, Critical Areas, Cumulative Impacts or Effects,  Enhancement, 
Estuarine Wetland, Functions and Values, Hazardous Substances, 
Impervious Surface, In-Kind Compensation, In Lieu-Fee Program, Infiltration, 
Interdunal Wetland, Isolated Wetland, Mature and Old-Growth Forested 
Wetland, Mitigation, Monitoring, Native Vegetation, Preservation, Prior 
Converted Croplands, Project Area, Re-establishment,  Repair or 
Maintenance, Restoration, SEPA, Septage, Service Area (for critical area 
mitigation), Soil survey, Species of Local Importance, “Species, Listed”, 
Stream, Unavoidable Impacts, Washington Administrative Code, Wetland 
Creation, Wetland of High Conservation Value, Wetland Mitigation Bank, 
Wetland Mosaic. 

Section 15 Allowed activities and exemptions are separate sections fully discussed and 
in plain English.  Allowed activities must be consistent with the CAO but do 
not require Critical Area Review.  This codifies certain review policies and 
practices already in place in Planning Review supporting administrative 
discretion. 
 
Lists activities allowed in buffers for staff and the public to understand and 
enumerates many allowed uses where current code is vague. Current code 
lists exemptions without clarification.  

Section 16 Formally outlines review process – codifies Pre-Development Review  

Sections 

19-24 

Clarifies mitigation and outlines mitigation standards consistent with 
Department of Ecology standards.  

Section 25 Building setbacks are clarified in order to accommodate practical needs such 
as landscaping, building overhangs and uncovered decks. 

Article II 

 

Sections 36 

This section replaces 18.06.135 in its entirety with Washington State Model 
Ordinance as modified, July 2018. 
 
Buffers are largely unchanged except that with mitigation, buffers may be 
much smaller. 
 
Without mitigation in place Category I and II buffers are reduced (based on 
Habitat Score) which may result a considerably smaller required buffer. 

Agenda Item Page 29 of 133

Packet Page 31 of 308



11 | P a g e  
 

Section 37 Adds credit and debit system for innovative mitigation proposals 

Article III Replaces the Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas (CARA) section in its entirety 
through reorganization, plain language.  No substantive changes. 

Article IV Unchanged from CFR review and update with FEMA effective February 3, 
2018.  Unchanged from currently adopted code. 

Article V Geologically Hazardous Areas  Adds discussion of emphasis on life safety 
issues (protection of human inhabitants) based on experience from the Oso 
slide and other disasters.   
 
Buffers are unchanged  
 

Article VI Critical Fish & Wildlife Habitat  Replaces 18.06.140 in its entirety through 
reorganization, plain language.  Allows more administrative discretion. 
Outlines activities permitted in a buffer.   
 
Buffers are unchanged.  
  
Authorizes staff to use published WDFW Priority Species & Habitat 
recommendations rather than requiring applicants to hire a consultant 
for non-threatened or endangered species.   

 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
The Growth Management Act (Chapter 36.70a RCW) requires that counties and cities 
review and update their Growth Management Act (GMA) documents on a periodic 
basis: 
 
RCW 36.70a.130 
Comprehensive plans—Review procedures and schedules—Amendments. 

(1)(a) Each comprehensive land use plan and development regulations shall be subject to 
continuing review and evaluation by the county or city that adopted them. Except as otherwise 
provided, a county or city shall take legislative action to review and, if needed, revise its 
comprehensive land use plan and development regulations to ensure the plan and regulations 
comply with the requirements of this chapter according to the deadlines in subsections (4) and 
(5) of this section. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided, a county or city not planning under RCW 36.70A.040 shall 
take action to review and, if needed, revise its policies and development regulations regarding 
critical areas and natural resource lands adopted according to this chapter to ensure these 
policies and regulations comply with the requirements of this chapter according to the deadlines 
in subsections (4) and (5) of this section. Legislative action means the adoption of a resolution 
or ordinance following notice and a public hearing indicating at a minimum, a finding that a 
review and evaluation has occurred and identifying the revisions made, or that a revision was 
not needed and the reasons therefor. 

 
 

Agenda Item Page 30 of 133

Packet Page 32 of 308



12 | P a g e  
 

Grays Harbor County is listed as a jurisdiction required to conduct a periodic review by June 30, 
2018: 
 
RCW 36.70a.130(5) 
Comprehensive plans—Review procedures and schedules—Amendments. 
 

 (5) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (6) and (8) of this section, following 
the review of comprehensive plans and development regulations required by subsection 
(4) of this section, counties and cities shall take action to review and, if needed, revise 
their comprehensive plans and development regulations to ensure the plan and 
regulations comply with the requirements of this chapter as follows: 

(a) On or before June 30, 2015, and every eight years thereafter, for King, Pierce, 
and Snohomish counties and the cities within those counties; 

(b) On or before June 30, 2016, and every eight years thereafter, for Clallam, Clark, 
Island, Jefferson, Kitsap, Mason, San Juan, Skagit, Thurston, and Whatcom counties 
and the cities within those counties; 

(c) On or before June 30, 2017, and every eight years thereafter, for Benton, 
Chelan, Cowlitz, Douglas, Kittitas, Lewis, Skamania, Spokane, and Yakima counties 
and the cities within those counties; and 

(d) On or before June 30, 2018, and every eight years thereafter, for Adams, Asotin, 
Columbia, Ferry, Franklin, Garfield, Grant, Grays Harbor, Klickitat, Lincoln, Okanogan, 
Pacific, Pend Oreille, Stevens, Wahkiakum, Walla Walla, and Whitman counties and the 
cities within those counties. 
 
 
Note that the schedule for periodic updates is not modified by the fact that parts 
of the current Critical Areas Protection Ordinance initially adopted in 2010 but 
modified by settlement agreement were not enacted until 2012.  Periodic Updates 
for Grays Harbor County are required in 2018 and 2026. 
 
 
Conclusions 
 

1. The proposed revisions (as modified by the revision to the State Model Wetland 
Ordinance) simplify and standardize the document by providing accepted definitions 
and clarifying the document through improved organization and consistency from 
section to section. 

2. The proposed 2018 Update to the Critical Areas Protection Ordinance satisfies the 
minimum requirements for GMA Periodic Updates under Chapter 356-196 of the 
Washington Administrative Code. 

3. The 2018 GMA Periodic Update to the Critical Areas Protection Ordinance will: 

Agenda Item Page 31 of 133

Packet Page 33 of 308



13 | P a g e  
 

a. Make updates necessary for consistency with the new Shoreline Master 
Program.  The two documents will be reviewed together in the 60-Day 
Comment period with Washington Department of Commerce to ensure that 
the regulations are not in conflict. 

b. Correct out-of-date references to regulating documents and updates to State 
law. 

c. Adopt the model ordinance language for Wetlands that provides more 
flexibility and authorizes innovative alternatives. 

 
 
DECISION: 
 
Darrell Haglund made a motion to accept the Findings of Fact and Conclusions for 
Case 2018-00149 as presented in the staff report.  Steve Pomeroy seconded the 
motion; Motion carried 5-0.   
 
Darrell Haglund made a motion to approve Case 2018-0049, based on the Findings of 
Fact and Conclusions as presented in the staff report and to direct Planning staff to 
forward the draft document dated 9/7/2018 with the addition of draft language in Items 
# 6 & 9i to the Board of County Commissioners for their consideration. 

 
                                           
Add “including coastal erosion and river and stream bank erosion” to Section 55(2)(i) and add “including 
coastal erosion and river and stream bank erosion”to Section 56(B)(9). 
 
Add the phrase “or the most recent edition” to Article VI, Section 58(A) items 1-11. 
 

Agenda Item Page 32 of 133

Packet Page 34 of 308



Page 1 

Chapter 18.02 - DEFINITIONS  

Section:  

 

18.02.010 - Definitions.  

For the purpose of this title and to supplement definitions set forth in Section 1.04.010 of this 
code, certain terms and words are defined in this chapter. Words appearing but not defined in this 
title shall be given the meaning as defined in the current edition of "Webster's Third New 
International Dictionary."  

"Accessory structure" means a detached subordinate building, the use of which is necessary 
and incidental to that of a main building on the same lot, and which does not change or alter the 
character of the premises. A building permit shall be obtained prior to construction of any 
accessory structure in a frequently flooded area.  

“Adaptive management program” means a formal and deliberate scientific approach to 
taking action and obtaining information in the face of uncertainty.  An adaptive management 
program shall: 

a. Address funding for the research component of the adaptive management program, 
b. Change course based on the results and interpretation of new information that resolve 

uncertainties; and, 
c. Commit to the appropriate timeframe and scale necessary to reliably evaluate regulatory 

and non-regulatory action affecting protection of critical areas and anadromous fisheries. 

"Affecting" means having, or may be having, an effect on an element or elements of the 
environment. For purposes of deciding whether an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is 
required and what the EIS must cover, "affecting" refers to having a probable, significant adverse 
environmental impact or impacts.  

"Agriculture" means the tilling of soil, raising of crops, horticulture, viticulture, floriculture, 
aquaculture including shellfish harvesting, small livestock farming, dairying, animal husbandry, 
including all uses customarily incidental thereto, but not including slaughter house, fertilizer works, 
bone yard, or plant for the reduction of animal matter.  

“Agricultural Activities, Existing and Ongoing” means those activities conducted on 
lands defined in RCW 84.34.020(2), and those activities involved in the production of crops and 
livestock, including but not limited to operation, maintenance and conservation measures of farm 
and stock ponds or drainage ditches, irrigation systems, changes between agricultural activities, 
and normal operation, maintenance or repair of existing serviceable structures, facilities or 
improved areas. Activities which bring an area into agricultural use are not part of an ongoing 
activity. An operation ceases to be ongoing when the area in which it was conducted is proposed 
for conversion to a nonagricultural use or has lain idle for a period of longer than five years, unless 
the idle land is registered in a federal or state soils conservation program. 

 
"Altered" means a human-induced action which requires a county development permit and 

which changes the existing condition of a critical protection area.  

Agenda Item Page 33 of 133

Packet Page 35 of 308



Page 2 

“Alteration” means any human-induced change in an existing condition of a critical area or its 
buffer. Alterations include, but are not limited to, grading, filling, channelizing, dredging, clearing 
of vegetation, construction, compaction, excavation, or any other activity that changes the 
character of the critical area. 

"Anadromous fish" means fish that migrate from salt water to spawn in fresh water.  
"Aquifer" means a saturated body of rock, sand, gravel, or other geologic material that is 

capable of storing, transmitting, and yielding potable water to a well.  
"Area of special flood hazard" means the land in a frequently flooded area within the county 

subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. The designation of an 
area of special flood hazard on flood insurance rate maps (FIRM) always includes the letters "A" 
or "V."  

"Base flood" means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in 
any given year, also referred to as the "100-year flood." The designation of an area of special 
flood hazard on a FIRM always includes the letters "A" or "V."  

"Basement" means any area of the building having its floor sub-grade, below ground level, 
on all sides.  

“Best Available Science” means the current scientific information used in the process to 
designate, protect, or restore critical areas; that is, derived from a valid scientific process as 
defined by WAC 365-195-900 through 925. 

“Best Management Practices (BMPs)” are conservation practices or systems of practices 
and management measures that:  

(a) Control soil loss and reduce water quality degradation caused by high concentrations of 
nutrients, animal waste, toxics, or sediment;  
(b) Minimize adverse impacts to surface water and ground water flow and circulation 
patterns and to the chemical, physical, and biological characteristics of wetlands;  
(c) Protect trees, vegetation, and soils designated to be retained during and following site 
construction and use native plant species appropriate to the site for re-vegetation of 
disturbed areas; and  
(d) Provide standards for proper use of chemical herbicides within critical areas. 
“Bog” means a low-nutrient, acidic wetland with organic soils and characteristic bog plants, 

as described in Washington State Wetland Rating System for Western Washington: 2014 Update 
(Washington State Department of Ecology Publication #14-06-29, Olympia, WA, October 2014). 

"Breakaway wall" means a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is 
intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, 
without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system.  

"Buffer or buffer area" means that vegetated area adjacent to critical protection area that can 
reduce impacts from adjacent land uses through various physical, chemical, and/or biological 
processes.  

“Buffers or buffer area” means that area of land immediately adjacent to a critical protection 
area that maintains the functions and/or structural stability of the critical area.  Buffers consist of 
undisturbed native vegetation or areas identified for restoration established to protect the integrity, 
functions, and values of the affected habitat 

"Built environment" means the elements of the environment as specified in Section 
18.02.010, which are generally built or made by people as contrasted with natural processes.  

Agenda Item Page 34 of 133

Packet Page 36 of 308



Page 3 

"Channel width and gradient" means a measurement over a representative section of at least 
five hundred (500) linear feet, with at least ten (10) evenly-spaced measurement points along the 
normal stream channel, but excluding unusually wide areas of negligible gradient such as marshy 
or swampy areas, beaver ponds, and impoundments.  

"Coastal high hazard area" means an area of special flood hazard extending from offshore 
to the inland limit of a primary frontal dune along an open coast and any other area subject to 
high velocity wave action from storms or seismic sources. The area is designated on a FIRM as 
Zone VE, V or V1 through V30.  

Coastal Lagoon means a shallow body of water partly or completely separated from the sea 
by a barrier beach that receives periodic influxes of salt water, as described in Washington State 
Wetland Rating System for Western Washington: 2014 Update (Washington State Department of 
Ecology Publication #14-06-29, Olympia, WA, October 2014). 

"Conservation easement" means a restriction the scope of development placed on a piece of 
property to protect the natural or man-made resource associated with the site. Easements are 
recorded on the property deed and are held in trust by the party granted the easement. The 
grantee polices the terms of the easement for the duration of its existence.  

"Critical protection areas" are the values and functions of geologically hazardous areas, 
frequently flooded areas, wetland areas, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, and critical 
aquifer recharge areas as defined in this chapter.  

Critical Areas – Critical areas include any of the following areas or ecosystems: critical 
aquifer recharge areas, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, geologically hazardous areas, 
frequently flooded areas, and wetlands, as defined in RCW 36.70A and Chapter 18.06. 

"Critical protection area special study" means a report, prepared by a professional 
possessing the appropriate state or similar accreditation, examining a development proposal's 
adverse impact to a critical protection area and any associated buffer. The study shall include 
information as set forth in Section 18.06.020D.  

"Critical facility" means a facility for which even slight chance of flooding might be too great. 
Critical facilities include, but are not limited to, schools, nursing homes, hospitals, police, fire and 
emergency response installations, and installations that produce, use, or store hazardous 
materials or hazardous waste.  

"Cumulative" means increasing in size or strength by successive additions without 
corresponding loss.  

“Cumulative Impacts or Effects” – The combined, incremental effects of human activity on 
ecological or critical area functions and values. Cumulative impacts result when the effects of an 
action are added to or interact with the effects of other actions in a particular place and within a 
particular time. It is the combination of these effects, and any resulting environmental degradation, 
that should be the focus of cumulative impact analysis and changes to policies and permitting 
decisions. 

"Determination of Non-Significance" (or DNS) means the written decision by the responsible 
official of the lead agency that a proposal is not likely to have a significant adverse environmental 
impact and therefore, an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is not required to be prepared for 
the proposal. 

"Determination of Significance" (or DS) means the written decision by the responsible official 
of the lead agency that a proposal is likely to have a significant adverse environmental impact 
and therefore an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) must be prepared for the proposal.  

Agenda Item Page 35 of 133

Packet Page 37 of 308



Page 4 

"Development" means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation, drilling operations, or the outdoor storage of equipment or materials on property 
containing a critical protection area.  

Development – A land use consisting of the construction or exterior alteration of structures; 
grading, dredging, drilling, or dumping; filling; removal of sand, gravel, or minerals; bulk heading; 
driving of pilings; or any project of a temporary or permanent nature which modifies structures, 
land, wetlands, or shorelines and which does not fall within the allowable exemptions contained 
in the county code 

"EDNA" means the environmental designation for noise abatement, being an area or zone 
(environment) within which maximum permissible noise levels are established.  

"Environment" means and is limited to the following elements:  
(1) Natural Environment  

(a) Earth  
(i) Geology  
(ii) Soils  
(iii) Topography  
(iv) Unique physical features  
(v) Erosion/enlargement of land area (accretion)  

(b) Air  
(i) Air quality  
(ii) Odor  
(iii) Climate  

(c) Water  
(i) Surface water movement/quantity/quality  
(ii) Runoff/absorption  
(iii) Floods  
(iv) Ground water movement/quantity/quality  
(v) Public water supplies  

(d) Plants and animals  
(i) Habitat for and numbers or diversity of species of plants, fish, or other wildlife  
(ii) Unique species  
(iii) Fish or wildlife migration routes  

(e) Energy and natural resources  
(i) Amount required/rate of use/efficiency  
(ii) Source/availability  
(iii) Non-renewable resources  

Agenda Item Page 36 of 133

Packet Page 38 of 308



Page 5 

(iv) Conservation and renewable resources  
(v) Scenic resources  

(2) Built environment  
(a) Environmental health  

(i) Noise  
(ii) Risk of explosion  
(iii) Releases or potential releases to the environment affecting public health, such 

as toxic or hazardous materials  
(b) Land and shoreline use  

(i) Relationship to existing land use plans and to estimated population  
(ii) Housing  
(iii) Light and glare  
(iv) Aesthetics  
(v) Recreation  
(vii) Historic and cultural preservation  
(viii) Agricultural crops  

(c) Transportation  
(i) Transportation systems  
(ii) Vehicular traffic  
(iii) Waterborne, rail, and air traffic  
(iv) Parking  
(v) Movement/circulation of people or goods  
(vi) Traffic hazards  

(d) Public services and utilities  
(i) Fire  
(ii) Police  
(iii) Schools  
(iv) Parks or other recreational facilities  
(v) Maintenance  
(vi) Communications  
(vii) Water/stormwater  
(viii) Sewer/solid waste  
(ix) Other governmental services or utilities  

Environment and environmental quality refer to the state of the environment and are 
synonymous as used in this title and refers basically to physical environmental quality.  

Agenda Item Page 37 of 133

Packet Page 39 of 308



Page 6 

Enhancement – The manipulation of the physical, chemical, or biological characteristics of 
a wetland to heighten, intensify, or improve specific function(s) or to change the growth stage 
or composition of the vegetation present. Enhancement is undertaken for specified purposes 
such as water quality improvement, flood water retention, or wildlife habitat. Enhancement 
results in a change in wetland function(s) and can lead to a decline in other wetland functions, 
but does not result in a gain in wetland acres. Examples are planting vegetation, controlling 
non-native or invasive species, and modifying site elevations to alter hydroperiods. 

"Environmental checklist" means the form referenced in Section 18.04.240 and Washington 
Administrative Code section 197-11-960.  

"Environmental review" means consideration of environmental factors as required by this title. 
The "environmental review process" is the procedure used by agencies and others under SEPA 
for giving appropriate consideration to the environment in agency decision making.  

"Erosion hazard areas" are those areas containing soils that, according to the United States 
Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service Soil Survey Program may 
experience significant erosion. These include areas identified as having a "moderate to severe," 
"severe," or "very severe" rill and inter-rill erosion hazard. Erosion hazard areas also include 
coastal erosion-prone areas and channel migration zones.  

"Essential public facilities" include those facilities that are typically difficult to site, such as 
airports, state education facilities and state or regional transportation facilities as defined in RCW 
47.06.140, regional transit authority facilities as defined in RCW 81.112.020, state and local 
correctional facilities, solid waste handling facilities, and inpatient facilities including substance 
abuse facilities, mental health facilities, group homes, and secure community transition facilities 
as defined in RCW 71.09.020.  

“Estuarine Wetland”means a vegetated wetland with a water regime that is predominately 
tidal, as described in Washington State Wetland Rating System for Western Washington: 2014 
Update (Washington State Department of Ecology Publication #14-06-29, Olympia, WA, October 
2014). 

"Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas" means land management for maintaining 
populations of species in suitable habitats within their natural geographic distribution so that the 
habitat available is sufficient to support viable populations over the long-term and isolated 
subpopulations are not created. This does not mean maintaining all individuals of all species at 
all times, but it does mean not degrading or reducing populations or habitats so that they are no 
longer viable over the long term. Cooperative planning and coordination should occur to help 
assure long-term population viability.  

Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas contribute to the state's biodiversity and occur on 
both publicly and privately owned lands. Designing these areas is an important part of land use 
planning and appropriate development densities, urban growth area boundaries, open space 
corridors, and incentive-based land conservation and stewardship programs.  

Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas include:  
1. Areas where endangered, threatened, and sensitive species have a primary association;  
2. Habitats and species of local importance, as determined locally;  
3. Commercial and recreational shellfish areas;  
4. Kelp and eelgrass beds; herring, smelt, and other forage fish spawning areas;  

Agenda Item Page 38 of 133

Packet Page 40 of 308



Page 7 

5. Naturally occurring ponds under twenty (20) acres and their submerged aquatic beds 
that provide fish or wildlife habitat;  

6. Waters of the state;  
7. Lakes, ponds, streams, and rivers planted with game fish by a governmental or tribal 

entity; and  
8. State natural area preserves, natural resource conservation areas, and state wildlife 

areas.  
"Flood" or "flooding" means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete 

inundation of normally dry land areas from: (a) the overflow of inland or tidal waters and/or (b) the 
unusual and rapid accumulation of runoff or surface waters from any source.  

"Flood insurance rate map (FIRM)" means the official map on which the Federal Insurance 
Administration has delineated both the areas of special flood hazards and the risk premium zones 
applicable to the community.  

"Flood insurance study (FIS)" means the official report provided by the Federal Insurance 
Administration that includes flood profiles, the Flood Boundary Floodway Map, and the water 
surface elevation of the base flood.  

"Floodplain" means an area inundated with water that is typically located adjacent to a 
stream, river, lake, or coastline that exhibits the potential to flood once every one hundred (100) 
years or have a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.  

"Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas 
that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the 
water surface elevation more than one foot.  

"Frequently flooded area" means the land in the floodplain or floodway within the county that 
is subject to a one percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year.  

"Function" means the physical, biological, chemical, and geologic interactions among 
different components of the environment.  

“Functions and Values” – The services provided by critical areas to society, including, but 
not limited to, improving and maintaining water quality, providing fish and wildlife habitat, 
supporting terrestrial and aquatic food chains, reducing flooding and erosive flows, wave 
attenuation, historical or archaeological importance, educational opportunities, and recreation. 
 

"Geologically hazardous areas" are areas that because of their susceptibility to erosion, 
sliding, earthquakes, or other geologic events, are not suited to siting commercial, residential, or 
industrial development consistent with public health or safety concerns.  

“Hazardous Substances” means any liquid, solid, gas, or sludge, including any material, 
substance, product, commodity, or waste, regardless of quantity, that exhibits any of the physical, 
chemical, or biological properties described in WAC 173-303-090 or 173-303-100. 

"High slope instability" means a soil highly susceptible to landslides based on a combination 
of geologic, topographic, and hydrologic factors, such as any combination of bedrock, soil, slope 
gradient, slope aspect, structure or hydrology as identified in the State Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) "Forest Practice Application Review System" (FPARS) resource mapping 
system. These soils are located in areas exhibiting a combination of topographic attributes, 
including (a) concave slopes with sixty-five (65) percent or greater gradient or (b) planar slopes 

Agenda Item Page 39 of 133

Packet Page 41 of 308



Page 8 

with eighty (80) percent or greater gradient, both as identified in DNR's geospatial "slpstab" map 
layer.  

"Highly erodible" means impermeable or minimally impermeable soil that possesses a high 
potential for erosion, as identified in the State Department of Natural Resources "Forest Practice 
Application Review System" (FPARS) resource mapping system.  

"Hydrology" means the science dealing with waters of the earth.  
"Impacts" are effects or consequences of actions. Environmental impacts are effects upon 

the elements of the environment previously listed in this section.  
"Impervious surface" means a surface that impairs or prevents the recharge effect of surface 

water into the soil.  
“Impervious Surface” means surface area which either prevents or retards the entry of 

water into the soil mantle as under natural conditions prior to development. A non-vegetated 
surface area which causes water to run off the surface in greater quantities or at an increased 
rate of flow from the flow present under pre-development or pre-developed conditions. Common 
impervious surfaces include, but are not limited to, roof tops, walkways, patios, driveways, parking 
lots or storage areas, concrete or asphalt paving, gravel roads, packed earthen materials, and 
oiled, macadam or other surfaces which similarly impede the natural infiltration of stormwater. 

“In-Kind Compensation” – To replace critical areas with substitute areas whose 
characteristics and functions closely approximate those destroyed or degraded by a regulated 
activity.  
 

“In-Lieu-Fee Program” means an agreement between a regulatory agency (state, federal, 
or local) and a single sponsor, generally a public natural resource agency or non-profit 
organization. Under an in-lieu-fee agreement, the mitigation sponsor collects funds from an 
individual or a number of individuals who are required to conduct compensatory mitigation 
required under a wetland regulatory program. The sponsor may use the funds pooled from 
multiple permittees to create one or a number of sites under the authority of the agreement to 
satisfy the permittees’ required mitigation.  
 

“Infiltration” means the downward entry of water into the immediate surface of soil.  
"Intermittent" means, when used in the context of a "Type Np Water", a stream segment that 

normally goes dry.  
“Interdunal Wetland” means  wetland that forms in the deflation plains and swales that are 

geomorphic features in areas of coastal dunes, as described in Washington State Wetland Rating 
System for Western Washington: 2014 Update (Washington State Department of Ecology 

“Isolated Wetland”means wetland that is hydrologically isolated from other aquatic 
resources, as determined by the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). Isolated 
wetlands may perform important functions and are protected by state law (RCW 90.48) whether 
or not they are protected by federal law. 

 
"Lands covered by water" means lands underlying the water areas of the state below the 

ordinary high water mark (OHWM), including salt waters, tidal waters, estuarine waters, natural 
water courses, lakes, ponds, artificially impounded waters, marshes, wetlands, and swamps. 
Certain state environmental policy act categorical exemptions do not apply to lands covered by 
water.  

Agenda Item Page 40 of 133

Packet Page 42 of 308



Page 9 

"Landslide hazard area" includes areas at risk of mass movement due to a combination of 
geologic, topographic, and hydrologic factors. They include the following areas:  

(1) Areas of historic failures, such as:  
(a) Those areas delineated by the United States Department of Agriculture Natural 

Resources Conservation Service as having a significant limitation for building site 
development;  

(b) Those coastal areas mapped as Class U (unstable), UOS(unstable old slides), and 
URS (unstable recent slides) in the State Department of Ecology Washington 
Coastal Atlas; or  

(c) Areas designated as quaternary slumps, earthflows, mudflows, lahars, or landslides 
on maps published by the United States Geological Survey or State Department of 
Natural Resources.  

(2) Areas with all three of the following characteristics:  
(a) Slopes steeper than fifteen (15) percent;  
(b) Hillsides intersecting geologic contacts with a relatively permeable sediment 

overlying a relatively impermeable sediment or bedrock; and  
(c) Springs or groundwater seepage.  

(3) Areas that have shown movement during the Holocene epoch (from ten thousand 
(10,000) years ago to the present) or which are underlain or covered by mass wastage 
debris of this epoch;  

(4) Slopes that are parallel or subparallel to places of weakness (such as bedding planes, 
joint systems, and fault planes) in subsurface materials;  

(5) Slopes having gradients steeper than eighty (80) percent subject to rockfall during 
seismic shaking;  

(6) Areas potentially unstable as a result of rapid stream incision, stream bank erosion, and 
undercutting by wave action, including stream channel migration zones;  

(7) Areas located in a canyon or on an active alluvial fan, presently or potentially subject to 
inundation by debris flows or catastrophic flooding; and  

(8) Any area with a slope of thirty-three and one-third (33 1/3 ) percent or steeper and with 
a vertical relief of ten (10) or more feet except areas composed of bedrock. A slope is 
delineated by establishing its toe and top and measured by averaging the inclination over 
at least ten (10) feet of vertical relief.  

"Lowest floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including a basement. An 
unfinished or flood resistant enclosure usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or 
storage in an area other than a basement area, is not considered a building's lowest floor, 
provided that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable 
non-elevation design requirements of this code.  

"Manufactured home" means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built 
on a permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when 
attached to the required utilities. The term "manufactured home" does not include "recreational 
vehicle."  

Agenda Item Page 41 of 133

Packet Page 43 of 308



Page 10

"Manufactured home park or subdivision" means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land 
divided into three or more manufactured home lots or spaces for rent, lease, or sale. Manufactured 
home parks or subdivisions are regulated under Chapter 16.24.  

"Market value" means the theoretical price a buyer willing but not compelled to buy would 
pay and the lowest price a seller willing but not compelled to sell, would accept.  

"Mean high tide" means the average of all high tides observed during the most recent 
nineteen (19) year period.  

“Mature and Old-Growth Forested Wetland” means a wetland having at least 1 
contiguous acre of either old-growth forest or mature forest, as described in Washington State 
Wetland Rating System for Western Washington: 2014 Update (Washington State Department of 
Ecology Publication #14-06-29, Olympia, WA, October 2014). 

“Mitigation” means (1) avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts 
of an action, (2) minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its 
implementation, by using appropriate technology, or by taking affirmative steps to avoid or reduce 
impacts, (3) rectifying the impact by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment, 
(4) reducing or eliminating the impact over time by preservation and maintenance operations 
during the life of the action, (5) compensating for the impact by replacing, enhancing, or providing 
substitute resources or environments; and/or (6) monitoring the impact and taking appropriate 
corrective measures.  
“Mitigation” means avoiding, minimizing, or compensating for adverse critical areas impacts. 
Mitigation, in the following sequential order of preference, is:  

(a) Avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts of an action;  
(b) Minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its 
implementation by using appropriate technology or by taking affirmative steps to avoid or 
reduce impacts;  
(c) Rectifying the impact to wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, and habitat 
conservation areas by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment to the 
conditions existing at the time of the initiation of the project;  
(d) Reducing or eliminating the impact or hazard over time by preservation and 
maintenance operations during the life of the action;  
(e) Compensating for the impact to wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, and habitat 
conservation areas by replacing, enhancing, or providing substitute resources or 
environments; and  
(f) Monitoring the hazard or other required mitigation and taking remedial action when 
necessary. Mitigation for individual actions may include a combination of the above 
measures. 

 
"Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance" (or MDNS), means a Determination of Non-

Significance (DNS) that includes measures intended to mitigate a proposal's probable significant 
adverse impacts to elements of the natural and/or built environment.  

"Moderate slope instability" means a soil that is moderately susceptible to landslides based 
on a combination of geologic, topographic, and hydrologic factors, such as a combination of 
bedrock, soil, slope gradient, slope aspect, structure or hydrology as identified in the Washington 
State Department of Natural Resources (DNR) "Forest Practice Application Review System" 
(FPARS) resource mapping system. These soils are located in areas exhibiting a combination of 
topographic attributes, including (a) concave slopes with fifteen (15) percent or greater gradient, 

Agenda Item Page 42 of 133

Packet Page 44 of 308



Page 11

(b) planar slopes with seventy (70) percent or greater gradient, or (c) convex slopes with eighty 
(80) percent or greater gradient, all as identified on DNR's geospatial "slpstab" map layer.  

“Monitoring” means evaluating the impacts of development proposals on the biological, 
hydrological, and geological elements of such systems, and assessing the performance of 
required mitigation measures through the collection and analysis of data by various methods for 
the purpose of understanding and documenting changes in natural ecosystems and features. 
Monitoring includes gathering baseline data. 

“Native Vegetation” means a plant species that occur naturally in a particular region or 
environment and were present before European colonization. 

"Natural environment" means those aspects of the environment previously described in this 
section frequently referred to as natural elements or resources, such as earth, air, water, wildlife, 
and energy.  

"New construction" means structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or 
after the effective date of this chapter.  

"No-rise certification" means a certification by a state-licensed engineer that a project will not 
cause a set increase in flood heights.  

"Ordinary high water mark" means a mark that will be found by examining the bed and banks 
and ascertaining where the presence and action of waters are so common and usual, and so long 
continued in all ordinary years as to mark upon the soil a character distinct from that of the abutting 
upland in respect to vegetation, as it may naturally change thereafter or at it may change 
thereafter in accordance with permits issued by the county or State Department of Ecology; 
provided that in any area where the ordinary high water mark cannot be found, the ordinary high 
water mark adjoining salt water shall be the line of mean higher high tide and the ordinary high 
water mark adjoining fresh water shall be the line of mean high water.  

"Outdoor storage" means the placement of equipment or materials on a property. This does 
not include storage within a structure.  

"Planning director" means the director of the county planning and building division or the 
director or head of the division's successor or the designee of the director or head.  

"Pole building" means a building supported by poles placed vertically into the ground. Refer 
to Chapter 15.04.010.  

“Preservation” means the removal of a threat to, or preventing the decline of, wetland 
conditions by an action in or near a wetland. This term includes the purchase of land or 
conservation easements, repairing water control structures or fences, or structural protection. 
Preservation does not result in a gain of wetland acres but may result in a gain in functions over 
the long term.  

“Prior Converted Croplands” (PCCs) are defined in federal law as wetlands that were 
drained, dredged, filled, leveled, or otherwise manipulated, including the removal of woody 
vegetation, before December 23, 1985, to enable production of an agricultural commodity, and 
that: 1) have had an agricultural commodity planted or produced at least once prior to December 
23, 1985; 2) do not have standing water for more than 14 consecutive days during the growing 
season, and 3) have not since been abandoned. 

"Probable" means likely or reasonably likely to occur, as in a reasonable probability of more 
than a moderate effect on the quality of the environment. Probable is used to distinguish likely 
impacts from those that merely have a possibility of occurring, but are remote or speculative. This 
is not meant as a strict statistical probability test.  

Agenda Item Page 43 of 133

Packet Page 45 of 308



Page 12

“Project Area”means all areas, including those within fifty (50) feet of the area, proposed to 
be disturbed, altered, or used by the proposed activity or the construction of any proposed 
structures. When the action binds the land, such as a subdivision, short subdivision, binding site 
plan, planned unit development, or rezone, the project area shall include the entire parcel, at a 
minimum. 

 
"Project permit" or "project permit application" means any land use or environmental permit 

or license required from Grays Harbor County for a project action, including, but not limited to, 
building permits, subdivisions, binding site plans, planned unit developments, conditional uses, 
shoreline substantial development permits, site plan review, permits or approvals required by 
critical area ordinances, site-specific rezones authorized by a comprehensive plan or subarea 
plan, but excluding the adoption or amendment of a comprehensive plan, subarea plan, or 
development regulations except as otherwise specifically included in this definition. Where the 
term "development" or "permit-related activities" is used in this code, it should have the same 
meaning as project permit or permit project application.  

"Public facilities" includes streets, roads, highways, sidewalks, street and road lighting 
systems, traffic signals, domestic water systems, storm and sanitary sewer systems, parks and 
recreational facilities, and schools (WAC 365-190-030).  

"Recreational vehicle" means a vehicle that is (a) built on a single chassis, (b) four hundred 
(400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, (c) designed to be 
self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck, and (d) designed primarily not for use 
as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or 
seasonal use.  

“Re-establishment” means the manipulation of the physical, chemical, or biological 
characteristics of a site with the goal of returning natural or historic functions to a former wetland. 
Re-establishment results in rebuilding a former wetland and results in a gain in wetland acres and 
functions. Activities could include removing fill, plugging ditches, or breaking drain tiles. 

“Repair or Maintenance” means an activity that restores the character, scope, size, and 
design of a serviceable area, structure, or land use to its previously authorized and undamaged 
condition. Activities that change the character, size, or scope of a project beyond the original 
design and drain, dredge, fill, flood, or otherwise alter critical areas are not included in this 
definition. 

"Responsible official" means the planning and building director or his or her assign.” 
Repetitive loss" means a residential property that is covered under the National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) flood insurance policy and (a) that has at least four NFIP claim payments, 
including building and contents, over five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) each and the cumulative 
amount of such claims payments exceeds twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) or (b) for which 
at least two separate building only claims payments have been made with the cumulative amount 
of the building portion of such claims exceeding the market value of the building. For both (a) and 
(b), at least two of the referenced claims must have occurred within any ten (10) year period and 
must be more than ten (10) days apart.  

"Riparian" means that area of land adjacent to a body of water that is the transition between 
the aquatic system and the upland. Some riparian areas contain wetland areas.  
“Restoration” means measures taken to restore an altered or damaged natural feature, 
including: 

Agenda Item Page 44 of 133

Packet Page 46 of 308



Page 13

(a) Active steps taken to restore damaged wetlands, streams, protected habitat, or their 
buffers to the functioning condition that existed prior to an unauthorized alteration; and  
(b) Actions performed to re-establish structural and functional characteristics of a critical area 
that have been lost by alteration, past management activities, or catastrophic events. 
"SEPA" means the Washington State Environmental Policy Act, 43.21C RCW State 

Environmental Policy Act. The "SEPA process" means all measures necessary for compliance 
with the act's requirements.  

"Seasonal low flow" or "seasonal low water" means the conditions of the seven-day, two-year 
low water situation, as measured or estimated by accepted hydrologic techniques.  

"Seismic hazard areas" are areas subject to severe risk of damage as a result of earthquake 
induced ground shaking, slope failure, settlement, soil liquefaction, debris flows, lahars, or 
tsunamis. Settlement and soil liquefaction conditions occur in areas underlain by cohesionless 
soils of low density, typically in association with a shallow groundwater table. One indicator of 
potential for future earthquake damage is a record of earthquake damage in the past. Ground 
shaking is the primary cause of earthquake damage and ground settlement may occur with 
shaking (WAC 365-190-120(7)). These include areas identified by the State Department of 
Natural Resources Interactive Geologic Map as having:  

(1) Liquefaction susceptibility of "moderate," "moderate to high," "high," and "peat deposit;" 
and  

(2) NEHRP Seismic Site Class "D," "D to E," and "F."  
 
"Septage" means the mixture of solid wastes, scum, sludge, and liquids pumped from within 

septic tanks, pump chambers, holding tanks, and other OSS components. 
“Service Area (for critical area mitigation)” means the geographic area within which 

impacts can be mitigated at a specific mitigation bank or an in-lieu-fee program, as designated in 
its instrument. 

"Setback" means, when used in conjunction with the Grays Harbor County Shoreline Master 
Program, that buffer area adjacent to a fish habitat conservation area that can reduce impacts 
from adjacent land uses through various physical, chemical, and/or biological processes.  

"Shallow flooding areas" means those areas that appear on a Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) as AO zones with depth designations. The base flood depths in these zones range from 
one foot to three feet above ground where a clearly defined channel does not exist, or where the 
path of flooding is unpredictable and where velocity flow may be evident.  

"Significant" as used in this title means a reasonable likelihood of more than a moderate 
adverse impact on environmental quality. Significance involves context and intensity and does 
not lend itself to a formula or quantifiable test. The context may vary with the physical setting. 
Intensity depends on the magnitude and duration of an impact. The severity of an impact should 
be weighed along with the likelihood of its occurrence. An impact may be significant if its chance 
of occurrence is not great, but the resulting environmental impact would be severe if it occurred. 
Section 18.04.080 and Washington Administrative Code (WAC) section 197-11-330 specify the 
process, including criteria and procedures, for determining whether a proposal is likely to have a 
significant adverse environmental impact.  

"Slope top and toe" is defined in accordance with the building code adopted under Chapter 
15.04 of the Grays Harbor County Code.  

Agenda Item Page 45 of 133

Packet Page 47 of 308



Page 14

“Soil Survey” means the most recent soil survey for the local area or county by the National 
Resources Conservation Service, U.S. Department of Agriculture. 

"Special flood hazard area" means frequently flooded area, as identified on the Federal 
Insurance Administration (FIA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  

“Species” means any group of animals or plants classified as a species or subspecies as 
commonly accepted by the scientific community. 

 
“Species of Local Importance” means those species of local concern designated by State 

Department of Fish & Wildlife, Priority Habitats and Species List, August 2008, as may hereafter 
may be revised  due to their population status or their sensitivity to habitat manipulation. 

“Species, Listed” means any species listed under the federal Endangered Species Act or 
state endangered, threatened, and sensitive, or priority lists (see WAC 232-12-297 or page 6 of 
“Priority Habitat and Species List,” Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, 2008, Olympia, 
Washington. 177 pp.)  

 "Start of construction" includes substantial improvement and means the date the building 
permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, placement, or 
other improvement was within one hundred eighty (180) days of the date the permit was issued. 
The "actual start" means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure on a 
site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns; 
or the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. For a substantial improvement, the 
actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural 
part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.  

"Storage of equipment and material" means the accumulation of equipment or materials 
associated with the continuous or seasonal purpose that are to be drawn upon as needed, such 
as lumber yards or automobile junkyards, and located within any special flood hazard area.  

“Stream” means an area where open surface water produces a defined channel or bed, not 
including irrigation ditches, canals, storm or surface water runoff devices, or other entirely artificial 
watercourses, unless they are used by salmonids or are used to convey a watercourse naturally 
occurring prior to construction. A channel or bed need not contain water year-round, provided 
there is evidence of at least intermittent flow during years of normal rainfall. 

"Structure" means a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank that is 
principally above ground.  

"Substantial damage" means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost 
of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent 
of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.  

"Substantial improvement" means any repair, reconstruction, or improvement of a structure, 
the cost of which equals or exceeds fifty percent of the market value of the structure either (a) 
before the improvement or repair is started, or (b) if the structure has been damaged and is being 
restored before the damage occurred. For the purposes of this definition substantial improvement 
is considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of 
the building commences, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the 
structure. For the purpose of this definition, the following shall not be considered substantial 
improvements: (a) any project for improvement of a structure to correct and comply with pre-cited 
existing violations of state or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications that have been 
previously identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary 

Agenda Item Page 46 of 133

Packet Page 48 of 308



Page 15

to assure safe living conditions; or (b) any alteration of a structure listed on the National Register 
of Historic Places or State Inventory of Historic Places.  

"Surface water retention or detention facility" means a surface water management facility 
designed in accordance with the provisions of the current edition of the State Department of 
Ecology document entitled "Surface Water Management for Western Washington."  

"Temporary storage of materials or equipment" means the transient placement of equipment 
or materials, such as the short-term parking of equipment on a construction site or the short-term 
placement of materials associated with a planned activity, on property located within any special 
flood hazard area. Temporary storage shall not mean the accumulation of equipment or materials 
associated with a continuous or seasonal purpose that are to be drawn upon as needed, such as 
lumber yards or automobile junkyards, and located within any special flood hazard area. The 
temporary storage of equipment or materials within any special flood hazard area is prohibited 
from November 15 through March 15 inclusive.  

"Threshold determination" means the decision by the responsible official of the lead agency 
as to whether or not an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) is required for a proposal that is 
not categorically exempt.  

"Tsunami hazard areas" are coastal areas and large lake shoreline areas susceptible to 
flooding and inundation as the result of excessive wave action derived from seismic or other 
geologic events.  

"Type S Water" means all waters, within their bankfull width, as inventoried as "shorelines of 
the state" by chapter 90.58 of the Revised Code of Washington and the rules promulgated there 
under, including periodically inundated areas of their associated wetlands. 

"Type F Water" means segments of natural waters, excluding water conveyance systems 
that are artificially constructed and actively maintained for irrigation, other than "Type S Waters" 
that are within the bankfull widths of defined channels and periodically inundated areas of their 
associated wetlands, or within lakes, ponds, or impoundments having a surface area of one-half 
acre or greater at seasonal low water and which in any case contain fish habitat or are described 
by one of the following four categories:  

(a) Waters, which are diverted for domestic use by more than ten (10) residential dwelling 
units or ten (10) camping units or by a public accommodation facility licensed to serve 
more than ten (10) persons, where such diversion is determined by the state to be a valid 
appropriation of water and the only practical water source for such users. Such waters 
shall be considered to be "Type F Water" upstream from the-point of such diversion for 
one thousand five hundred (1,500) feet or until the drainage area is reduced by fifty (50) 
percent, whichever is less;  

(b) Waters, which are diverted for use by federal, state, tribal or private fish hatcheries. Such 
waters shall be considered a "Type F Water" upstream from the point of diversion for 
one thousand five hundred (1,500) feet, including tributaries if highly significant for 
protection of downstream water quality.  

(c) Waters that are within a federal, state, local, or private campground having more than 
ten (10) camping units, provided that the water shall not be considered as entering a 
campground until it reaches the boundary of the park lands available for public use and 
comes within one hundred (100) feet of a camping unit, trail, or other park improvement;  

(d) Riverine ponds, wall-based channels, and other channel features that are used by fish 
for off-channel habitat. These areas are critical to the maintenance of optimum survival 
of fish. This habitat shall be identified based on the following criteria:  

Agenda Item Page 47 of 133

Packet Page 49 of 308



Page 16

(1) The site must be connected to a fish habitat stream and accessible during some 
period of the year; and  

(2) The off-channel water must be accessible to fish.  
"Type Np Water" means all segments of natural waters, excluding water conveyance systems 

that are artificially constructed and actively maintained for irrigation, within the bankfull width of 
defined channels that are perennial non-fish habitat streams. Perennial streams are flowing 
waters that do not go dry anytime of a year of normal rainfall, and include the intermittent dry 
portions of the perennial channel below the uppermost point of perennial flow.  

"Type Ns Water" means all segments of natural waters, excluding water conveyance systems 
that are artificially constructed and actively maintained for irrigation, within the bankfull width of 
the defined channels that are not "Type S Water", "Type F Water", or "Type Np Water". These 
are seasonal, non-fish habitat streams in which surface flow is not present for at least some 
portion of a year of normal rainfall and are not located downstream from any stream reach that is 
a "Type Np Water." "Type Ns Water" must be physically connected by an above-ground channel 
system to a "Type S Water", a "Type F Water", or a "Type Np Water."  

“Unavoidable Impacts” means adverse impacts that remain after all appropriate and 
practicable avoidance and minimization has been achieved. 

 
“Washington Administration Code (WAC)” means administrative rules implementing 

state laws.  
"Water dependent use" means a use or a portion of a use that cannot exist in any other 

location and requires a location on the shoreline and is dependent on the water by reason of the 
intrinsic nature of its operation.  

"Water enjoyment use" means a recreational use or other use that facilitates public access 
to the shoreline as a primary characteristic of the use; or a use that provides for recreational use 
or aesthetic enjoyment of the shoreline for a substantial number of people as a general 
characteristic of the use and which through location, design, and operation ensures the public's 
ability to enjoy the physical and aesthetic qualities of the shoreline. In order to qualify as a water-
enjoyment use, the use must be open to the general public and the shoreline-oriented space 
within the project must be devoted to the specific aspects of the use that fosters shoreline 
enjoyment.  

"Wetland" means an area that is inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a 
frequency or duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support a 
prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. Wetlands generally 
include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar areas. Wetlands do not include those artificial 
wetlands intentionally created from non-wetland sites, including, but not limited to, irrigation and 
drainage ditches, grass-lined swales, canals, detention facilities, wastewater treatment facilities, 
farm ponds, and landscape amenities, or those wetlands created after July 1, 1990 that were 
unintentionally created as a result of the construction of a road, street, or highway. Wetlands may 
include those artificial wetlands intentionally created from non-wetland areas to mitigate the 
conversion of wetlands.  

“Wetland Creation” means the manipulation of the physical, chemical, or biological 
characteristics to develop a wetland on an upland or deepwater site where a wetland did not 
previously exist. Creation results in a gain in wetland acreage and function. A typical action is the 
excavation of upland soils to elevations that will produce a wetland hydroperiod and hydric soils, 
and support the growth of hydrophytic plant species. 

Agenda Item Page 48 of 133

Packet Page 50 of 308



Page 17

 
"Wetland function" means the physical, biological, chemical, and geologic interactions among 

different components of the environment that occur within a wetland. A Wetland performs many 
valuable functions are grouped into three categories: functions that improve water quality, 
functions that change the water regime in a watershed such as flood storage, and functions that 
provide habitat for plants and animals.  

“Wetland of High Conservation Value” means a wetland that has been identified by 
scientists from the Washington Natural Heritage Program (WHNHP) as an important ecosystem 
for maintaining plant diversity in Washington State. See http://www.dnr.wa.gov/data-information-
natural-heritage-features . 

 
“Wetland Mitigation Bank” means a site where wetlands are restored, created, 

enhanced, or in exceptional circumstances, preserved, expressly for the purpose of providing 
compensatory mitigation in advance of unavoidable impacts to wetlands or other aquatic 
resources that typically are unknown at the time of certification to compensate for future, 
permitted impacts to similar resources.  
 

“Wetland Mosaic” means an area with a concentration of multiple small wetlands, in which 
each patch of wetland is less than one acre; on average, patches are less than 100 feet from 
each other; and areas delineated as vegetated wetland are more than 50% of the total area of 
the entire mosaic, including uplands and open water.  

"Wetland rating", also called a wetland rating system, is a tool for dividing or grouping 
wetlands into groups having similar needs for protection. One method used in Washington is the 
state wetland rating systems, which places wetlands in categories based on their rarity, sensitivity, 
our inability to replace them, and their functions.  

"Wetland value" means the wetland processes, characteristics, or attributes that are 
considered to benefit society.  

"Wet flood-proofing" means any combination of materials and techniques used to construct 
a structure to allow the entry and exit of floodwaters in a way which will cause no structural 
damage.  

"Wildlife habitat conservation areas" means land management for maintaining wildlife 
species in suitable habitats within their natural geographic distribution so that isolated 
subpopulations are not created. This does not mean maintaining all individuals of all species at 
all times, but it does mean cooperative and coordinated land use planning is critically important 
among counties and cities in a region.  

(Ord. No. 392, § 1, 6-7-2010; Ord. No. 400, § 2, 1-9-2012; Ord. No. 401, §§ 1, 2, 6-11-2012; 
Ord. No. 434 , § 1, 1-30-2017)  

Agenda Item Page 49 of 133

Packet Page 51 of 308



 
 
 
816 Second Ave  (206) 343-0681 Ext. 118 
Suite 200  email tim@futurewise.org 
Seattle, WA 98104  futurewise.org 
 

 
February 2, 2018 
 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Attn. CAO UPDATE 
100 W. Broadway, Suite 31 
Montesano, Washington 98563 
 
Dear Madams and Sirs: 
 

Sent via U.S. mail and email to: pdb@co.grays-harbor.wa.us; jhewitt@co.grays-harbor.wa.us 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Grays Harbor County Critical Area 
Protection Ordinance Update. In short, we strongly support the critical areas update. We 
believe that the update is clearly written and contains many helpful protections for water 
quality, people, and property. We do have some suggestions to protect these important 
resources and people and property below. 
 
Futurewise works throughout Washington State to support land-use policies that encourage 
healthy, equitable, and opportunity-rich communities, and that protect our most valuable 
farmlands, forests, and water resources. Futurewise has members across Washington State 
including Grays Harbor County. 

 
The Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update has many excellent provisions. We could 
include a long list of the provisions we support, but we want to highlight a few: 

 The Section 20 Mitigation Sequencing provisions on page 12. Replacing lost critical areas 
can be expensive. Avoiding and minimizing impacts can save applicants time and money. 

 Including as a criterion for reasonable use exemptions that granting the exception will not 
create hazards for the occupants or users of the use or activity or nearby properties. See 
Section 30 on pages 20 through 22. This criterion will protect people and property from 
damage by natural hazards. 

 We strongly support the proposed wetland buffers in Section 36. The proposed buffers 
are consistent with current scientific recommendations.1 

                                                 
1 Teri Granger, Tom Hruby Ph.D., Andy McMillan, Douglas Peters, Jane Rubey, Dyanne Sheldon, Stephen 
Stanley, & Erik Stockdale, Wetlands in Washington State Volume 2 – Protecting and Managing Wetlands (Ecology 
Publication #05-06-008: April 2005) Appendix 8-C Guidance on Widths of Buffers and Ratios for 
Compensatory Mitigation for Use with the Western Washington Wetland Rating System Modified to use with the 
2014 Washington State Rating System for Western Washington (October 2014) accessed on Jan. 30, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/0506008.html and on the CAO on CD enclosed with 

Agenda Item Page 50 of 133

Packet Page 52 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 Section 54C.1.a requires the identification of any geologically hazardous area that has a 
potential to damage any proposed buildings, utilities, or accesses. This is important 
because landslides and some other geologically hazardous areas can harm people and 
property at a significant distance. Recent research shows that long runout landslides are 
more common than had been realized.2 This research documents that over the past 2000 
years, the average landslide frequency of long runout landsides in the area near the Oso 
landslide is one landslide every 140 years.3 The landslides ran out from 787 feet to the 
2,000 feet of the 2014 landside.4 So it is important to consider geological hazards that can 
harm people and property as this provision does. We strongly support Section 54C.1.a. 

 We strongly support the improvements to Section 54, 55, and 56 to protect people and 
property from geological hazards. This will help reduce risks to people and property in 
new developments. However, the 40-foot-wide landslide hazard buffers in proposed 
Section 56C.1 are not adequate to protect people and property from landslides. Please see 
page 14 of this letter for our recommendations to address this problem. 

 The standards for tsunami hazard areas in Section 56D. These provisions will help reduce 
risks from tsunamis for new development. 

 
We do have some recommendations to improve the Critical Area Protection Ordinance 
Update. These recommendations are: 

 We recommend that the standards for marking buffers in Section 26 also apply to fish and 
wildlife habitat buffers and landslide buffers. This will better protect the buffers long-term 
and the fish and wildlife habitats and people and property the buffers protect. Please see 
page 4 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 The aquifer recharge areas regulations in Article III should designate and protect all 
known aquifers used for wells in addition to wellhead protection areas and permeable 
soils. These aquifers provide important water sources for homes and businesses and 
should be protected. Please see page 4 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

                                                 
the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services (Sept. 21, 2017) 
in Data CD 1 in the “Wetlands” directory with the filename “0506008part1.pdf.” 
2 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY pp. *2 – 3, 
published online on 22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1; Geological Society of America (GSA) Data 
Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent 
postglacial hillslope instability p. 4 both enclosed with this letter in a separate email. Geology is a peer-reviewed 
scientific journal. Geology – Prep webpage accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://www.geosociety.org/GSA/Publications/Journals/Geology/GSA/Pubs/geology/home.aspx#overview 
and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 
3 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY p. *2, published 
online on 22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1. 
4 Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4. 

Agenda Item Page 51 of 133

Packet Page 53 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

 Amend proposed Section 42 to protect aquifers from salt water intrusion and to protect 
ground water quantity, quality, and senior water rights holders. Again, these aquifers are 
important water sources for homes and businesses and should be protected from 
contamination and overuse. Please see page 5 of this letter for our specific 
recommendations. 

 Amend Section 48 to require the protection of new development from sea level rise. Sea 
level rise is increasing the potential for flood damage. Please see page 10 of this letter for 
our specific recommendations. 

 Include landslide runout areas in the designation of geological hazards in Section 53. 
Landslide runouts are deadly and damage homes.5 Designating these areas as landslide 
hazards will help protect people and property. Please see page 13 of this letter for our 
specific recommendations. 

 The 40-foot-wide landslide hazard buffers in proposed Section 56C.1 are not adequate to 
protect people and property from landslides. We recommend setting landslide buffers 
based on the specific characteristics of the landslide hazard area. Please see page 14 of this 
letter for our specific recommendations. 

 Earthquakes can also cause significant damage, particularly in areas where the geology and 
soils focus earthquake energy or where soils liquify or weaken during earthquakes. Twelve 
percent of the buildings in unincorporated Grays Harbor County are estimated to be built 
on soils with a moderate-high risk of liquefaction.6 More precisely designating these areas 
and adopting regulations to protect buildings sited in these areas can protect people and 
property. Please see page 14 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 We recommend the update reference the most recent edition of priority habitats and 
species list and the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife priority habitats 
and species management recommendations. This will make it easier to keep the Critical 
Area Protection Ordinance up to date. Please see page 18 of this letter for our specific 
recommendations. 

 Section 57A.3 designates habitats of local importance as fish and wildlife habitat 
conservation areas which we support. But the habitats are not identified and a process is 
not included to designate them. The update should either identify habitats of local 
importance or include a process for designating them in Section 57. Please see page 18 of 
this letter for our specific recommendations. 

                                                 
5 State of Washington Department of Natural Resources, Significant Deep-Seated Landslides in Washington State – 
1984 to 2014 p. 1 of 5 (2/10//2015) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
https://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/ger_list_large_landslides.pdf?npckb23 and enclosed with the paper 
original of this letter. 
6 FEMA, Risk Report (DRAFT) For Grays Harbor County including the Cities of Aberdeen, Cosmopolis, Hoquiam, Ocean 
Shores, Westport, Montesano, McCleary, Elma, and Oakville p. 11 (Oct. 9, 2014) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://www.starr-
team.com/starr/RegionalWorkspaces/RegionX/Documents/GH_Coastal_Study/DRAFT_GraysHarbor_Risk_
Report_Draft_10092014.pdf and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 

Agenda Item Page 52 of 133

Packet Page 54 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 4 
 

 

 
We strongly support Section 26 which requires critical areas buffers, signs, and fencing to 
protect wetland buffers. Peer-reviewed studies show that buffers which are marked and 
fenced are less likely to be cleared or otherwise damaged.7 Those same considerations apply to 
fish and wildlife habitat buffers and landslide hazard buffers. We recommend that Section 26 
also apply to fish and wildlife habitat buffers and landslide buffers. 

 
While this article is labeled as article II, the “General Requirements” are also labeled as article 
II. We recommend that the articles following the first article II, and the following articles, be 
renumbered. 

 

 
The Growth Management Act requires all counties and cities to designate and protect the 
ground water based drinking water sources on which many Grays Harbor County residents 
and businesses depend.8 The screen shots from the State of Washington Department of 
Ecology’s Water Resources Explorer, included with the paper original of this letter, show 
ground water collectors and wells in Grays Harbor County. Many of the wells are 
concentrated in the County’s alluvial valleys. So, the ground water in these areas is used for 
public potable water supplies and needs to be designated and protected as aquafer recharge 
areas. 
 
Local regulations are needed to protect the aquifers. As the State of Washington Department 
of Ecology recommends: 
 

                                                 
7 Thurston Regional Planning Council, Tracking Developments on Streams and Wetlands and 69 (Nov. 2001) 
accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: http://www.trpc.org/ArchiveCenter/ViewFile/Item/69 and on the CAO on CD 
enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services 
(Sept. 21, 2017) in Data CD 1 in the “Wetlands” directory with the filename 
“tracking_developments_nov_2001.pdf.” 
8 RCW 36.70A.060(2). 

Agenda Item Page 53 of 133

Packet Page 55 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 5 
 

Federal and state laws and rules do not replace local planning, ordinances, and 
programs. Local jurisdictions should maintain the ability to protect ground 
water under their own authority. Local government can focus on local 
conditions in a way that the state cannot. 
 
…. 
 
Local government planning can influence the types of  future developments 
that occur in various areas and may be able to encourage potentially 
contaminating facilities to locate in areas where the aquifer has a lower 
susceptibility if  contaminants are released. In this way the potential for aquifer 
pollution is lowered and the public is protected. Land use planning at the local 
level is the most effective way to influence where facilities choose to locate.9 

 
So, we recommend that the aquifers that recharge the wells identified above be designated in 
Section 40 as Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas and be protected. The following section 
discusses some additional improvements to the protection requirements. 
 

 
RCW 36.70A.060(2) requires that “[e]ach county and city shall adopt development regulations 
that protect critical areas that are required to be designated under RCW 36.70A.170.” This 
includes areas with a critical recharging effect on aquifers used for potable water.10 
 
There is very limited water available for new uses in Grays Harbor County outside of existing 
water providers.11 A new right to use surface or ground water cannot be obtained to support a 

                                                 
9 Laurie Morgan, Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas Guidance Document p. 31 (Washington State Department of 
Ecology, Water Quality Program: January 2005 Publication Number 05-10-028) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/0510028.html and included on the CAO on CD 
enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services 
(Sept. 21, 2017) on Data CD 1 in the “CARA” directory with the filename “0510028.PDF.” 
10 RCW 36.70A.030(5); RCW 36.70A.170(1)(d). 
11 State of Washington Department of Ecology Water Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Queets-
Quinault Watershed, WRIA 21 p. 1 (Publication Number: 11-11-026: rev. Aug. 2012) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111026.html and enclosed in a separate email to 
Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017; State of Washington Department of 
Ecology Water Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Lower Chehalis & Upper Chehalis Watersheds, WRIAs 
22 & 23 p. 1 (Publication Number: 11-11-027: rev. Nov. 2016) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111027.html and enclosed in an email Grays Harbor 
County Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017; State of Washington Department of Ecology Water 
Resource Program, Focus on Water Availability Willapa Watershed, WRIA 24 pp. 1 – 2 (Publication Number: 11-11-
028 rev. Aug. 2012) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111028.html and enclosed in an email Grays Harbor 
County Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017. 

Agenda Item Page 54 of 133

Packet Page 56 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 6 
 

 

new development unless the request is mitigated, which often requires acquiring a senior water 
right.12 
 
Ecology also writes that “[g]roundwater in some areas located near the Grays Harbor and 
Pacific Ocean shoreline has the potential for seawater intrusion.”13 Salt water intrusion can 
worsen until wells “must be abandoned due to contaminated, unusable water.”14 Salt water 
intrusion is often worsened by over-pumping an aquifer.15 For these reasons, the Western 
Washington Growth Management Hearings Board has held that Growth Management Act 
requires counties to designate vulnerable seawater intrusion areas as critical aquifer recharge 
areas.16 The Board also held that counties must adopt development regulations “to protect 
aquifers used for potable water from further seawater degradation.”17 We use a chloride level 
of 100 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of well water below as a trigger for review for sea water 
intrusion because that level is generally used as an indicator of sea water intrusion.18 
 
To address the limited water availability, salt water intrusion problems, and to comply with 
state law, we recommend proposed the addition of the following to Section 42 with our 
additions double underlined.  
 

F. Access to potable water. 
 
1. If a State of Washington Department of Health 

(DOH) approved public water system is available, 
                                                 
12 Id. at p. 2. 
13 State of Washington Department of Ecology Water Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Lower 
Chehalis & Upper Chehalis Watersheds, WRIAs 22 & 23 p. 2 (Publication Number: 11-11-027: rev. Nov. 2016). 
14 Emily B. Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 7 
(United States Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-
92-023) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyNET.exe/200060G4.TXT?ZyActionD=ZyDocument&Client=EPA&Index=1991
+Thru+1994&Docs=&Query=&Time=&EndTime=&SearchMethod=1&TocRestrict=n&Toc=&TocEntry=&
QField=&QFieldYear=&QFieldMonth=&QFieldDay=&IntQFieldOp=0&ExtQFieldOp=0&XmlQuery=&File
=D%3A%5Czyfiles%5CIndex%20Data%5C91thru94%5CTxt%5C00000004%5C200060G4.txt&User=ANON
YMOUS&Password=anonymous&SortMethod=h%7C-
&MaximumDocuments=1&FuzzyDegree=0&ImageQuality=r75g8/r75g8/x150y150g16/i425&Display=p%7Cf
&DefSeekPage=x&SearchBack=ZyActionL&Back=ZyActionS&BackDesc=Results%20page&MaximumPages=
1&ZyEntry=1&SeekPage=x&ZyPURL# and enclosed with the paper version of this letter. 
15 Id. 
16 Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, Western Washington Growth Management Hearings Board 
(WWGMHB) Case No. 01-2-0015, Final Decision and Order (Jan. 10, 2002), at *8 & *16 motion for 
reconsideration denied Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, WWGMHB Case No. 01-2-0015, Order 
Denying Motion for Reconsideration (Feb. 8, 2002), at *3, both orders accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.gmhb.wa.gov/search/case 
17 Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, WWGMHB Case No. 01-2-0015, Final Decision and Order (Jan. 
10, 2002), at *15. 
18 Emily B. Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 21 
(United States Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-
92-023). 

Agenda Item Page 55 of 133

Packet Page 57 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 7 
 

 

all new lots, buildings, or uses must connect to the 
system. In that case, the water purveyor shall 
provide the applicant with a letter stating 
purveyor has the ability to provide water. This letter 
must be submitted with an application for a 
division of land or a building permit application. 

 
2. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, an applicant shall provide the following 
information with an application for a division of 
land or a building permit application: 

 
i. Documentation that the source includes 

sufficient water to serve the proposed use 
and any necessary fire flows. 

 
ii. Documentation that the applicant has the 

legal right to use the water. This requirement 
shall not apply to permit-exempt wells. 

 
iii. If a permit-exempt well is proposed for the 

water source, the applicant shall identify all 
land in a common ownership currently and 
before any land divisions and document 
that the proposed use and any other uses of 
the land currently or formerly in a common 
ownership will not exceed the daily 
maximum withdrawal authorized by a 
permit-exempt well. 

 
G. Mitigation of salt water intrusion. In addition to the 

requirements of Subsection 43F, the following 
requirements apply within areas mapped by the State of 
Washington Department of Ecology as susceptible to salt 
water intrusion or within a 100 feet of groundwater 
source with chloride concentrations above 100 
milligrams per liter (mg/l) of water: 
 
1. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, the following requirements must be met 
in order to use a well as a water source: 

Agenda Item Page 56 of 133

Packet Page 58 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 8 
 

 

 
i. The proposed use shall incorporate the 

water conservation measures from the list 
maintained by the administrator applicable 
to the proposed development. 

 
ii. The chloride concentration from a 

laboratory-certified well water sample shall 
be submitted with building permit 
application or land division application. 

 
iii. The applicant must provide a scientific 

report prepared and stamped by a 
hydrogeologist documenting and providing 
evidence that there will not be further salt 
water intrusion as a result of the proposed 
withdrawal.19 The administrator may hire a 
hydrogeologist to review the report, its data, 
and methodology. 

 
iv. If the sample does not meet the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency 
secondary standard for chloride (250 mg/l) 
under the National Secondary Drinking 
Water Regulations, then it cannot be used 
as a water source for a land division or a 
building permit other than a single-family 
home on an individual lot. 

 
v. If the sample does not meet the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency 
secondary standard for chloride (250 mg/L) 
under the National Secondary Drinking 
Water Regulations, then it may be used as 
water source for a building permit on an 
individual lot only if the following 
requirements are met: 

                                                 
19 This requirement is based on the Washington State Department of Ecology’s salt water intrusion policy. See 
Emily B. Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 21 
(United States Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-
92-023). 

Agenda Item Page 57 of 133

Packet Page 59 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 9 
 

 

 
a. The applicant obtains a variance from 

WAC Title 173 standards granted by 
Ecology per WAC 173-160-106 for a 
new groundwater well; or for an 
existing groundwater well not subject 
to an Ecology variance, applicant 
must provide a hydrogeologic 
assessment as part of an aquifer 
recharge area report, which shall be 
transmitted to Ecology for review, 
demonstrating that use of the well 
does not cause any detrimental 
interference with existing water rights 
and is not detrimental to the public 
interest; 

 
b. The property owner shall record a 

restrictive covenant that indicates a 
chloride reading exceeded the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency 
secondary standard for chloride (250 
mg/l) under the National Secondary 
Drinking Water Regulations. 

 
c. A source-totalizing meter shall be 

installed and reported to the 
Administrator annually. 

 
d. The well water shall be tested for its 

chloride concentration each year, 
with the results reported to the 
Administrator annually. 

 
2. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, a qualifying alternative system that 
meets the requirements of the DOH and the 
Department of Ecology may be used as proof of 
potable water. 

 
The County should establish a program to monitor the results of the initial chloride 
concentration tests, the annual chloride concentration tests, and the volumes of water 

Agenda Item Page 58 of 133

Packet Page 60 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 10 
 
pumped. The county should compare the volumes pumped with recharge estimates. Based on 
this and other available data, the County should periodically review and update its regulations 
to prevent increases in salt water intrusion. 

 

 
RCW 36.70A.170(1)(d) and RCW 36.70A.030(5) provide that each county and each city “shall 
designate where appropriate: … Critical areas” including frequently flooded areas and 
geologically hazardous areas. RCW 36.70A.060(2) provides that “[e]ach county and city shall 
adopt development regulations that protect critical areas that are required to be designated 
under RCW 36.70A.170.” 
 
Sea level rise is a real problem that is happening now. Sea level is rising and floods and erosion 
are increasing. In 2012 the National Research Council concluded that global sea level had risen 
by about seven inches in the 20th Century and would likely rise by 24 inches on the 
Washington coast by 2100.20 NOAA has documented that sea level rise could be as high as 
two meters, six and half feet, by 2100.21 The general extent of the two to six and a half feet of 
sea level rise currently projected for coastal waters can be seen on the NOAA Office for 
Coastal Management Digitalcoast Sea Level Rise Viewer available at: 
https://coast.noaa.gov/digitalcoast/tools/slr.html  
 
Some Washington State local governments are already address sea level rise. While these 
efforts are helpful, more comprehensive approaches are needed due to the adverse effects of 
sea level rise on the state’s shorelines. Two to six and a half feet of sea level rise will 
substantially increase flooding. As Ecology writes, “[s]ea level rise and storm surge[s] will 
increase the frequency and severity of flooding, erosion, and seawater intrusion—thus 
increasing risks to vulnerable communities, infrastructure, and coastal ecosystems.”22 Not only 
our marine shorelines will be impacted, as Ecology writes “[m]ore frequent extreme storms 
are likely to cause river and coastal flooding, leading to increased injuries and loss of life.”23 
 

                                                 
20 National Research Council, Sea-Level Rise for the Coasts of California, Oregon, and Washington: Past, Present, and Future 
p. 23, p. 156, p. 96, p. 102 (2012) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: https://www.nap.edu/download/13389 and 
enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 
21 NOAA Office for Coastal Management, Frequent Questions Digital Coast Sea Level Rise and Coastal Flooding Impacts 
Viewer p. 8 of 14 (Jan. 2017) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: https://coast.noaa.gov/data/digitalcoast/pdf/slr-
faq.pdf. 
22 State of Washington Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate Washington State’s Integrated Climate 
Response Strategy p. 90 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012) accessed on Jan. 31, 2019 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1201004.html and enclosed with the paper original of 
this letter. 
23 Id. at p. 17. 

Agenda Item Page 59 of 133

Packet Page 61 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 11 
 

 

A peer-reviewed scientific study ranked Washington State 14th in terms of the number of 
people living on land less than one meter above local Mean High Water compared to the 23 
contiguous coastal states and the District of Columbia.24 This amounted to an estimated 
minimum of 18,269 people in 2010.25 One meter, 3.28 feet, is within the projected sea level 
rise estimates of three to four feet or more for the end of this century.26 Zillow recently 
estimated that 31,235 homes in Washington State may be underwater by 2100, 1.32 percent of 
the state’s total housing stock. The value of the submerged homes is an estimated $13.7 
billon.27 Zillow wrote: 
 

It’s important to note that 2100 is a long way off, and it’s certainly possible that 
communities [may] take steps to mitigate these risks. Then again, given the 
enduring popularity of  living near the sea despite its many dangers and 
drawbacks, it may be that even more homes will be located closer to the water 
in a century’s time, and these estimates could turn out to be very conservative. 
Either way, left unchecked, it is clear the threats posed by climate change and 
rising sea levels have the potential to destroy housing values on an enormous 
scale.28 

 
Sea level rise will have an impact beyond rising seas, floods, and storm surges. The National 
Research Council wrote that: 
 

Rising sea levels and increasing wave heights will exacerbate coastal erosion 
and shoreline retreat in all geomorphic environments along the west coast. 
Projections of future cliff and bluff retreat are limited by sparse data in Oregon 
and Washington and by a high degree of geomorphic variability along the 
coast. Projections using only historic rates of cliff erosion predict 10–30 
meters [33 to 98 feet] or more of retreat along the west coast by 2100. An 
increase in the rate of sea-level rise combined with larger waves could 
significantly increase these rates. Future retreat of beaches will depend on the 
rate of sea-level rise and, to a lesser extent, the amount of sediment input and 
loss.29 

 

                                                 
24 Benjamin H. Strauss, Remik Ziemlinski, Jeremy L. Weiss, and Jonathan T. Overpeck, Tidally adjusted estimates of 
topographic vulnerability to sea level rise and flooding for the contiguous United States 7 ENVIRON. RES. LETT. 014033, 4 
(2012) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: http://iopscience.iop.org/1748-9326/7/1/014033/article This journal is 
peer reviewed. Environmental Research Letters “Submission requirements” webpage accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 
at: http://iopscience.iop.org/1748-9326/page/Submission%20requirements. 
25 Id. 
26 Washington State Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate: Washington State’s Integrated Climate 
Response Strategy p. 82 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012). 
27 Krishna Rao, Climate Change and Housing: Will a Rising Tide Sink all Homes? ZILLOW webpage (8/2/2016) 
accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: http://www.zillow.com/research/climate-change-underwater-homes-12890/. 
28 Id. 
29 National Research Council, Sea-Level Rise for the Coasts of California, Oregon, and Washington: Past, Present, and Future 
p. 135 (2012). 

Agenda Item Page 60 of 133

Packet Page 62 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 12 
 

 

A recent paper estimated that “[a]nalysis with a simple bluff erosion model suggests that 
predicted rates of sea-level rise have the potential to increase bluff erosion rates by up to 0.1 
m/yr [meter a year] by the year 2050.”30 This translates to four additional inches of bluff 
erosion a year. 
 
A recent peer-reviewed article estimated that at least 8,018 people in Grays Harbor County 
will be at risk of adverse impacts from sea level rise in 2100.31 This is the highest population at 
risk of any Washington or Oregon county.32 The study authors write that “[t]hese results 
suggest that the absence of protective measures could lead to US population movements of a 
magnitude similar to the twentieth century Great Migration….”33 A substantial population 
outmigration from Grays Harbor County would have significant adverse economic and social 
impacts. The time to adopt protective measures is now. 
 
Homes built today are likely to be in use 2100. And new lots created today will be in use in 
2100. This is why the Washington State Department of Ecology recommends “[l]imiting new 
development in highly vulnerable areas.”34 
 
So, we recommend that Section 48 require that new lots and new buildings be located outside 
the area of likely sea level rise. We recommend the following new regulations be added to 
Section 48. 
 

J. New lots shall be designed and located so that the buildable area is outside the area 
likely to be inundated by sea level rise in 2100 and outside of the area in which 
wetlands will likely migrate during that time. 

 
K. Where lots are large enough, new structures and buildings shall be located so that 

they are outside the area likely to be inundated by sea level rise in 2100 and outside 
of the area in which wetlands and aquatic vegetation will likely migrate during that 
time. 

                                                 
30 George M. Kaminsky, Heather M. Baron, Amanda Hacking, Diana McCandless, David S. Parks, Mapping and 
Monitoring Bluff Erosion with Boat-based LIDAR and the Development of a Sediment Budget and Erosion Model for the Elwha 
and Dungeness Littoral Cells, Clallam County, Washington p. 3 accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.coastalwatershedinstitute.org/Final%20Report_Clallam%20County%20Bluffs%202014_Final%20re
vised.pdf. 
31 Mathew E. Hauer, Jason M. Evans, and Deepak R. Mishra, Millions projected to be at risk from sea-level rise in the 
continental United States NATURE CLIMATE CHANGE Letters Advance Online Publication p. 3 (Published Online: 
14 March 2016 | DOI: 10.1038/NCLIMATE2961) and enclosed in a separate email on Sept. 21, 2017. Nature 
Climate Change is a peer-reviewed science journal. See the Author Instructions accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://mts-nclim.nature.com/cgi-bin/main.plex?form_type=display_auth_instructions enclosed with the article. 
32 Mathew E. Hauer, Jason M. Evans, and Deepak R. Mishra, Millions projected to be at risk from sea-level rise in the 
continental United States NATURE CLIMATE CHANGE Letters Advance Online Publication p. 3 (Published Online: 
14 March 2016 | DOI: 10.1038/NCLIMATE2961). 
33 Id. at p. 1. 
34 State of Washington Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate Washington State’s Integrated Climate 
Response Strategy p. 90 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012). 

Agenda Item Page 61 of 133

Packet Page 63 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 13 
 

 

 
The Grays Harbor County 2011 – 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan states that “landslides happen 
frequently in Grays Harbor County.”35 The March 22, 2014, Oso landslide “claimed the lives 
of 43 people, making it the deadliest landslide event in United States history. Of the 
approximately 10 individuals who were struck by the landslide and survived, several sustained 
serious injuries.”36 So properly designating geologically hazardous areas is very important. 
 
“The GMA directs counties and cities to designate critical areas. RCW 36.70A.170. RCW 
36.70A.030(5) lists types of critical areas: (1) fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, (2) 
wetlands, (3) frequently flooded areas, (4) critical aquifer recharge areas, and (5) geologically 
hazardous areas.”37 “‘Geologically hazardous areas’ means areas that because of their 
susceptibility to erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other geological events, are not suited to the 
siting of commercial, residential, or industrial development consistent with public health or 
safety concerns.”38 “[T]he GMA requires the county to designate and protect all critical areas 
within its boundaries.”39 
 
Landslides are capable of damaging commercial, residential, or industrial development at both 
the tops and toes slopes due to the earth sliding and other geological events.40 So the areas at 
the top, toe, and sides of the slope are geological hazards. Section 54 must designate them as 
geologically hazardous areas. 
 

                                                 
35 Grays Harbor County 2011 – 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan p. 121 accessed on Jan 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.co.grays-
harbor.wa.us/Emergency%20Management/2011%20Grays%20Harbor%20Hazard%20Plan%20-
%20FINAL.pdf and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 
36 Jeffrey R. Keaton, Joseph Wartman, Scott Anderson, Jean Benoît, John deLaChapelle, Robert Gilbert, David 
R. Montgomery, The 22 March 2014 Oso Landslide, Snohomish County, Washington p. 1 (Geotechnical Extreme 
Events Reconnaissance (GEER): July 22, 2014) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.geerassociation.org/index.php/component/geer_reports/?view=geerreports&layout=build&id=30 
and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County 
Department of Public Services (Sept. 21, 2017) on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards 
with the filename “GEER_Oso_Landslide_Report.pdf.” If the American territories are included, then the Oso 
landslide is the second deadliest landslide in American history. R.M. Iverson, D.L. George, K. Allstadt, Landslide 
mobility and hazards: implications of the Oso disaster 412 EARTH AND PLANETARY SCIENCE LETTERS 197, 198 (2015). 
37 Ferry Cty. v. Concerned Friends of Ferry Cty., 155 Wn.2d 824, 832, 123 P.3d 102, 106 (2005). 
38 RCW 36.70A.030(9). 
39 Stevens Cty. v. Futurewise, 146 Wn. App. 493, 511, 192 P.3d 1, 10 (2008) review denied Stevens County v. Futurewise, 
165 Wn.2d 1038, 205 P.3d 132 (2009). 
40 Jeffrey R. Keaton, Joseph Wartman, Scott Anderson, Jean Benoît, John deLaChapelle, Robert Gilbert, David 
R. Montgomery, The 22 March 2014 Oso Landslide, Snohomish County, Washington p. 1 & p. 68 (Geotechnical 
Extreme Events Reconnaissance (GEER): July 22, 2014). 

Agenda Item Page 62 of 133

Packet Page 64 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 14 
 

 
The Grays Harbor County 2011 – 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan states that “landslides happen 
frequently in Grays Harbor County.”41 Landslide hazards are capable of damaging property at 
significant distances. The 2014 Oso slide ran out for over a mile (5,500 feet) even through the 
slope height was 600 feet.42 Recent research shows that long runout landslides are more 
common than had been realized.43 This research documents that over the past 2000 years, the 
average landslide frequency of long runout landsides in the area near the Oso landslide is one 
landslide every 140 years.44 The landslides ran out from 787 feet to the 2,000 feet of the 2014 
landside.45 The 2013 Ledgewood-Bonair Landslide on Whidbey Island extended approximately 
300 feet into Puget Sound.46 In a study of shallow landslides along Puget Sound from Seattle 
to Everett, the average runout length was 197.5 feet (60.2 m) and the maximum runout length 
was 771 feet (235 m).47 
 
In addition to protecting people from natural hazards, updated geologically hazardous 
regulations also protect a family’s largest asset: Their home. Homeowners insurance does not 
cover the damage from landslides. “Insurance coverage for landslides is uncommon. It is 

                                                 
41 Grays Harbor County 2011 – 2016 Hazard Mitigation Plan p. 121. 
42 Jeffrey R. Keaton, Joseph Wartman, Scott Anderson, Jean Benoît, John deLaChapelle, Robert Gilbert, David 
R. Montgomery, The 22 March 2014 Oso Landslide, Snohomish County, Washington p. 56 & p. 144 (Geotechnical 
Extreme Events Reconnaissance (GEER): July 22, 2014). 
43 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY pp. *2 – 3, 
published online on 22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1; Geological Society of America (GSA) Data 
Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent 
postglacial hillslope instability p. 4 both enclosed with the paper original of this letter. Geology is a peer-reviewed 
scientific journal. Geology – Prep webpage accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
http://www.geosociety.org/GSA/Publications/Journals/Geology/GSA/Pubs/geology/home.aspx#overview 
and enclosed with enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 
44 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY p. *2, published 
online on 22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1. 
45 Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-
runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4. 
46 Stephen Slaughter, Isabelle Sarikhan, Michael Polenz, and Tim Walsh, Quick Report for the Ledgewood-Bonair 
Landslide, Whidbey Island, Island County, Washington pp. 3 – 4 (Washington State Department of Natural Resources, 
Division of Geology and Earth Resources: March 28, 2013). Accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/ger_qr_whidbey_island_landslide_2013.pdf and on the CAO on CD 
enclosed with the paper original Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo 
Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “ger_qr_whidbey_island_landslide_2013.pdf.” 
47 Edwin L. Harp, John A. Michael, and William T. Laprade, Shallow-Landslide Hazard Map of Seattle, Washington p. 
17 (U.S. Geological Survey Open-File Report 2006–1139: 2006) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2006/1139/ and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original Futurewise’s 
Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “of06-
1139_508.pdf.” 

Agenda Item Page 63 of 133

Packet Page 65 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 15 
 

 

almost never a standard coverage, and is difficult to purchase inexpensively as a policy 
endorsement.”48 
 
None of the Oso victims’ homes were covered by insurance for landslide hazards.49 And that 
is common when homes are damaged by landslides.50 For example, on March 14, 2011, a 
landslide damaged the home of Rich and Pat Lord.51 This damage required the homeowners 
to abandon their home on Norma Beach Road near Edmonds, Washington. Because their 
homeowners insurance did not cover landslides, they lost their home.52 This loss of what may 
be a family’s largest financial asset is common when homes are damaged or destroyed by 
landslides or other geological hazards. 
 
Landslide buyouts are rare and when they occur the property owner often only recovers 
pennies on the dollar. The property owners bought out after the Aldercrest-Banyon landslide 
in Kelso, Washington destroyed their homes received 30 cents on the dollar.53 This underlines 
why preventing development in geologically hazardous areas is just plain ordinary consumer 
protection. 
 
While we appreciate the improved measures for designating and protecting people and 
property from landslide hazards, proposed Section 56C.1, on page 60, only requires 40-foot 
buffers from the top and toe of the slope of identified landslides. As the above runout 
distances show, this is not adequate to protect people and property from landslides. We 
recommend that the regulations require the site-specific identification of landslide top of slope 
and slope faces subject to failure and sliding, toe of slope areas subject to impact from down 
slope run-out, and buffers for areas subject to landslide hazards include the top of slope, 
bottom of slope and sides of the hazard. The Joint SR 530 Landslide Commission 
recommends identifying “[c]ritical area buffer widths based on site specific geotechnical 

                                                 
48 Robert L. Schuster & Lynn M. Highland, The Third Hans Cloos Lecture: Urban landslides: socioeconomic impacts and 
overview of mitigative strategies 66 BULLETIN OF ENGINEERING GEOLOGY AND THE ENVIRONMENT 1, p. 22 (2007) 
accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
ftp://193.134.202.10/pub/TRAMM/Workshop_EWS/Literature/Schuster_and_Highland_2007_Bulletin_of_E
ngineering_Geology_and_the_Environment.pdf and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. The Bulletin 
of Engineering Geology and the Environment is peer-reviewed. See the Bulletin of Engineering Geology and the 
Environment “em Editorial Manager” login page accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
http://www.editorialmanager.com/boeg/default.aspx 
49 Sanjay Bhatt, Slide erased their homes, but maybe not their loans The Seattle Times (April 2, 2014) accessed on Jan. 23, 
2018 at: http://old.seattletimes.com/html/latestnews/2023278858_mudslidefinancialxml.html 
50 Id. 
51 Ian Terry, Abandoned and trashed after mudslide, Edmonds house now for sale The Herald (Feb. 11, 2015). The house is 
for sale after the bank who held the Lord’s mortgage took ownership of the home. Id. Accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 
at: http://www.heraldnet.com/article/20150211/NEWS01/150219829 and enclosed with the paper original of 
this letter. 
52 Id. at p. *6. 
53 Isabelle Sarikhan, Sliding Thought Blog, Washington’s Landslide Blog Landslide of the Week – Aldercrest Banyon 
Landslide July 29, 2009 accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
https://slidingthought.wordpress.com/2009/07/29/landslide-of-the-week-aldercrest-banyon-landslide/ 

Agenda Item Page 64 of 133

Packet Page 66 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 16 
 

 

studies” as an “innovative development regulation[]” that counties and cities should adopt.54 
Construction should not be allowed in these areas. 
 
In addition, “[s]lope saturation by water is a primary cause of  landslides.”55 So allowing sewage 
disposal systems and drainfields in top of  slope and side slope buffers is a bad idea as the 
additional water may trigger landslides. So that should not be allowed. 
 
We recommend to following revisions to Section 56C.1 with our additions underlined and our 
deletions struck through. 
 

1. Establish and maintain a forty-foot buffers large enough to 
protect existing and proposed development include highways 
and roads from landslide hazards for from the top, side, and 
toe of a the slope for identified as a landslide hazard areas. A 
qualified professional shall recommend the buffers based on a 
site-specific investigation. The administrator may require peer-
review of the recommendations and shall determine the 
required buffers. The administrator may allow the following 
modifications to the buffer: 

 
a. Reduce the buffer if a critical area special study 

prepared by a qualified professional certifies that the 
reduction will adequately protect the proposed 
development, adjacent developments, and critical 
areas.  

b. Locate on-site sewage disposal systems, including 
drainfields, within a toe of slope buffer when a qualified 
professional certifies that there will be no impact to 
existing or proposed development or to the landslide 
hazard. 

  

                                                 
54 The SR 530 Landslide Commission, Final Report p. 31 (Dec. 15, 2014) accessed on Sept. 20, 2017 at: 
http://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/SR530LC_Final_Report.pdf and on the CAO on 
CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo 
Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “SR530LC_Final_Report.pdf” 
55 Lynn M. Highland and Peter Bobrowsky, The Landslide Handbook—A Guide to Understanding Landslides p. 30 
(U.S. Geological Survey Circular 1325, Reston, Virginia: 2008) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
https://pubs.usgs.gov/circ/1325/ and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s 
Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename 
“C1325_508.pdf.” 

Agenda Item Page 65 of 133

Packet Page 67 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 17 
 

 
We appreciate including references to the Washington State Department of Natural 
Resources’ Liquefaction Susceptibility and Site Class maps in the update.56 In 2004, the 
Washington State Department of Natural Resources completed a set of liquefaction maps and 
maps identifying where the geology is likely to amplify ground shaking, referred to as “Site 
Class” maps. These maps represent best available science on the occurrence of these hazards 
which the Growth Management Act requires to the county to include in the development of 
critical areas regulations. 
 
Adopting these maps and protective provisions for these areas will protect people and 
property from hazards resulting from earthquakes. Liquefaction occurs when earthquake 
shaking causes a soil to rapidly lose its strength and behave like quicksand. The soils most 
likely to liquefy are artificial fills and areas of loose sandy soils saturated with water. The 
movement of liquefied soils can rupture pipelines, move bridge abutments and roads, and 
damage buildings. Liquefaction has damaged many buildings during earthquakes including 
Alaska’s Good Friday earthquake, California’s Loma Prieta earthquake, and the Kobe, Japan 
earthquake.57 We recommend that areas classified as having a liquefaction susceptibility of 
“moderate,” “moderate to high,” “high,” and “peat deposit” be identified as geological 
hazards. 
 
The Site Class Map identifies areas where the underlying geology is likely to amplify shaking 
on the ground surface. This is the most damaging effect of an earthquake. So, buildings 
constructed on areas more susceptible to strong shaking area are more likely to be damaged or 
destroyed in an earthquake.58 By identifying these areas and engineering and constructing 
buildings to withstand this shaking, people and property will be better protected from 
earthquake damage. We recommend that areas classified as having a site class of “D to E,” 
“E,” and “F” be designated as geological hazards. 
 
Development regulations requiring review of structures proposed for these areas should be 
adopted to ensure they can withstand the hazards of locating on these soils with their 
amplified earthquake movement. 

                                                 
56 The maps are available at the Geologic Information Portal accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.dnr.wa.gov/geologyportal or ftp://ww4.dnr.wa.gov/geology/pubs/ofr04-20/ and on the CAO on 
CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo 
Hazards\Earthquake Hazards. 
57 Stephen P. Palmer, Sammantha L. Magsino, Eric L. Bilderback, James L. Poelstra, Derek S. Folger, and 
Rebecca A. Niggemann, Liquefaction Susceptibility and Site Class Maps of Washington State, By County p. 1 (Washington 
Division of Geology and Earth Resources, Open File Report 2004-20: Sept. 2004) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
ftp://ww4.dnr.wa.gov/geology/pubs/ofr04-20/ofr2004-20_report.pdf and on the CAO on CD enclosed with 
the paper original Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo Hazards\Earthquake 
Hazards with the filename “ofr2004-20_report.pdf.” 
58 Id. at pp. 2 – 3. 

Agenda Item Page 66 of 133

Packet Page 68 of 308



Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Re: Grays Harbor County Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
February 2, 2018 
Page 18 
 

 

 
The Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife regularly updates the priority habitats 
and species list. The most recent list was updated in 2017 and is enclosed with this letter. In 
addition, some of the management recommendations for the priority species, such as the 
mammal recommendations, are being updated as the recommendations are completed for 
individual species. Since the documents listed in Section 58A are references, we recommend 
that Section 58A just reference the most recent priority species and habitats list and state that 
the county will use as references the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Management Recommendations for Washington’s Priority Species. Then the critical areas 
regulations would not need to be revised every time Fish and Wildlife updates a document or 
issues a new document. 
 

 
Section 57A.3 designates habitats of local importance as fish and wildlife habitat conservation 
areas. We support this provision, but the update does not include a process for designating 
habitats of local importance or a list of those habitats. Species of local importance should 
either be designated or a process for designating these species should be included. 
 
Thank you for considering our comments. If you require additional information, please 
contact me at telephone 206-343-0681 Ext. 118 or email tim@futurewise.org 
 
Very Truly Yours, 

 
Tim Trohimovich, AICP 
Director of Planning & Law 
 
Enclosures 

Agenda Item Page 67 of 133

Packet Page 69 of 308



Agenda Item Page 68 of 133

Packet Page 70 of 308



Agenda Item Page 69 of 133

Packet Page 71 of 308



Agenda Item Page 70 of 133

Packet Page 72 of 308



Agenda Item Page 71 of 133

Packet Page 73 of 308



Agenda Item Page 72 of 133

Packet Page 74 of 308



Agenda Item Page 73 of 133

Packet Page 75 of 308



Agenda Item Page 74 of 133

Packet Page 76 of 308



Agenda Item Page 75 of 133

Packet Page 77 of 308



Agenda Item Page 76 of 133

Packet Page 78 of 308



Agenda Item Page 77 of 133

Packet Page 79 of 308



Agenda Item Page 78 of 133

Packet Page 80 of 308



Agenda Item Page 79 of 133

Packet Page 81 of 308



Agenda Item Page 80 of 133

Packet Page 82 of 308



Agenda Item Page 81 of 133

Packet Page 83 of 308



Agenda Item Page 82 of 133

Packet Page 84 of 308



Agenda Item Page 83 of 133

Packet Page 85 of 308



Agenda Item Page 84 of 133

Packet Page 86 of 308



Agenda Item Page 85 of 133

Packet Page 87 of 308



Agenda Item Page 86 of 133

Packet Page 88 of 308



Agenda Item Page 87 of 133

Packet Page 89 of 308



Agenda Item Page 88 of 133

Packet Page 90 of 308



Agenda Item Page 89 of 133

Packet Page 91 of 308



Agenda Item Page 90 of 133

Packet Page 92 of 308



Agenda Item Page 91 of 133

Packet Page 93 of 308



Agenda Item Page 92 of 133

Packet Page 94 of 308



Agenda Item Page 93 of 133

Packet Page 95 of 308



Agenda Item Page 94 of 133

Packet Page 96 of 308



Agenda Item Page 95 of 133

Packet Page 97 of 308



Agenda Item Page 96 of 133

Packet Page 98 of 308



Agenda Item Page 97 of 133

Packet Page 99 of 308



Agenda Item Page 98 of 133

Packet Page 100 of 308



Agenda Item Page 99 of 133

Packet Page 101 of 308



Agenda Item Page 100 of 133

Packet Page 102 of 308



Agenda Item Page 101 of 133

Packet Page 103 of 308



September 30, 2018

Grays Harbor County Planning Division
Attn. CAO UPDATE
100 W. Broadway, Suite 31
Montesano, Washington 98563

Sent via email to:  pdb@co.grays-harbor.wa.us
   jhewitt@co.grays-harbor.wa.us
In Re: Comments on the Final Draft Critical Areas Protection Ordinance Update.

Dear Board and Staff:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Final Draft Critical Areas Protection Ordinance Update. 

oyster growers and caring citizens. The mission of FOGH is to foster and promote the economic, biological, and 
social uniqueness of Washington’s estuaries and ocean coastal environ-ments. The goal of FOGH is to protect 
the natural environment, human health and safety in Grays Harbor and vicinity through science, advocacy, law, 
activism and empowerment.

It is our understanding that you will be receiving and/or have received comments from Tim Trohimovich, Direc-
tor of Planning & Law, Futurewise and Casey Dennehy, Washington Coast Program Manager, Surfrider Foun-
dation, we incorporate those comments by reference.

In general, FOGH supports the document as presented, but has some issues and concerns that we hope can be 
addressed prior to its incorporation into the ordinance.  Futurewise in particular has highlighted many of our 
concerns and has provided detailed analysis and suggestions to remedy these issues.

planning along our Coast, the estuary and riparian shorelines.  For your convenience, we attach a study entitled 
Projected Sea Level Rise for Washington State authored in part by Dr. Ian Miller, Washington Sea Grant.  We 
hope that you will heed the recommendations presented by Futurewise and will review this document for further 
reinforcement for the need of proactive planning, both for land issues and issues of saltwater intrusion.  We 
remind the Board that we have tangible reminders of the impacts of erosion and other hazards in the moving of 
the Quinault Nation Village and similar concerns for the Shoalwater Bay Tribe.

We continue to be concerned about geological hazards and incorporate our previous comments by reference.  

We thank staff and the Board for their attention to this very important update.  With your direction, Grays Har-
bor can become a leader in protecting its current and future residents by having strong, enforceable guidance on 
the development and stewardship of it assets.

Thank you in advance for your consideration of these comments.

Sincerely,

Arthur (R.D.) Grunbaum

Agenda Item Page 102 of 133

Packet Page 104 of 308



1 
 

 
 

CRITICAL AREAS CHECKLIST 
A Technical Assistance Tool From Growth Management Services – updated June 2017 

 
Name of city or county:  Grays Harbor County 
Staff contact, phone, and e-mail address 
 Jane W. Hewitt 360-249-4222 x 1684     jhewitt@co.grays-harbor.wa.us 

INSTRUCTIONS 
This checklist is intended to help local governments update their development 
regulations, as required by RCW 36.70A.130(4) (updated in 2012).  We strongly 
encourage but do not require jurisdictions to complete the checklist and return it to 
Growth Management Services (GMS), along with their updates.  This checklist may be 
used by all jurisdictions, including those local governments planning for resource lands 
and critical areas only.  For general information on update requirements, refer to Keeping 
your Comprehensive Plan and Development Regulations Current: A Guide to the Periodic 
Update Process under the Growth Management Act, August, 2016 and WAC 365-196-610 
(updated in 2015) 
 
Bold items are a GMA requirement or may be related requirements of other state or 
federal laws.  
 
Commerce WAC provisions are advisory under Commerce’s statutory mandate to 
provide technical assistance, RCW 43.330.120 which states that the Department of 
Commerce “…shall help local officials interpret and implement the different requirements 
of the act through workshops, model ordinances, and information materials.”  Bold and 
underlined items are links to Internet sites and may include best practices or other ideas 
to consider.  If you have questions, call GMS at (360) 725-3066. 
 
Updates to Commerce WAC – Revisions to the Commerce WAC relating to critical areas 
have been provided in a table with dates of changes on the Growth Management Act 
Periodic Update web site. The table can be used with this checklist to determine what 
changes have been made since the last update of your critical areas regulations. 

How to fill out the checklist 

Using the current version of your critical areas regulations, fill out each item in the 
checklist.  Select the check box or type in text fields, answering the following question: 

Is this item addressed in your current Critical Areas Ordinance (CAO)? If YES, fill in the 
form with citation(s) to where in the plan or code the item is addressed.  We recommend 
using citations rather than page numbers because they stay the same regardless of how 
the document is printed.  If you have questions about the requirement, follow the 
hyperlinks to the relevant statutory provision or rules.  If you still have questions, visit the 
Commerce Growth Management Services Web page or contact one of the Commerce 
planners assigned to your region. 

Contents 
 
Instructions………….1 
 
Overall 
Requirements……….2 
 
Wetlands………………3 
 
Critical Aquifer 
Recharge Areas…….4 
 
Frequently Flooded 
Areas…………………….5 
 
Geologically 
Hazardous Areas…..6 
 
Fish and Wildlife 
Habitat Conservation 
Areas…………………….7 
 
Anadromous 
Fisheries……………….8 
 
Reason Use 
Exceptions…………….8 
 
Forest Practices 
Regulations…………..8 
 
Stormwater 
Drainage and Water 
Quality………………….9 
 
Regulations for 
Protecting Waters of 
the State……………….9 
 
Good Ideas…………10 

Agenda Item Page 103 of 133

Packet Page 105 of 308



2 
 

 
CRITICAL AREAS 

Regulations protecting critical areas are required by RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1) and WAC 365-
195-900 through 925 provide guidelines.  Guidance can also be found in Commerce’s Critical Areas Assistance 
Handbook  (January, 2007, currently being updated); the Minimum Guidelines WAC 365-190-080 – 130; Best 
Available Science, Chapter 365-195 WAC; and Procedural Criteria, WAC 365-196-485 and WAC 365-196-830, and 
on Growth Management’s Critical Areas and Best Available Science webpage. 

 
Regulations required to protect critical areas 

 
 

Addressed in 
current plan or 

regulations?  If yes, 
note where 

OVERALL REQUIREMENTS 
The CAO includes best available science to clearly designate and protect all critical 
areas that might be found within the jurisdiction.  
1. Designation of Critical Areas  
RCW 36.70A.170(1)(d) required all counties and cities to designate critical areas. RCW 
36.70A.170(2) requires that counties and cities consider the Commerce Minimum 
Guidelines pursuant to RCW 36.70A.050. 
RCW 36.70A.050 directed Commerce to adopt the Minimum Guidelines to classify 
critical areas. WAC 365-190-080 through 130 (updated in 2010) provide guidance on 
defining or “designating” each of the five critical areas. 
WAC 365-190-040 (updated in 2010) outlines the process to classify and designate 
natural resource lands and critical areas. 
2. Definition of Critical Areas 
RCW 36.70A.030 provides definitions for each type of critical area. Sections (5) regarding 
fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas; (9) regarding geologically hazardous areas; 
and (21) regarding wetlands were updated in 2010. 
WAC 365-190-030 (updated 2010) provides definitions in the Minimum Guidelines. 
3. Protection of Critical Areas 
RCW 36.70A.060 (2) required counties and cities to adopt development regulations that 
protect the critical areas required to be designated under RCW 36.70A.170.  
RCW 36.70A.172(1) requires the inclusion of best available science in developing policies 
and development regulations to protect the functions and values of critical areas. In 
addition, counties and cities must give special consideration to conservation or 
protection measures necessary to preserve or enhance anadromous fisheries. 
4. Inclusion of Best Available Science 
RCW 36.70A.172(1) requires inclusion of the best available science (BAS). 
Chapter 365-195 WAC outlines recommended criteria for determining which information 
is the BAS, for obtaining the BAS, for including BAS in policies and regulations, for 
addressing inadequate scientific information, and for demonstrating “special 
consideration” to conservation or protection measures necessary to preserve or enhance 
anadromous fisheries. 

WAC 365-195-915 provides criteria for including BAS in the record. 

 
 
 
 
 
See Article I, Sections 
10,11, & 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Definitions, 
Chapter 18.06 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Was inclusion of BAS 
documented in the 
record for the review 
and any updates to the 
critical areas 
regulations? 

 
 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text: 
Article 1, Section 14 

Agenda Item Page 104 of 133

Packet Page 106 of 308



3 
 

WETLANDS DEFINITION 
The definition of wetlands is consistent with RCW 36.70A.030(21) (updated in 2012).   

Is the wetland 
definition consistent 
with  
RCW 36.70A.030(21)? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
See Definitions, 
Chapter 18.06 
 

WETLANDS DELINEATION 
Wetlands are delineated using the 1987 Federal Wetland Delineation Manual and 
Regional Supplements in accordance with WAC 173-22-035 (updated in 2011).   
 
See Ecology’s Wetland Delineation page and WAC 365-190-090 (updated in 2010) for 
additional assistance.    
 

Are wetlands 
delineated using the 
1987 Federal Wetland 
Delineation Manual 
and Regional 
Supplements? 

 Yes 
 No  
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
Article II, Section 34 
 

WETLANDS PROTECTION 

Policies and regulations protect the functions and values of wetlands. RCW 
36.70A.172(1) Counties and cities are encouraged to make their actions consistent with 
the intent and goals of “protection of wetlands”, Executive Order 89-10 as it existed on 
September 1, 1990.  
WAC 365-190-090(3) recommends using a wetlands rating system that evaluates the 
existing wetland functions and values to determine what functions must be protected. 
Ecology updated its recommended wetlands rating systems effective January 2015. For 
information on the rating system, see: 

 2014 Updates to the Washington State Wetland Rating Systems 
 Washington State Wetland Rating System for Western Washington  
 Washington State Wetland Rating System for Eastern Washington 

 
For other resources and guidance on protecting wetlands, go to Ecology’s Local wetland 
regulations: Growth Management Act technical assistance. 
 
 

Do the regulations use 
a rating system to 
determine wetlands 
protection? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text 
Article II, Section 34 

  

Agenda Item Page 105 of 133

Packet Page 107 of 308



4 
 

CRITICAL AQUIFER RECHARGE AREAS 

Policies and regulations protect the functions and values of critical aquifer recharge 
areas. RCW 36.70A.172(1). 
Policies and regulations protect the quality and quantity of groundwater used for 
public water supplies.  RCW 36.70A.070(1) and WAC 365-196-485(1)(d). (Required if 
groundwater is used for potable water.)    
 
The following references also relate to protection of groundwater resources: 

RCW 90.44 – Regulation of Public Groundwaters 
RCW 90.48 – Water Pollution Control (1971) 
RCW 90.54 – Water Resources Act of 1971 
RCW 36.36.020 - Creation of aquifer protection area (1988) 
WAC 365-190-100 Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas (2010) 
WAC 173-100  Groundwater Management Areas and Programs (1988) 
WAC 173-200  Water Quality Standards for Groundwaters of the State of Washington 
(1990) 
WAC 365-196-735 Consideration of state and regional planning provisions (list) 
(2010) 

The Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas Guidance Document (2005) provides information on  
protecting functions and values of critical aquifer recharge areas, best available science, 
how to work with state and local regulations and adaptive management. 
 

Also, consider the following: 

 Prohibiting or strictly regulating hazardous uses in critical aquifer recharge areas 
(CARAs) and designating and protecting wellhead areas. See Ecology’s guidance on 
Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas. 

 Limiting impervious surfaces to reduce stormwater runoff, as required under Phase I 
and II municipal stormwater permits.  Ecology’s Stormwater Manual for Western 
Washington (updated in 2012) includes low impact development (LID) related 
definitions, requirements, and an LID performance standard. See Stormwater 
Management and Design Manuals on Ecology’s web page.  

 See Stormwater Drainage and Water Quality on page 7 of this checklist for additional 
LID resources. 

 
If groundwater is used 
for potable water, do 
regulations protect 
the quality and 
quantity of ground 
water? 

 Yes 
 No  
 N/A 

Location in text: 
Article III, Section 39 
 
 
Are the critical aquifer 
recharge regulations 
consistent with 
current mapping of 
these critical areas? 

 Yes 
 No  
 N/A 

Location in text: 
Article III Section 40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Agenda Item Page 106 of 133

Packet Page 108 of 308



5 
 

FREQUENTLY FLOODED AREAS 
Regulations protect the functions and values of frequently flooded areas and safeguard 
the public from hazards to health and safety. RCW 36.70A.172(1)  WAC 365-196-830 
provides:” "Protection" in this context means preservation of the functions and values of 
the natural environment, or to safeguard the public from hazards to health and safety.” 
WAC 365-190-110 (updated in 2010) directs counties and cities to consider the following 
when designating and classifying frequently flooded areas: 

(a) Effects of flooding on human health and safety, and to public facilities and 
services; 

(b) Available documentation including federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and 
programs, local studies and maps, and federal flood insurance programs, 
including the provisions for urban growth areas in RCW 36.70A.110; 

(c) The future flow flood plain, defined as the channel of the stream and that portion 
 of the adjoining flood plain that is necessary to contain and discharge the base flood 

flow at build out; 
(d) The potential effects of tsunami, high tides with strong winds, sea level rise, and 

extreme weather events, including those potentially resulting from global 
climate change; 

(e) Greater surface runoff caused by increasing impervious surfaces. 
 
Classification of and regulations for frequently flooded areas should not conflict with the 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requirements for the National Flood 
Insurance Program.   See Ecology’s Floods & Floodplain Planning, 86.16 RCW, 173-158 
WAC, and 44 CFR 60.    
 
Communities that are located on Puget Sound or the Strait of San Juan de Fuca, or have 
lakes, rivers or streams that directly or indirectly drain to those water bodies, are subject 
to the National Flood Insurance Program Biological Opinion (BiOp) for Puget Sound 
(https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/30021).  The biological opinion 
required changes to the implementation of the National Flood Insurance Program in 
order to meet the requirements of the Endangered Species Act (ESA) in the Puget Sound 
watershed. FEMA Region X has developed an implementation plan that allows 
communities to apply the performance standards contained in the Biological Opinion by 
implementing: 1) a model ordinance (https://www.fema.gov/media-
library/assets/documents/85339); 2) a programmatic Checklist 
(https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/85336); or 3) on a permit by 
permit basis (https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/85343) as long as 
it can be demonstrated that there is no adverse effect to listed species.    Communities 
have the option of utilizing their CAOs as part of a programmatic response to address the 
requirements of the biological opinion.  FEMA must approve a community’s biological 
opinion compliance strategy.  
 
Additional resources: 
RCW 86.12 Flood Control by Counties  
RCW 86.16 Floodplain Management 
RCW 86.26 State Participation in Flood Control Maintenance 
RCW 86.16.041 Floodplain Management Ordinance and Amendments 
WAC 173-158-070 Requirements  for construction in Special Flood Hazard Areas 

 

 
Are frequently 
flooded areas 
designated and  
regulated using FEMA 
and Ecology 
guidance? 
 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
Article IV, Section 44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Are you utilizing your 
CAO as part of a 
programmatic 
response to the BiOp? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
 

  

Agenda Item Page 107 of 133

Packet Page 109 of 308



6 
 

DEFINITION OF GEOLOGICALLY HAZARDOUS AREAS 
The definition of geologically hazardous areas is consistent with RCW 36.70A.030(9) 
(updated 2012). 
“Geologically hazardous areas" means areas that because of their susceptibility to 
erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other geological events, are not suited to the siting of 
commercial, residential, or industrial development consistent with public health or safety 
concerns. 

Is the geologically 
hazardous areas 
definition consistent 
with  
RCW 36.70A.030(9)? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
See Definitions: 
"geologically 
hazardous areas" 
Chapter 18.02 

PROTECTION OF GEOLOGICALLY HAZARDOUS AREAS  
Regulations protect the functions and values of frequently flooded areas and safeguard 
the public from hazards to health and safety. RCW 36.70A.172(1)  WAC 365-196-830 
(2010) provides:” "Protection" in this context means preservation of the functions and 
values of the natural environment, or to safeguard the public from hazards to health and 
safety.” 
 
Geologically hazardous areas are designated, and their use is regulated or limited 
consistent with public health and safety concerns.  RCW 36.70A.030(9) provides a 
definition (updated in 2012) and WAC 365-190-120 describes the different types of 
hazardous areas (2010): 

 Geologically hazardous areas include: 
 seismic hazards 
 tsunami hazards 
 landslide hazards,  
 areas prone to erosion hazards 
 volcanic hazards 
 channel migration zones 
 areas subject to differential settlement from coal mines or other subterranean 

voids.   
 

 Critical facilities, such as hospitals and emergency response centers, hazardous 
materials storage, etc. should be restricted in hazard zones.   

The Department of Natural Resource’s Geologic Hazards and the Environment website 
includes information on earthquakes and faults, landslides, volcanoes and lahars, 
tsunamis, hazardous minerals, emergency preparedness and includes geologic hazard 
maps. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Are uses in 
geologically 
hazardous areas 
designated and 
regulated or limited 
consistent with public 
health and safety?

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
Article V, Section 53 

  

Agenda Item Page 108 of 133

Packet Page 110 of 308



7 
 

DEFINITION OF FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT AND 
CONSERVATION AREAS 
The definition of fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas is consistent with RCW 
36.70A.030(5) (updated 2012)  and WAC 365-190-030 (updated in 2015). The definition  
of fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas was amended to state that they do not 
include: “such artificial features or constructs as irrigation delivery systems, irrigation 
infrastructure, irrigation canals, or drainage ditches that lie within the boundaries of and 
are maintained by a port district or an irrigation district or company”.     

 

Is the FWHCA 
definition consistent 
with  
RCW 36.70A.030(5)? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
See Definitions: 
Chapter 
18.06 

PROTECTION OF FISH AND WILDLIFE HABITAT AND 
CONSERVATION AREAS 
Policies and regulations protect the functions and values of fish and wildlife habitat 
conservation areas.  RCW 36.70A.172(1) and RCW 36.70A.030(5) (updated 2012).   

WAC 365-190-130(4) encourages to local jurisdictions consult WDFW’s  Priority Habitat 
and Species web site. Recent updates include: 

 Priority Habitat and Species maps (updated daily) 
 Priority Habitats and Species List (updated June 2016) 

 Mazama Pocket Gopher (2011, 2016) 
 Great Blue Heron (2012) 
 Western Gray Squirrel (2010) 

 Water Crossing Design Guidelines (2013) 
 Stream Habitat Restoration Guidelines (2012) 
 Shrub-Steppe (2011) 
 Land Use Planning for Salmon, Steelhead and Trout (2011) 
 Landscape Planning for Washington’s Wildlife (2009) 
 Aquatic Habitat Guidelines (2010, 2010, 2014) 
 Riparian Management recommendations (expected September 2017) 

 
Areas “with a primary association with listed species” should be considered per WAC 
365-190-130(2)(a). Recent uplistings and delistings are: 

 Uplisting of marbled murrelet to State Endangered – February 4, 2017 
 Uplisting of Canada lynx to State Endangered – February 4, 2017 
 Peregrine falcon delisted from State Sensitive – February 4, 2017 

a. The peregrine will remain classified as “protected wildlife” under state 
law (WAC 232-12-011) and will continue to be protected under the 
federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act. 

 Bald Eagle delisted from State Sensitive -  February 4, 2017 
a. 2011: Downlisted from State Threatened to Sensitive (this ended the 

requirement to develop Bald Eagle Protection Plans per WAC 232-12-
292—a change which many CAOs still don’t reflect).  

b. 2007: Delisted from federal Threatened (but still covered by the federal 
Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act) 

 

Have you reviewed 
your regulations 
regarding any 
applicable changes in 
management 
recommendations for 
priority habitats and 
species? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text 
Article VI Sections 57, 
58 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Have you reviewed 
your regulations 
regarding any  
changes in species 
listings? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text 
Section 58 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Page 109 of 133

Packet Page 111 of 308



8 
 

Also refer to Ecology’s Watershed (WRIA) Plans.  

ANADROMOUS FISHERIES 
Policies and regulations for protecting critical areas give special consideration to 
conservation or protection measures necessary to preserve or enhance anadromous 
fisheries.  RCW 36.70A.172(1) is the requirement and  WAC 365-195-925 (updated in 
2000) lists criteria involved. This requirement applies to all five types of critical areas. 

WAC 365-190-130(4)(i) recommends sources and methods for protecting fish and wildlife 
habitat conservation areas, including salmonid habitat. Counties and cities may use 
information prepared by the United States Department of the Interior Fish and Wildlife 
Service, National Marine Fisheries Service, the Washington State Department of Fish and 
Wildlife, the State Recreation and Conservation Office, and the Puget Sound Partnership 
to designate, protect and restore salmonid habitat. Counties and cities should consider 
recommendations found in the regional and watershed specific salmon recovery plans 
(see the Governor's Salmon Recovery Office webpage and the Puget Sound Partnership’s 
Salmon Recovery webpage). 
Land Use Planning for Salmon, Steelhead and Trout: A land use planner’s guide to 
salmonid habitat protection and recovery (October 2009) is an excellent resource. 
The Washington State Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) website includes 
information on salmon recovery efforts. 

Do your regulations 
give special 
consideration for 
anadromous 
fisheries? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text: 
Section 14 
Section 31 
Section 61 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REASONABLE USE EXCEPTIONS 
The Critical Areas Ordinance (CAO) allows for “reasonable use” if the CAO would 
otherwise deny all reasonable use of property.  Reasonable use provisions should limit 
intrusions into critical areas to the greatest extent possible.  RCW 36.70A.370 (1991).  
Common exemptions include emergencies, remodels that do not further extend into 
critical areas, surveying, walking, and development that has already been completed 
with critical areas review under a previous permit.  See Critical Areas Assistance 
Handbook, p. 37-38. 

Do you have 
reasonable use 
provisions? 
 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text: 
Section 30 

AGRICULTURAL ACTIVITIES NOT UNDER VSP (COUNTIES ONLY) 
Critical areas regulations as they specifically apply to agricultural activities in counties 
or watersheds not participating in the Voluntary Stewardship Program (VSP) have been 
reviewed, and if needed, revised pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130. RCW 36.70A.710(6) 
"Agricultural activities" means all agricultural uses and practices as defined in RCW 
90.58.065. 

Did you review your 
regulations as they 
apply to agricultural 
activities? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

FOREST PRACTICES APPLICATION REGULATIONS 
If applicable, regulations for forest practices have been adopted: RCW 36.70A.570 
(adopted in 2007). 
RCW 76.09.240, amended in 2011, requires many counties over 100,000 in population, 
and the cities and towns within those counties to adopt regulations for forest practices. 
These are often included in clearing and grading ordinances. 

Have you adopted 
forest practices 
regulations?  

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 
 Location in Text: 

 
  

Agenda Item Page 110 of 133

Packet Page 112 of 308



9 
 

STORMWATER DRAINAGE AND WATER QUALITY  
Regulations protect water quality and implement actions to mitigate or cleanse 
drainage, flooding, and storm water run-off  that pollute waters of the state, including 
Puget Sound or waters entering Puget Sound. RCW 36.70A.070(1) 
Regulations may include : 

a) Adoption of a stormwater manual consistent with Ecology’s latest manuals 
for Eastern or Western Washington.  

b) Adoption of a clearing and grading ordinance – See Municipal Research and 
Services Center’s Erosion and Sediment Control: Land Clearing and Grading 
webpage. 

c) Adoption of a low impact development (LID) ordinance. Available LID 
resources include: 

 Ecology’s Stormwater Manual for Western Washington (updated in 
2012) includes low impact development (LID) related definitions, 
requirements, and an LID performance standard. See Stormwater 
Management and Design Manuals on Ecology’s web page.  

 Puget Sound Partnership resource for Information on integrating LID into 
local codes, July 2012.   

 Ecology’s Stormwater Manual webpage has a number of manuals for 
stormwater management and design, including low impact 
development. 

 Washington Stormwater Center webpage: 
http://www.wastormwatercenter.org/low-impact/ includes additional 
suggestions and resources. 

d) Provisions for corrective action for failing septic systems that pollute waters 
of the state.  RCW 36.70A.070(1) 

 

Do you have 
regulations that 
protect water quality? 

 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text 
Sections 15, 29, 59 
 
If required, have you 
incorporated low 
impact development 
standards into your 
regulations? 

 Yes 
 No  
 N/A 

Location in text: 
 

REGULATIONS FOR PROTECTING WATERS OF THE STATE 

RCW 90.48.020 defines waters of the state. WAC 365-190-130(2) (updated in 2010) –
recommends considering designation of all waters of the state, including naturally 
occurring ponds under 20 acres and their submerged aquatic beds that provide fish or 
wildlife habitat.   
Stream types are classified in WAC 222-16-030 (updated in 2006); with field verification, 
or an alternate system that considers factors listed in WAC 365-190-130(4)(f)(iii) 
(updated 2010). See http://www.dnr.wa.gov/forest-practices-water-typing  to use 
Washington State Department of Natural Resources (DNR)’s stream typing system.   
Protect waters of the state by protecting riparian areas by establishing buffers to 
maintain no net loss of riparian ecosystem functions. 
Designating areas that risk contaminating or harming shoreline resources including 
tidelands and bedland suitable for shellfish harvest, kelp and eelgrass beds, forage fish 
spawning areas. 

Do your regulations 
protect waters of the 
state? 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

Location in Text 
Article VI, Section 57 

  

Agenda Item Page 111 of 133

Packet Page 113 of 308



10 
 

GOOD IDEAS 
Non-regulatory measures to protect or enhance functions and values of critical areas 
may be used to complement regulatory methods.  These may include: 

 public education 
 stewardship programs 
 pursuing grant opportunities 
 water conservation 
 joint planning with other jurisdictions and non-profit organizations 
 stream and wetland restoration activities 
 transfer of development rights 

No net loss of critical area functions and values is a recommended approach for 
development regulations in WAC 365-196-830(4). If development regulations allow harm 
to critical areas, they should require compensatory mitigation of the harm. 

 

 

 

 

Monitoring and adaptive management is encouraged in WAC 365-195-905(6) to 
improve implementation of your regulations. Commerce will have a Monitoring chapter 
in the update to the Critical Areas Assistance Handbook. A draft for public review was 
made available in June 2017. Go to the project web page at Commerce Update to Critical 
Areas Guidance to view the draft chapter. 

 

 

 

 

Are you using non-
regulatory measures 
to protect critical 
areas? 

 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text: 
Voluntary 
Stewardship Program 
- not in this document 
 
 
Do your regulations 
address no net loss 
and require 
compensatory 
mitigation? 

 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text: 
Sections 19, 23, 34, 61 
 
Do you have a 
monitoring and 
adaptive management 
program for your 
CAO? 

 Yes 
 No 

Location in Text: 
Section 2 

 

Agenda Item Page 112 of 133

Packet Page 114 of 308



 

816 Second Ave, Suite 200, Seattle, WA 98104  

p. (206) 343-0681 

futurewise.org 

 
 
October 2, 2018 
 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division 
Attn. CAO UPDATE 
100 W. Broadway, Suite 31 
Montesano, Washington 98563 
 
Dear Madams and Sirs: 
 

Sent via U.S. mail and email to: jhewitt@co.grays-harbor.wa.us 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Final Draft Critical Areas Protection Ordinance 
Update. Futurewise strongly supports the update. The update is clearly written and contains many 
helpful protections for water quality, people, property, and the environment. We also have some 
suggestions for improving the update discussed below. 
 
Futurewise works throughout Washington State to support land-use policies that encourage healthy, 
equitable and opportunity-rich communities, and that protect our most valuable farmlands, forests, 
and water resources. Futurewise has supporters throughout Washington State including Grays 
Harbor County. 

 
The Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update has many excellent provisions. We could include a 
long list of the provisions we support, but we want to highlight a few: 

 The Section 20 Mitigation Sequencing provisions on page 12. Replacing lost critical areas can be 
expensive. Avoiding and minimizing impacts can save applicants time and money. 

 Including as a criterion for reasonable use exemptions that granting the exception will not create 
hazards for the occupants or users of the use or activity or nearby properties. See Section 30 on 
pages 20 through 22. This criterion will protect people and property from damage by natural 
hazards. 

 We strongly support the proposed wetland buffers in Section 36. The proposed buffers are 
consistent with current scientific recommendations.1 

 Section 54C.1.a requires the identification of any geologically hazardous area that has a potential 
to damage any proposed buildings, utilities, or accesses. This is important because landslides and 
some other geologically hazardous areas can harm people and property at a significant distance. 

                                                 
1 Teri Granger, Tom Hruby Ph.D., Andy McMillan, Douglas Peters, Jane Rubey, Dyanne Sheldon, Stephen Stanley, & 
Erik Stockdale, Wetlands in Washington State Volume 2 – Protecting and Managing Wetlands (Ecology Publication #05-06-008: 
April 2005) Appendix 8-C Guidance on Widths of Buffers and Ratios for Compensatory Mitigation for Use with the 
Western Washington Wetland Rating System (July 2018 Modified Habitat Score Ranges) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/0506008.html. 

Agenda Item Page 113 of 133

Packet Page 115 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 2 

 
Recent research shows that long runout landslides are more common than had been realized.2 
This research documents that over the past 2000 years, the average landslide frequency of long 
runout landsides in the area near the Oso landslide is one landslide every 140 years.3 The 
landslides ran out from 787 feet to the 2,000 feet of the 2014 landside.4 So it is important to 
consider geological hazards that can harm people and property as this provision does. We 
strongly support Section 54C.1.a. 

 We strongly support the improvements to Section 54, 55, and 56 to protect people and property 
from geological hazards. This will help reduce risks to people and property in new 
developments. However, the 40-foot-wide landslide hazard buffers in proposed Section 56C.1 
are not adequate to protect people and property from landslides. Please see page 16 of this letter 
for our recommendations to address this problem. 

 The standards for tsunami hazard areas in Section 56D. These provisions will help reduce risks 
from tsunamis for new development. 

 
We do have some recommendations to improve the Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update. 
These recommendations are: 

 We recommend that the standards for marking buffers in Section 26 also apply to fish and 
wildlife habitat buffers and landslide buffers. This will better protect the buffers long-term and 
the fish and wildlife habitats and people and property the buffers protect. Please see page 4 of 
this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 The aquifer recharge areas regulations in Article III should designate and protect all known 
aquifers used for wells in addition to wellhead protection areas and permeable soils. These 
aquifers provide important water sources for homes and businesses and should be protected. 
Please see page 5 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 Amend proposed Section 42 to protect aquifers from salt water intrusion and to protect ground 
water quantity, quality, and senior water rights holders. Again, these aquifers are important water 
sources for homes and businesses and should be protected from contamination and overuse. 
Please see page 6 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

                                                 
2 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY pp. *2 – 3, published online on 
22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1; Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data 
repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4 both 
enclosed with Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor County Planning Division in a separate email. 
Geology is a peer-reviewed scientific journal. Geology – Prep webpage accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://www.geosociety.org/GSA/Publications/Journals/Geology/GSA/Pubs/geology/home.aspx#overview and 
enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor County Planning Division. 
3 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY p. *2, published online on 22 
December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1. 
4 Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4. 

Agenda Item Page 114 of 133

Packet Page 116 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 3 

 
 Amend Section 48 to require the protection of new development from sea level rise. Sea level 

rise is increasing the potential for flood damage. Please see page 10 of this letter for our specific 
recommendations. 

 Include landslide runout areas in the designation of geological hazards in Section 53. Landslide 
runouts are deadly and damage homes.5 Designating these areas as landslide hazards will help 
protect people and property. Please see page Error! Bookmark not defined. of this letter for 
our specific recommendations. 

 Require identification of and mitigation for coastal erosion hazards and river and stream bank 
erosion in Sections 55 and 56. This will help protect new development from coastal and river 
and stream erosion. Please see page 10 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 The 40-foot-wide landslide hazard buffers in proposed Section 56C.1 are not adequate to protect 
people and property from landslides. We recommend setting landslide buffers based on the 
specific characteristics of the landslide hazard area. Please see page 16 of this letter for our 
specific recommendations. 

 Earthquakes can also cause significant damage, particularly in areas where the geology and soils 
focus earthquake energy or where soils liquify or weaken during earthquakes. Twelve percent of 
the buildings in unincorporated Grays Harbor County are estimated to be built on soils with a 
moderate-high risk of liquefaction.6 More precisely designating these areas and adopting 
regulations to protect buildings sited in these areas can protect people and property. Please see 
page 16 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 We recommend the update reference the most recent edition of priority habitats and species list 
and the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife priority habitats and species 
management recommendations. This will make it easier to keep the Critical Area Protection 
Ordinance up to date. Please see page 20 of this letter for our specific recommendations. 

 Section 57A.3 designates habitats of local importance as fish and wildlife habitat conservation 
areas which we support. But the habitats are not identified and a process is not included to 
designate them. The update should either identify habitats of local importance or include a 
process for designating them in Section 57. Please see page 20 of this letter for our specific 
recommendations. 

 
Under Section 15D5 on page 7, the first subsection starts with “d,” it appears it should start at “a.” 
 
 
                                                 
5 State of Washington Department of Natural Resources, Significant Deep-Seated Landslides in Washington State – 1984 to 
2014 p. 1 of 5 (2/10//2015) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/ger_list_large_landslides.pdf?npckb23 and enclosed with the paper original of 
Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor County Planning Division. 
6 FEMA, Risk Report (DRAFT) For Grays Harbor County including the Cities of Aberdeen, Cosmopolis, Hoquiam, Ocean Shores, 
Westport, Montesano, McCleary, Elma, and Oakville p. 11 (Oct. 9, 2014) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://www.starr-
team.com/starr/RegionalWorkspaces/RegionX/Documents/GH_Coastal_Study/DRAFT_GraysHarbor_Risk_Report
_Draft_10092014.pdf and enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor 
County Planning Division. 

Agenda Item Page 115 of 133

Packet Page 117 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 4 

 
 

 
While Grays Harbor has not experienced a significant wildfire in recent years, from 2004 – 2013, 
Grays Harbor County “has experienced in excess of 242 wildfires, burning a total of 285 acres.”7 
Unfortunately, global warming is projected to continue to dry fuels in forests in the Western United 
States, increasing the potential for wildfires.8 An increase in the potential for wildfire is projected for 
Grays Harbor County.9 
 
Setbacks from critical areas buffers provide an area in which buildings can be repaired and 
maintained without having to intrude in the buffer. It also allows for the creation of a Home 
Ignition Zone that can protect buildings from wildfires and allow firefighters to attempt to save the 
buildings during a wildfire. Since a 30-foot-wide Home Ignition Zone is important to protect 
buildings,10 we recommend that Section 25 require a setback at least 30 feet wide be required 
adjacent to critical area buffers and critical area buffers in areas in areas subject to wildfire risk. 
Combustible structures, such as decks, should not be allowed within this setback to protect the 
building from wildfires. 
 

 
We strongly support Section 26 which requires critical areas buffers, signs, and fencing to protect 
wetland buffers. Peer-reviewed studies show that buffers which are marked and fenced are less likely 
to be cleared or otherwise damaged.11 Those same considerations apply to fish and wildlife habitat 
buffers and landslide hazard buffers. We recommend that Section 26 also apply to fish and wildlife 
habitat buffers and landslide buffers. 
 
 

                                                 
7 Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1: Planning-Area-Wide Elements Final pp. 
14-8 – 14-9 (July 2018) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://www.co.grays-
harbor.wa.us/departments/emergency_management/Hazard_Mitigation_Planning.php and enclosed with the paper 
original of this letter. 
8 John T. Abatzogloua and A. Park Williams, Impact of anthropogenic climate change on wildfire across western US forests 113 
PNAS (PROCEEDINGS OF THE NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA) 11770 p. 
11771 & p. 11773 (Oct. 18, 2016) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://www.pnas.org/content/113/42/11770. PNAS is 
a peer-reviewed scientific journal. See the PNAS “For Reviewers” webpage accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
http://www.pnas.org/page/authors/reviewers. 
9 Id. 
10 Nation Fire Protection Association “preparing homes for wildfire” webpage accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://www.nfpa.org/Public-Education/By-topic/Wildfire/Preparing-homes-for-wildfire 
11 Thurston Regional Planning Council, Tracking Developments on Streams and Wetlands and 69 (Nov. 2001) accessed 
on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://www.trpc.org/ArchiveCenter/ViewFile/Item/69 and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the 
paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services (Sept. 21, 2017) in Data CD 
1 in the “Wetlands” directory with the filename “tracking_developments_nov_2001.pdf.” 

Agenda Item Page 116 of 133

Packet Page 118 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 5 

 

 
While this article is labeled as article II, the “General Requirements” are also labeled as article II. We 
recommend that the articles following the first article II, and the following articles, be renumbered. 
 

 
The category I forested wetlands retain a 140-foot buffer for wetlands that formerly had a habitat 
score of 5. For other wetlands, that buffer category was deleted. While we do not oppose including 
this buffer, it appears to be an artifact and perhaps should be deleted. 

 

 
The Growth Management Act requires all counties and cities to designate and protect the ground 
water-based drinking water sources on which many Grays Harbor County residents and businesses 
depend.12 The screen shots from the State of Washington Department of Ecology’s Water 
Resources Explorer (included with the paper original of Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division) show ground water collectors and wells in Grays Harbor 
County. Many of the wells are concentrated in the County’s alluvial valleys. So, the ground water in 
these areas is used for public potable water supplies and needs to be designated and protected as 
aquafer recharge areas. 
 
Local regulations are needed to protect the aquifers. As the State of Washington Department of 
Ecology recommends: 
 

Federal and state laws and rules do not replace local planning, ordinances, and 
programs. Local jurisdictions should maintain the ability to protect ground water 
under their own authority. Local government can focus on local conditions in a way 
that the state cannot. 
 
…. 
 
Local government planning can influence the types of  future developments that 
occur in various areas and may be able to encourage potentially contaminating 
facilities to locate in areas where the aquifer has a lower susceptibility if  
contaminants are released. In this way the potential for aquifer pollution is lowered 

                                                 
12 RCW 36.70A.060(2). 

Agenda Item Page 117 of 133

Packet Page 119 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 6 

 
and the public is protected. Land use planning at the local level is the most effective 
way to influence where facilities choose to locate.13 

 
So, we recommend that the aquifers that recharge the wells identified above be designated in Section 
40 as Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas and be protected. The following section discusses some 
additional improvements to the protection requirements. 
 

 
RCW 36.70A.060(2) requires that “[e]ach county and city shall adopt development regulations that 
protect critical areas that are required to be designated under RCW 36.70A.170.” This includes areas 
with a critical recharging effect on aquifers used for potable water.14 
 
There is very limited water available for new uses in Grays Harbor County outside of existing water 
providers.15 A new right to use surface or ground water cannot be obtained to support a new 
development unless the request is mitigated, which often requires acquiring a senior water right.16 
 
Ecology also writes that “[g]roundwater in some areas located near the Grays Harbor and Pacific 
Ocean shoreline has the potential for seawater intrusion.”17 Salt water intrusion can worsen until 
wells “must be abandoned due to contaminated, unusable water.”18 Salt water intrusion is often 
                                                 
13 Laurie Morgan, Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas Guidance Document p. 31 (Washington State Department of Ecology, 
Water Quality Program: January 2005 Publication Number 05-10-028) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/SummaryPages/0510028.html and included on the CAO on CD enclosed 
with the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services (Sept. 21, 2017) on 
Data CD 1 in the “CARA” directory with the filename “0510028.PDF.” 
14 RCW 36.70A.030(5); RCW 36.70A.170(1)(d). 
15 State of Washington Department of Ecology Water Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Queets-Quinault 
Watershed, WRIA 21 p. 1 (Publication Number: 11-11-026: rev. Aug. 2012) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111026.html and enclosed in a separate email to Grays 
Harbor County Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017; State of Washington Department of Ecology Water 
Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Lower Chehalis & Upper Chehalis Watersheds, WRIAs 22 & 23 p. 1 
(Publication Number: 11-11-027: rev. Nov. 2016) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111027.html and enclosed in an email Grays Harbor County 
Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017; State of Washington Department of Ecology Water Resource 
Program, Focus on Water Availability Willapa Watershed, WRIA 24 pp. 1 – 2 (Publication Number: 11-11-028 rev. Aug. 
2012) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1111028.html and 
enclosed in an email Grays Harbor County Department of Public Services on Sept. 21, 2017. 
16 Id. at p. 2. 
17 State of Washington Department of Ecology Water Resources Program, Focus on Water Availability Lower Chehalis & 
Upper Chehalis Watersheds, WRIAs 22 & 23 p. 2 (Publication Number: 11-11-027: rev. Nov. 2016). 
18 Emily B. Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 7 (United 
States Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-92-023) accessed 
on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
http://nepis.epa.gov/Exe/ZyNET.exe/200060G4.TXT?ZyActionD=ZyDocument&Client=EPA&Index=1991+Thru
+1994&Docs=&Query=&Time=&EndTime=&SearchMethod=1&TocRestrict=n&Toc=&TocEntry=&QField=&QFi
eldYear=&QFieldMonth=&QFieldDay=&IntQFieldOp=0&ExtQFieldOp=0&XmlQuery=&File=D%3A%5Czyfiles%
5CIndex%20Data%5C91thru94%5CTxt%5C00000004%5C200060G4.txt&User=ANONYMOUS&Password=anonym
ous&SortMethod=h%7C-
&MaximumDocuments=1&FuzzyDegree=0&ImageQuality=r75g8/r75g8/x150y150g16/i425&Display=p%7Cf&DefSe

Agenda Item Page 118 of 133

Packet Page 120 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 7 

 

 

worsened by over-pumping an aquifer.19 Sea level rise will increase salt water intrusion in Grays 
Harbor County.20 This is why the Western Washington Growth Management Hearings Board has 
held that Growth Management Act requires counties to designate vulnerable seawater intrusion 
areas as critical aquifer recharge areas.21 The Board also held that counties must adopt development 
regulations “to protect aquifers used for potable water from further seawater degradation.”22 We use 
a chloride level of 100 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of well water below as a trigger for review because 
that level is generally used as an indicator of sea water intrusion.23 
 
To address the limited water availability, salt water intrusion problems, and to comply with state law, 
we recommend proposed the addition of the following to Section 42 with our additions underlined. 
 

F. Access to potable water. 
 
1. If a State of Washington Department of Health (DOH) 

approved public water system is available, all new lots, 
buildings, or uses must connect to the system. In that 
case, the water purveyor shall provide the applicant 
with a letter stating purveyor has the ability to provide 
water. This letter must be submitted with an application 
for a division of land or a building permit application. 

 
2. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, an applicant shall provide the following 
information with an application for a division of land or 
a building permit application: 

 
i. Documentation that the source includes 

sufficient water to serve the proposed use and 
any necessary fire flows. 

 

                                                 
ekPage=x&SearchBack=ZyActionL&Back=ZyActionS&BackDesc=Results%20page&MaximumPages=1&ZyEntry=1
&SeekPage=x&ZyPURL# and enclosed with the paper version of Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays 
Harbor County Planning Division. 
19 Id. 
20 Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1: Planning-Area-Wide Elements Final p. 5-
13 (July 2018). 
21 Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, Western Washington Growth Management Hearings Board 
(WWGMHB) Case No. 01-2-0015, Final Decision and Order (Jan. 10, 2002), at *8 & *16 motion for reconsideration 
denied Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, WWGMHB Case No. 01-2-0015, Order Denying Motion for 
Reconsideration (Feb. 8, 2002), at *3, both orders accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: http://www.gmhb.wa.gov/search/case 
22 Olympic Environmental Council v. Jefferson County, WWGMHB Case No. 01-2-0015, Final Decision and Order (Jan. 10, 
2002), at *15. 
23 Emily B. Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 21 (United 
States Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-92-023). 

Agenda Item Page 119 of 133

Packet Page 121 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 8 

 

 

ii. Documentation that the applicant has the legal 
right to use the water. This requirement shall not 
apply to permit-exempt wells. 

 
iii. If a permit-exempt well is proposed for the water 

source, the applicant shall identify all land in a 
common ownership currently and before any 
land divisions and document that the proposed 
use and any other uses of the land currently or 
formerly in a common ownership will not exceed 
the daily maximum withdrawal authorized by a 
permit-exempt well. 

 
G. Mitigation of salt water intrusion. In addition to the 

requirements of Subsection 43F, the following requirements 
apply within areas mapped by the State of Washington 
Department of Ecology as susceptible to salt water intrusion 
or within a 100 feet of groundwater source with chloride 
concentrations above 100 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of water: 
 
1. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, the following requirements must be met in 
order to use a well as a water source: 
 
i. The proposed use shall incorporate the water 

conservation measures from the list maintained 
by the administrator applicable to the proposed 
development. 

 
ii. The chloride concentration from a laboratory-

certified well water sample shall be submitted 
with building permit application or land division 
application. 

 
iii. The applicant must provide a scientific report 

prepared and stamped by a hydrogeologist 
documenting and providing evidence that there 
will not be further salt water intrusion as a result of 
the proposed withdrawal.24 The administrator 

                                                 
24 This requirement is based on the Washington State Department of Ecology’s salt water intrusion policy. See Emily B. 
Tibbott, Seawater Intrusion Control in Coastal Washington: Department of Ecology Policy and Practice p. 21 (United States 
Environmental Protection Agency Region 10, Office of Ground Water: Aug. 1992, EPA 910/9-92-023). 

Agenda Item Page 120 of 133

Packet Page 122 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 9 

 

 

may hire a hydrogeologist to review the report, its 
data, and methodology. 

 
iv. If the sample does not meet the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency secondary 
standard for chloride (250 mg/l) under the 
National Secondary Drinking Water Regulations, 
then it cannot be used as a water source for a 
land division or a building permit other than a 
single-family home on an individual lot. 

 
v. If the sample does not meet the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency secondary 
standard for chloride (250 mg/L) under the 
National Secondary Drinking Water Regulations, 
then it may be used as water source for a 
building permit on an individual lot only if the 
following requirements are met: 
 
a. The applicant obtains a variance from 

WAC Title 173 standards granted by 
Ecology per WAC 173-160-106 for a new 
groundwater well; or for an existing 
groundwater well not subject to an 
Ecology variance, applicant must provide 
a hydrogeologic assessment as part of an 
aquifer recharge area report, which shall 
be transmitted to Ecology for review, 
demonstrating that use of the well does 
not cause any detrimental interference 
with existing water rights and is not 
detrimental to the public interest; 

 
b. The property owner shall record a 

restrictive covenant that indicates a 
chloride reading exceeded the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency 
secondary standard for chloride (250 mg/l) 
under the National Secondary Drinking 
Water Regulations. 

 

Agenda Item Page 121 of 133

Packet Page 123 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 10 

 
c. A source-totalizing meter shall be installed 

and reported to the Administrator 
annually. 

 
d. The well water shall be tested for its 

chloride concentration each year, with the 
results reported to the Administrator 
annually. 

 
2. If a DOH-approved public water system is not 

available, a qualifying alternative system that meets 
the requirements of the DOH and the Department of 
Ecology may be used as proof of potable water. 

 
The County should establish a program to monitor the results of the initial chloride concentration 
tests, the annual chloride concentration tests, and the volumes of water pumped. The county should 
compare the volumes pumped with recharge estimates. Based on this and other available data, the 
County should periodically review and update its regulations to prevent increases in salt water 
intrusion. 

 

 
RCW 36.70A.170(1)(d) and RCW 36.70A.030(5) provide that each county and each city “shall 
designate where appropriate: … Critical areas” including frequently flooded areas and geologically 
hazardous areas. RCW 36.70A.060(2) provides that “[e]ach county and city shall adopt development 
regulations that protect critical areas that are required to be designated under RCW 36.70A.170.” 
 
Sea level rise is a real problem that is happening now. Sea level is rising and floods and erosion are 
increasing. In 2012 the National Research Council concluded that global sea level had risen by about 
seven inches in the 20th Century and would likely rise by 24 inches on the Washington coast by 
2100.25 NOAA has documented that sea level rise could be as high as two meters, six and half feet, 
by 2100.26 The general extent of the two to six and a half feet of sea level rise currently projected for 
coastal waters can be seen on the NOAA Office for Coastal Management Digitalcoast Sea Level 
Rise Viewer available at: https://coast.noaa.gov/digitalcoast/tools/slr.html  
 

                                                 
25 National Research Council, Sea-Level Rise for the Coasts of California, Oregon, and Washington: Past, Present, and Future p. 23, 
p. 156, p. 96, p. 102 (2012) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: https://www.nap.edu/download/13389 and enclosed with the 
paper original of Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor County Planning Division. 
26 NOAA Office for Coastal Management, Frequent Questions Digital Coast Sea Level Rise and Coastal Flooding Impacts Viewer 
p. 8 of 14 (Jan. 2017) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: https://coast.noaa.gov/data/digitalcoast/pdf/slr-faq.pdf. 

Agenda Item Page 122 of 133

Packet Page 124 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 11 

 

 

Some Washington State local governments already address sea level rise. While these efforts are 
helpful, more comprehensive approaches are needed due to the adverse effects of sea level rise on 
the state’s shorelines. Two to six and a half feet of sea level rise will substantially increase flooding. 
As Ecology writes, “[s]ea level rise and storm surge[s] will increase the frequency and severity of 
flooding, erosion, and seawater intrusion—thus increasing risks to vulnerable communities, 
infrastructure, and coastal ecosystems.”27 Not only our marine shorelines will be impacted, as 
Ecology writes “[m]ore frequent extreme storms are likely to cause river and coastal flooding, 
leading to increased injuries and loss of life.”28 
 
A peer-reviewed scientific study ranked Washington State 14th in terms of the number of people 
living on land less than one meter above local Mean High Water compared to the 23 contiguous 
coastal states and the District of Columbia.29 This amounted to an estimated minimum of 18,269 
people in 2010.30 One meter, 3.28 feet, is within the projected sea level rise estimates of three to four 
feet or more for the end of this century.31 Zillow recently estimated that 31,235 homes in 
Washington State may be underwater by 2100, 1.32 percent of the state’s total housing stock. The 
value of the submerged homes is an estimated $13.7 billon.32 Zillow wrote: 
 

It’s important to note that 2100 is a long way off, and it’s certainly possible that 
communities [may] take steps to mitigate these risks. Then again, given the enduring 
popularity of  living near the sea despite its many dangers and drawbacks, it may be 
that even more homes will be located closer to the water in a century’s time, and 
these estimates could turn out to be very conservative. Either way, left unchecked, it 
is clear the threats posed by climate change and rising sea levels have the potential to 
destroy housing values on an enormous scale.33 

 
Sea level rise will have an impact beyond rising seas, floods, and storm surges. The National 
Research Council wrote that: 
 

Rising sea levels and increasing wave heights will exacerbate coastal erosion and 
shoreline retreat in all geomorphic environments along the west coast. Projections of 
future cliff and bluff retreat are limited by sparse data in Oregon and Washington 
and by a high degree of geomorphic variability along the coast. Projections using 

                                                 
27 State of Washington Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate Washington State’s Integrated Climate Response 
Strategy p. 90 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
https://fortress.wa.gov/ecy/publications/summarypages/1201004.html and enclosed with the paper original of 
Futurewise’s February 2, 2018, letter to the Grays Harbor County Planning Division. 
28 Id. at p. 17. 
29 Benjamin H. Strauss, Remik Ziemlinski, Jeremy L. Weiss, and Jonathan T. Overpeck, Tidally adjusted estimates of 
topographic vulnerability to sea level rise and flooding for the contiguous United States 7 ENVIRON. RES. LETT. 014033, 4 (2012) 
accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://iopscience.iop.org/1748-9326/7/1/014033/article This journal is peer reviewed. 
Environmental Research Letters “Submission requirements” webpage accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
http://iopscience.iop.org/1748-9326/page/Submission%20requirements. 
30 Id. 
31 Washington State Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate: Washington State’s Integrated Climate Response 
Strategy p. 82 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012). 
32 Krishna Rao, Climate Change and Housing: Will a Rising Tide Sink all Homes? ZILLOW webpage (8/2/2016) accessed on 
Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://www.zillow.com/research/climate-change-underwater-homes-12890/. 
33 Id. 

Agenda Item Page 123 of 133

Packet Page 125 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 12 

 

 

only historic rates of cliff erosion predict 10–30 meters [33 to 98 feet] or more of 
retreat along the west coast by 2100. An increase in the rate of sea-level rise 
combined with larger waves could significantly increase these rates. Future retreat of 
beaches will depend on the rate of sea-level rise and, to a lesser extent, the amount of 
sediment input and loss.34 

 
A recent paper estimated that “[a]nalysis with a simple bluff erosion model suggests that predicted 
rates of sea-level rise have the potential to increase bluff erosion rates by up to 0.1 m/yr [meter a 
year] by the year 2050.”35 This translates to four additional inches of bluff erosion a year. 
 
A recent peer-reviewed article estimated that at least 8,018 people in Grays Harbor County will be at 
risk of adverse impacts from sea level rise in 2100.36 This is the highest population at risk of any 
Washington or Oregon county.37 The study authors write that “[t]hese results suggest that the 
absence of protective measures could lead to US population movements of a magnitude similar to 
the twentieth century Great Migration….”38 A substantial population outmigration from Grays 
Harbor County would have significant adverse economic and social impacts. The time to adopt 
protective measures is now. 
 
Homes built today are likely to be in use 2100. And new lots created today will be in use in 2100. 
This is why the Washington State Department of Ecology recommends “[l]imiting new development 
in highly vulnerable areas.”39 
 
So, we recommend that Section 48 require that new lots and new buildings be located outside the 
area of likely sea level rise and if that is not possible, buildings should be elevated above the likely 
sea level rise. We recommend the following new regulations be added to Section 48. 
 

J. New lots shall be designed and located so that the buildable area is outside the area likely 
to be inundated by sea level rise in 2100 and outside of the area in which wetlands will 
likely migrate during that time. 

 

                                                 
34 National Research Council, Sea-Level Rise for the Coasts of California, Oregon, and Washington: Past, Present, and Future p. 135 
(2012). 
35 George M. Kaminsky, Heather M. Baron, Amanda Hacking, Diana McCandless, David S. Parks, Mapping and 
Monitoring Bluff Erosion with Boat-based LIDAR and the Development of a Sediment Budget and Erosion Model for the Elwha and 
Dungeness Littoral Cells, Clallam County, Washington p. 3 accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
http://www.coastalwatershedinstitute.org/Final%20Report_Clallam%20County%20Bluffs%202014_Final%20revised.p
df. 
36 Mathew E. Hauer, Jason M. Evans, and Deepak R. Mishra, Millions projected to be at risk from sea-level rise in the continental 
United States NATURE CLIMATE CHANGE Letters Advance Online Publication p. 3 (Published Online: 14 March 2016 | 
DOI: 10.1038/NCLIMATE2961) and enclosed in a separate email on Sept. 21, 2017. Nature Climate Change is a peer-
reviewed science journal. See the Author Instructions accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: http://mts-nclim.nature.com/cgi-
bin/main.plex?form_type=display_auth_instructions enclosed with the article on Sept. 21, 2017. 
37 Mathew E. Hauer, Jason M. Evans, and Deepak R. Mishra, Millions projected to be at risk from sea-level rise in the continental 
United States NATURE CLIMATE CHANGE Letters Advance Online Publication p. 3 (Published Online: 14 March 2016 | 
DOI: 10.1038/NCLIMATE2961). 
38 Id. at p. 1. 
39 State of Washington Department of Ecology, Preparing for a Changing Climate Washington State’s Integrated Climate Response 
Strategy p. 90 (Publication No. 12-01-004: April 2012). 

Agenda Item Page 124 of 133

Packet Page 126 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 13 

 
K. Where lots are large enough, new structures and buildings shall be located so that they 

are outside the area likely to be inundated by sea level rise in 2100 and outside of the area 
in which wetlands and aquatic vegetation will likely migrate during that time. 

 
L. New and substantially improved structures shall be elevated above the likely sea level rise 

elevation in 2100 or for the life of the building, whichever is less. 

 

 
The Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1 states that “The 
probability for frequent impact from coastal erosion in the identified coastal erosion areas (Figures 
81 to 8-8) areas is highly likely ….”40 The plan writes that “[c]oastal erosion impacts both private and 
public assets alike, including homes, businesses, public beach and public infrastructure such as roads 
and utilities.”41 The Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1 
also maps and inventories areas of coastal erosion.42 
 
Stream and river bank erosion is also a problem in parts of the county. “Human development such 
as bridge abutments and levees, and logjams from timber harvesting can increase stream bank 
erosion, causing rivers and streams to migrate into non-natural courses.”43  
 
“The GMA directs counties and cities to designate critical areas. RCW 36.70A.170. RCW 
36.70A.030(5) lists types of critical areas: (1) fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, (2) 
wetlands, (3) frequently flooded areas, (4) critical aquifer recharge areas, and (5) geologically 
hazardous areas.”44 “‘Geologically hazardous areas’ means areas that because of their susceptibility to 
erosion, sliding, earthquake, or other geological events, are not suited to the siting of commercial, 
residential, or industrial development consistent with public health or safety concerns.”45 “[T]he 
GMA requires the county to designate and protect all critical areas within its boundaries.”46 
 
Coastal, river, and stream erosion is capable of damaging and destroying commercial, residential, and 
industrial development due to erosion and other geological events.47 Section 55 must identify coastal 

                                                 
40 Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1: Planning-Area-Wide Elements Final p. 8-
48 (July 2018). 
41 Id. at 8-46. 
42 Id. at pp. 8-4 – 8-14. 
43 Id. at p. 9-46 
44 Ferry Cty. v. Concerned Friends of Ferry Cty., 155 Wn.2d 824, 832, 123 P.3d 102, 106 (2005). 
45 RCW 36.70A.030(9). 
46 Stevens Cty. v. Futurewise, 146 Wn. App. 493, 511, 192 P.3d 1, 10 (2008) review denied Stevens County v. Futurewise, 165 
Wn.2d 1038, 205 P.3d 132 (2009). 
47 Jeffrey R. Keaton, Joseph Wartman, Scott Anderson, Jean Benoît, John deLaChapelle, Robert Gilbert, David R. 
Montgomery, The 22 March 2014 Oso Landslide, Snohomish County, Washington p. 1 & p. 68 (Geotechnical Extreme Events 
Reconnaissance (GEER): July 22, 2014). 

Agenda Item Page 125 of 133

Packet Page 127 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 14 

 

 

and river and stream erosion. Section 56 must require new development to be located outside areas 
subject to Coastal, river, and stream erosion. Our recommended amendments are shown below with 
our additions underlined and our deletions struck through. 
 
Section 55 Critical Area Report Requirements for Specific Hazards 
 
A. Erosion and Landslide Hazard Areas. In addition to the basic geological 

hazard area report requirements, a report for an erosion hazard or 
landslide hazard area shall include the following information at a 
minimum: 

 
13. Site Plan. The report shall include a copy of the site plan for the 

proposal showing: 
 
a. The height of slope, slope gradient, and cross section of the 

project area, 
 
b. The location of springs, seeps, or other surface expressions of 

ground water on or within three hundred feet of the project 
area, or that have potential to be affected by the proposal, 
and 

 
c. The location and description of surface water runoff; 
 
d. The location of historic landslide runout area and modelling of 

potential landslide runout. 
 

24. Geotechnical Analysis. The geotechnical analysis shall specifically 
include: 
 
ad. A description of the extent and type of vegetative cover, 
 
be. An estimate of load capacity, including surface and ground 

water conditions, public and private sewage disposal 
systems, fills and excavations, and all structural development, 

 
cf. An estimate of slope stability and the effect construction and 

placement of structures will have on the slope over the 
estimated life of the structure, 

 
dg. An estimate of the bluff retreat rate that recognizes and 

reflects potential catastrophic events such as seismic activity 
or a one-hundred-year storm event, 

Agenda Item Page 126 of 133

Packet Page 128 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 15 

 

 

 
eh. Consideration of the run-out hazard of landslide debris and/or 

the impacts of landslide run-out on down slope properties, 
 
fi. A study of slope stability, including an analysis of proposed 

angles of cut and fill, and site grading. 
 
g. Identification of landslide top of slope and slope faces 

subject to failure and sliding, toe of slope area subject to 
areas subject to impact from down slope run-out and buffers 
areas subject to landslides. 

 
hj. Recommendations for building limitations, structural 

foundations, and an estimate of foundation settlement, and. 
 
ik. An analysis of proposed surface and subsurface drainage, 

and the vulnerability of the site to erosion including coastal 
erosion and river and stream bank erosion. 

 
[No further amendments are recommended for Section 55.] 
 
Section 56 Performance Standards 
 
A. Alterations of geologically hazardous areas may only occur for activities 

that will not adversely impact or pose a threat to adjacent properties or 
critical areas, and are designed so that the hazard to the project is 
eliminated or mitigated to a level equal to or less than pre-development 
conditions. 

 
B. Uses, structures, and activities in erosion hazard areas shall meet the 

following performance standards: 
 

1. On-site stormwater and drainage development shall meet the 
requirements of the current edition of the Stormwater Management 
Manual for Western Washington. 

 
2. Minimize modification of the natural contour of slopes by 

conforming to the existing topography of the site. 
 
3. Incorporate stabilization best management practices, such as 

temporary and permanent seeding, mulching, geotextiles, sod 
stabilization, vegetative buffer strips, protection of trees, and 
preservation of mature vegetation. 

Agenda Item Page 127 of 133

Packet Page 129 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 16 

 
 
4. Ensure the stabilization of all exposed and disturbed soils by 

appropriate and timely application of best management practices. 
 
5. Minimize the removal of existing vegetation and undergrowth. 
 
6. Design cut and fill slopes to minimize erosion. 
 
7. Stabilize conveyance outlets and stream banks to prevent erosion. 
 
8. Reduce clearing, grading, and impervious surfaces to the minimum 

amount necessary to accommodate the project permit. 
 
9. Uses, structures, or activities shall be located outside areas that are 

likely to be subject to coastal erosion or river and stream bank 
erosion during the life of the use, structure, and activities. 

 
[No further amendments are recommended for Section 56.] 
 

 
The Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1 states that 
“[b]ased on review and analysis of the data, the Planning Team has determined that the probability 
for impact from a landslide throughout the area is highly likely. The area experiences some level of 
landslides almost annually.”48 Landslide hazards are capable of damaging property at significant 
distances. The 2014 Oso slide ran out for over a mile (5,500 feet) even through the slope height was 
600 feet.49 Recent research shows that long runout landslides are more common than had been 
realized.50 This research documents that over the past 2000 years, the average landslide frequency of 

                                                 
48 Grays Harbor County 2018 Multi-Jurisdiction Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Volume 1: Planning-Area-Wide Elements Final p. 
10-22 (July 2018). 
49 Jeffrey R. Keaton, Joseph Wartman, Scott Anderson, Jean Benoît, John deLaChapelle, Robert Gilbert, David R. 
Montgomery, The 22 March 2014 Oso Landslide, Snohomish County, Washington p. 56 & p. 144 (Geotechnical Extreme 
Events Reconnaissance (GEER): July 22, 2014) accessed on Sept. 26, 2018 at: 
http://www.geerassociation.org/index.php/component/geer_reports/?view=geerreports&layout=build&id=30 and on 
the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s letter to Grays Harbor County Department of Public 
Services (Sept. 21, 2017) on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename 
“GEER_Oso_Landslide_Report.pdf.”. 
50 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY pp. *2 – 3, published online on 
22 December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1; Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data 
repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4 both 
enclosed with the paper original of this letter. Geology is a peer-reviewed scientific journal. Geology – Prep webpage 
accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
http://www.geosociety.org/GSA/Publications/Journals/Geology/GSA/Pubs/geology/home.aspx#overview and 
enclosed with enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 

Agenda Item Page 128 of 133

Packet Page 130 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 17 

 

 

long runout landsides in the area near the Oso landslide is one landslide every 140 years.51 The 
landslides ran out from 787 feet to the 2,000 feet of the 2014 landside.52 The 2013 Ledgewood-
Bonair Landslide on Whidbey Island extended approximately 300 feet into Puget Sound.53 In a study 
of shallow landslides along Puget Sound from Seattle to Everett, the average runout length was 
197.5 feet (60.2 m) and the maximum runout length was 771 feet (235 m).54 
 
In addition to protecting people from natural hazards, updated geologically hazardous regulations 
also protect a family’s largest asset: Their home. Homeowners insurance does not cover the damage 
from landslides. “Insurance coverage for landslides is uncommon. It is almost never a standard 
coverage, and is difficult to purchase inexpensively as a policy endorsement.”55 
 
None of the Oso victims’ homes were covered by insurance for landslide hazards.56 And that is 
common when homes are damaged by landslides.57 For example, on March 14, 2011, a landslide 
damaged the home of Rich and Pat Lord.58 This damage required the homeowners to abandon their 
home on Norma Beach Road near Edmonds, Washington. Because their homeowners insurance did 
not cover landslides, they lost their home.59 This loss of what may be a family’s largest financial asset 
is common when homes are damaged or destroyed by landslides or other geological hazards. 
 
Landslide buyouts are rare and when they occur the property owner often only recovers pennies on 
the dollar. The property owners bought out after the Aldercrest-Banyon landslide in Kelso, 

                                                 
51 Sean R. LaHusen, Alison R. Duvall, Adam M. Booth, and David R. Montgomery, Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, Washington (USA), reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability GEOLOGY p. *2, published online on 22 
December 2015 as doi:10.1130/G37267.1. 
52 Geological Society of America (GSA) Data Repository 2016029, Data repository for: Surface roughness dating of long-runout 
landslides near Oso, WA reveals persistent postglacial hillslope instability p. 4. 
53 Stephen Slaughter, Isabelle Sarikhan, Michael Polenz, and Tim Walsh, Quick Report for the Ledgewood-Bonair Landslide, 
Whidbey Island, Island County, Washington pp. 3 – 4 (Washington State Department of Natural Resources, Division of 
Geology and Earth Resources: March 28, 2013). Accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/ger_qr_whidbey_island_landslide_2013.pdf and on the CAO on CD enclosed 
with the paper original Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards 
with the filename “ger_qr_whidbey_island_landslide_2013.pdf.” 
54 Edwin L. Harp, John A. Michael, and William T. Laprade, Shallow-Landslide Hazard Map of Seattle, Washington p. 17 (U.S. 
Geological Survey Open-File Report 2006–1139: 2006) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: 
http://pubs.usgs.gov/of/2006/1139/ and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 
2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “of06-1139_508.pdf.” 
55 Robert L. Schuster & Lynn M. Highland, The Third Hans Cloos Lecture: Urban landslides: socioeconomic impacts and overview of 
mitigative strategies 66 BULLETIN OF ENGINEERING GEOLOGY AND THE ENVIRONMENT 1, p. 22 (2007) accessed on Jan. 
23, 2018 at: 
ftp://193.134.202.10/pub/TRAMM/Workshop_EWS/Literature/Schuster_and_Highland_2007_Bulletin_of_Engineer
ing_Geology_and_the_Environment.pdf and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. The Bulletin of Engineering 
Geology and the Environment is peer-reviewed. See the Bulletin of Engineering Geology and the Environment “em 
Editorial Manager” login page accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: http://www.editorialmanager.com/boeg/default.aspx 
56 Sanjay Bhatt, Slide erased their homes, but maybe not their loans The Seattle Times (April 2, 2014) accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 
at: http://old.seattletimes.com/html/latestnews/2023278858_mudslidefinancialxml.html 
57 Id. 
58 Ian Terry, Abandoned and trashed after mudslide, Edmonds house now for sale The Herald (Feb. 11, 2015). The house is for 
sale after the bank who held the Lord’s mortgage took ownership of the home. Id. Accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: 
http://www.heraldnet.com/article/20150211/NEWS01/150219829 and enclosed with the paper original of this letter. 
59 Id. at p. *6. 

Agenda Item Page 129 of 133

Packet Page 131 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 18 

 

 

Washington destroyed their homes received 30 cents on the dollar.60 This underlines why preventing 
development in geologically hazardous areas is just plain ordinary consumer protection. 
 
While we appreciate the improved measures for designating and protecting people and property 
from landslide hazards, proposed Section 56C.1, on page 60, only requires 40-foot buffers from the 
top and toe of the slope of identified landslides. As the above runout distances show, this is not 
adequate to protect people and property from landslides. We recommend that the regulations 
require the site-specific identification of landslide top of slope and slope faces subject to failure and 
sliding, toe of slope areas subject to impact from down slope run-out, and buffers for areas subject 
to landslide hazards include the top of slope, bottom of slope and sides of the hazard. The Joint SR 
530 Landslide Commission recommends identifying “[c]ritical area buffer widths based on site 
specific geotechnical studies” as an “innovative development regulation[]” that counties and cities 
should adopt.61 Construction should not be allowed in these areas. 
 
In addition, “[s]lope saturation by water is a primary cause of  landslides.”62 So allowing sewage 
disposal systems and drainfields in top of  slope and side slope buffers is a bad idea as the additional 
water may trigger landslides. So that should not be allowed. 
 
We recommend to following revisions to Section 56C.1, on pages 68 and 69, with our additions 
underlined and our deletions struck through. 
 
1. Establish and maintain a forty-foot buffers large enough to protect existing 

and proposed development include highways and roads from landslide 
hazards for from the top, side, and toe of a the slope for identified as a 
landslide hazard areas. A qualified professional shall recommend the 
buffers based on a site-specific investigation. The administrator may 
require peer-review of the recommendations and shall determine the 
required buffers. The administrator may allow the following modifications 
to the buffer: 
 
a. Reduce the buffer if a critical area special study prepared by a 

qualified professional certifies that the reduction will adequately 
protect the proposed development, adjacent developments, and 
critical areas. 

 

                                                 
60 Isabelle Sarikhan, Sliding Thought Blog, Washington’s Landslide Blog Landslide of the Week – Aldercrest Banyon Landslide 
July 29, 2009 accessed on Jan. 23, 2018 at: https://slidingthought.wordpress.com/2009/07/29/landslide-of-the-week-
aldercrest-banyon-landslide/ 
61 The SR 530 Landslide Commission, Final Report p. 31 (Dec. 15, 2014) accessed on Sept. 20, 2017 at: 
http://www.governor.wa.gov/sites/default/files/documents/SR530LC_Final_Report.pdf and on the CAO on CD 
enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 2\Geo 
Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “SR530LC_Final_Report.pdf” 
62 Lynn M. Highland and Peter Bobrowsky, The Landslide Handbook—A Guide to Understanding Landslides p. 30 (U.S. 
Geological Survey Circular 1325, Reston, Virginia: 2008) accessed on Feb. 1, 2018 at: https://pubs.usgs.gov/circ/1325/ 
and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter in the directory Data CD 
2\Geo Hazards\Landslide Hazards with the filename “C1325_508.pdf.” 

Agenda Item Page 130 of 133

Packet Page 132 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 19 

 
b. Locate on-site sewage disposal systems, including drainfields, within 

a toe of slope buffer when a qualified professional certifies that 
there will be no impact to existing or proposed development or to 
the landslide hazard. 

 

 
We appreciate including references to the Washington State Department of Natural Resources’ 
Liquefaction Susceptibility and Site Class maps in the update.63 In 2004, the Washington State 
Department of Natural Resources completed a set of liquefaction maps and maps identifying where 
the geology is likely to amplify ground shaking, referred to as “Site Class” maps. These maps 
represent best available science on the occurrence of these hazards which the Growth Management 
Act requires to the county to include in the development of critical areas regulations. 
 
Adopting these maps and protective provisions for these areas will protect people and property 
from hazards resulting from earthquakes. Liquefaction occurs when earthquake shaking causes a soil 
to rapidly lose its strength and behave like quicksand. The soils most likely to liquefy are artificial 
fills and areas of loose sandy soils saturated with water. The movement of liquefied soils can rupture 
pipelines, move bridge abutments and roads, and damage buildings. Liquefaction has damaged many 
buildings during earthquakes including Alaska’s Good Friday earthquake, California’s Loma Prieta 
earthquake, and the Kobe, Japan earthquake.64 We recommend that areas classified as having a 
liquefaction susceptibility of “moderate,” “moderate to high,” “high,” and “peat deposit” be 
identified as geological hazards. 
 
The Site Class Map identifies areas where the underlying geology is likely to amplify shaking on the 
ground surface. This is the most damaging effect of an earthquake. So, buildings constructed on 
areas more susceptible to strong shaking area are more likely to be damaged or destroyed in an 
earthquake.65 By identifying these areas and engineering and constructing buildings to withstand this 
shaking, people and property will be better protected from earthquake damage. We recommend that 
areas classified as having a site class of “D to E,” “E,” and “F” be designated as geological hazards. 
 
Development regulations requiring review of structures proposed for these areas should be adopted 
to ensure they can withstand the hazards of locating on these soils with their amplified earthquake 
movement. 

                                                 
63 The maps are available at the Geologic Information Portal accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
http://www.dnr.wa.gov/geologyportal or ftp://ww4.dnr.wa.gov/geology/pubs/ofr04-20/ and on the CAO on CD 
enclosed with the paper original of Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo 
Hazards\Earthquake Hazards. 
64 Stephen P. Palmer, Sammantha L. Magsino, Eric L. Bilderback, James L. Poelstra, Derek S. Folger, and Rebecca A. 
Niggemann, Liquefaction Susceptibility and Site Class Maps of Washington State, By County p. 1 (Washington Division of 
Geology and Earth Resources, Open File Report 2004-20: Sept. 2004) accessed on Jan. 31, 2018 at: 
ftp://ww4.dnr.wa.gov/geology/pubs/ofr04-20/ofr2004-20_report.pdf and on the CAO on CD enclosed with the paper 
original Futurewise’s Sept. 21, 2017, letter on Data CD 2 in the directory \Geo Hazards\Earthquake Hazards with the 
filename “ofr2004-20_report.pdf.” 
65 Id. at pp. 2 – 3. 

Agenda Item Page 131 of 133

Packet Page 133 of 308



 
Grays Harbor County Planning Division Re: Critical Area Protection Ordinance Update 
October 2, 2018 
Page 20 

 

 

 
Section 57A.3 designates habitats of local importance as fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas. 
We support this provision, but the update does not include a process for designating habitats of 
local importance or a list of those habitats. Species of local importance should either be designated 
or a process for designating these species should be included. 
 

 
The Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife regularly updates the priority habitats and 
species list. The most recent list was updated in 2017 is enclosed with this letter. In addition, some 
of the management recommendations for the priority species, such as the mammal 
recommendations, are being updated as the recommendations are completed for individual species. 
Since the documents listed in Section 58A are references, we recommend that Section 58A just 
reference the most recent priority species and habitats list and state that the county will use as 
references the Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife Management Recommendations 
for Washington’s Priority Species. Then the critical areas regulations would not need to be revised 
every time Fish and Wildlife updates a document or issues a new document. 
 
Thank you for considering our comments. If you require additional information, please contact me 
at telephone (206) 343-0681 Ext. 102 and email: tim@futurewise.org. 
 
Very Truly Yours, 

 
Tim Trohimovich, AICP 
Director of Planning & Law 
 
Enclosure 

Agenda Item Page 132 of 133

Packet Page 134 of 308



Resolution No. 2019-______

Grays Harbor County Resolution No. 2019-______                               

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY 
PLANNING DIVISION TO FORWARD THE DRAFT PERIODIC UPDATE TO 
THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY CRITICAL AREAS PROTECTION 
ORDINANCE TO THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENTS OF 
COMMERCE AND ECOLOGY FOR THEIR REVIEW UNDER THE 
WASHINGTON STATE GROWTH MANAGEMENT ACT

WHEREAS, the Washington State Growth Management Act, chapter 36.70A RCW (“the 
Act”), provides for periodic updates of the Grays Harbor County’s Critical Areas Ordinance 
(“CAO”); and

WHEREAS, the Act requires that Grays Harbor County update its CAO on or before June 
30, 2018, and every eight years thereafter; and

WHEREAS, Grays Harbor County has finalized its updates to the CAO and is prepared to 
forward the draft update to the Washington State Departments of Commerce and Ecology for their 
review; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Grays Harbor County Board of 
Commissioners that the draft update to the County’s Critical Areas Ordinance shall be forwarded 
to the Washington State Department of Commerce and to the Washington State Department of 
Ecology for review as required by the Act.

Passed and approved this _____ day of February, 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

     
Randy Ross, Chairman, District 2

Wes Cormier, Commissioner, District 1

Vickie L. Raines, Commissioner, District 3

ATTEST:

Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 133 of 133

Packet Page 135 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Civil Service

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jenna Amsbury

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Reappoint Keith Fouts to Civil Service

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Keith Fout’s term is due to expire on February 1, 2019.  Keith has stated that he is willing to 
continue serving on this commission.  Therefore as Chief Examiner, I here request that the 
Board of County Commissioners reappoint Keith to the District 3 position for the term 
extending from February 2, 2019 to February 1, 2023. 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Reappoint Mr. Fouts

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Reappoint Keith Fouts to Civil ServiceReappoint Keith Fouts to Civil Service Agenda Item Page 1 of 3

Packet Page 136 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 3

Packet Page 137 of 308



310 W. Spruce Avenue, Rm. 217, Montesano, WA  98563
(360) 249-5400 x 2     Email:  lballou@co.grays-harbor.wa.us

January 18, 2019

Board of County Commissioners
Grays Harbor County
100 West Broadway, Suite 1
Montesano, WA  98563

Dear Commissioners,

Below is a list of our current Civil Service Commissioners and their terms of service.  Please note that 
Keith Fout’s term is due to expire on February 1, 2019.  Keith has stated that he is willing to continue 
serving on this commission.  Therefore as Chief Examiner, I here request that the Board of County 
Commissioners reappoint Keith to the District 3 position for the term extending from February 2, 
2019 to February 1, 2023. 

Thank you for your attention on this matter.

Current Civil Service Commissioners

District 1   District 2 District 3

Bob Barton Gary Parfitt Keith Fouts
Term:  7/13/16 to 2/1/21 Term:  2/2/17 to 2/1/23 Term:  2/2/19 to 2/1/25

(pending reappointment)

Sincerely,

Lisa Ballou
Chief Examiner

CIVIL SERVICE 
COMMISSIONERS:
Bob Barton, District 1
Gary Parfitt, District 2
Keith Fouts, District 3

CHIEF EXAMINER:
Lisa Ballou

Agenda Item Page 3 of 3

Packet Page 138 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Planning & Building

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jane Hewitt

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Re-appoint Bob Andrews to the Board of Adjustment

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Re-appoint Bob Andrews to the Board of Adjustment

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Re-appoint Bob Andrews to the Board of Adjustment Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 139 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Commissioners

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jenna Amsbury

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Appointment of Steve Ensley to PFD

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Mr. Ensley would be the City of Ocean Shores member for the PFD.  He was the previous Treasurer of 
the Board and has the experience to assist with the Board moving forward. 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Appoint Mr. Ensley to the City of Ocean Shores Position. 

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Appointment of Steve Ensley to PFD Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 140 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Commissioners

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jenna Amsbury

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Set Bid Date for Official Publications

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Set bid date for March 19, 2019 to select the Official County Newspaper for legal publications for July 1, 2019 
through June 30, 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Set Bid Date.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Set Bid Date for Official PublicationsSet Bid Date for Official Publications Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 141 of 308



CALL FOR BIDS AND PROPOSALS

For County Printing of Official Publications

In accordance with Chapter 36.72, of the Laws of the State of Washington, sealed 
bids will be received by the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners, at the Commissioners 
Office at 100 West Broadway, Suite #1, Montesano, WA  98563, until the hour of 2:00 
p.m., on Tuesday, March 19, 2019, at which time said bids will be publicly opened and 
read in the Commissioners Meeting Room, for the Grays Harbor County legal 
publications contract for the printing and publication of Commissioners’ proceedings, 
legal notices, and all other advertising of Grays Harbor County, as required by law to be 
published in the official newspaper of the county, from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2020.

SPECIFICATIONS

The Board shall let the contract to the best and lowest responsible bidder, giving 
consideration to the question of circulation in the awarding of the County Printing 
Contract, to give said legal publications the widest publicity.

All bids must state price per column inch for the first insertion of solid eight-point 
type, full width column; also price per column inch for subsequent insertion.  Discounts 
for electronic submittals shall be clearly stated.  Also required is a current copy of your 
published rate card.

The successful bidder shall deliver affidavits of publication within fourteen days 
of final publication of all notices.

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to reject any or all bids.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
Jenna Amsbury
Clerk for the Board

Publish:
February 14, 2019

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 142 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: Roads
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2019 Emulsified Asphalt Supply Contract

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The Road department requests authorization to open bids March 5, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. for the above stated 
supply contract.  Total emulsion usage will be a combined total of approximately 1,450 tons (CRS-2P).

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
Road fund

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve request to advertise for bids.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
1/15/2019 1:00:00 PM

2019 Emulsified Asphalt Supply Contract Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 143 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: Roads
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Appraisal Work for Right of Way Acquisition

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The Road Department requests authorization to solicit proposals from qualified firms to provide 
project funding estimates, appraisals, and possibly appraisal reviews for the Bush Creek Road Culvert 
Replacement Project, 77970-01, and the Blue Slough Realignment Project, 61140-01.

These projects are utilizing state funds to accomplish the acquisition of additional right of way and 
construction costs. While these projects are not federally funded we would like to follow the same 
standard as if they were federally funded. This will ensure that the right of way was acquired according 
to the accepted standard and will allow these roads to remain eligible for federal funding in the future.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
$7500

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve this request to solicit proposals for appraisal work on two project.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Appraisal Work for Right of Way Acquisition Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 144 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: Roads
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Automatic Vacation

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Dan Carter has requested the County issue a resolution acknowledging the automatic vacation of right of ways 
adjacent to his property.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Issue a resolution acknowledging the automatic vacation.l

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Automatic VacationAutomatic VacationAutomatic VacationAutomatic VacationAutomatic Vacation Agenda Item Page 1 of 5

Packet Page 145 of 308



2019-

RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING VACATION BY OPERATION OF LAW

This matter having come before the Grays Harbor Board of County Commissioners by Petition from Dan 
Carter to acknowledge Vacation by Operation of Law and the Board being fully advised in this matter 
hereby acknowledges Vacation of the following described right of way.

All situated in the plat of I.L. Scammons Addition to the Town of Montesano, as per plat recorded in Vol. 
4 (D), page 382, records of Grays Harbor County, Washington, and as shown on the attached map.

1) The Westerly half of “E” Street lying adjacent to Block 2 

The Board of County Commissioners acknowledges the vacation of the above-described rights of way as 
having been unopened within five years of platting.

Private rights may still exist for other property owners in the plat. 

Dated this day of , 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY, WA

Randy Ross, Chairman

Wes Cormier, District 1

Vickie L. Raines, District 3
ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 2 of 5

Packet Page 146 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 5

Packet Page 147 of 308



130070

1
2

5
6

7
8

1

2
25

26

29

30

130020

130070

130010

130040

E St.

F St.
South Monte Rd.

t.

ou
th 

Mon
te 

Br
an

ch
 R

d.

ns Plat

TA
X 

32

TAX 42

M:\Projects\pw\Street_Vacations\Carter_Property.mxd

Map Location Grays Harbor County
Public Works

Carter
Automatic Vacation Request

® NOTE: This map is for reference only.

Legend
Parcel Lines

Parcel Ownership

Automatic Vacation

Feet
0 75 150 225 300

C h e h a l i s

R i v e r

Agenda Item Page 4 of 5

Packet Page 148 of 308



130070

1
2

5
6

7
8

1

2
25

26

29

30

130020

130070

130010

130040

E St.

F St.
South Monte Rd.

t.

ou
th 

Mon
te 

Br
an

ch
 R

d.

ns Plat

TA
X 

32

TAX 42

M:\Projects\pw\Street_Vacations\Carter_Property.mxd

Map Location Grays Harbor County
Public Works

Carter
Automatic Vacation Request

® NOTE: This map is for reference only.

Legend
Parcel Lines

Parcel Ownership

Automatic Vacation

Feet
0 75 150 225 300

C h e h a l i s

R i v e r

2018 - Orthophoto, Pictometry

Agenda Item Page 5 of 5

Packet Page 149 of 308



PURCHASE REQUEST

DEPARTMENT: SOLID WASTE
Date: 02/05/2019
Item to be purchased: Transfer Equipment

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST
Equipment Transfer - Solid Waste to Pacific Beach Water / Sewer    (See Attached)                     

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
Budget information:      General Fund             Miscellaneous Fund:    404 - 405 
Amount of request: $80,000 
Funding Source (grant, fees, etc.): Fund 404 & 405
Will this require a supplemental or emergency budget?          YES           NO      Click 
here to enter text.            
Process used to acquire the item: (bid, state contract, vendor list, quotes, etc.)
 Department Transfer                                                          
Other information:  Click here to enter text.

SIGNITURES/APPROVAL
Elected Official/ Department Administrator Signature:

Date:

Grays Harbor County Commissioner Approval: 

Commissioner Wes Cormier 

Commissioner Randy Ross

Commissioner Vickie L. Raines 

Attest: Date:

Was the Contract reviewed by the Prosecutor’s Office? (if applicable- if a contract or lease is included)   

      ☐     YES                 NO        Signature of Deputy Prosecuting Attorney:

Was the agenda item reviewed by the Budget Director?  (req. for all purchases)   

           YES           ☐      NO        Signature of Budget Director:

Was the agenda item reviewed by Central Services?  (req. for technology purchases)   
           YES                 NO        Signature of Central Services Director:

Equipment Transfer - Solid Waste to Pacific Beach Water...Equipment Transfer - Solid Waste to Pacific Beach Water... Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 150 of 308



Equipment Transfer from Solid Waste Fund 401
To Fund 405 – PB Water

• SW0804 - 2011 Hitachi Mini Excavator - $30,000
• SW0803 - 2013 Olympic Trailer - $5,000
• SW0328 - 1993 John Deere Tractor/Loader - $4,500
• SW0811 - 1998 Bulldog Trailer - $500

To Fund 404 – PB Sewer

• SW0200 - 1999 Kenworth Tanker Truck - $40,000

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 151 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: 
ER&R
SUBMITTER:  James Kost

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Surplus Radios

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Surplus radios and dispose of.  Radios are broken and or older type that cannot be used anymore.  List is 
attached with make and serial #’s.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Surplus radios and dispose.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Surplus RadiosSurplus Radios Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 152 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 153 of 308



PURCHASE REQUEST

DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS
Date: 1-30-2019
Item to be purchased: New Grader 

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST
Request to surplus and trade in old grader equipment #325 a 1998 140G for a value no less 
than $35,000.  Will purchase a new grader at a value no more than $320,000 including trade in 
value to vendor off Sourcewell (NJPA) contract. 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
Budget information:      General Fund             Miscellaneous Fund:    ER&R 
Amount of request: $320,000  
Funding Source (grant, fees, etc.): ER&R Replacement Fund
Will this require a supplemental or emergency budget?          YES           NO                       
Process used to acquire the item: (bid, state contract, vendor list, quotes, etc.)
 Sourcewell Contract                                                          
Other information:  Item budgeted for replacement this year 2019

SIGNITURES/APPROVAL
Elected Official/ Department Administrator Signature:

Date:

Grays Harbor County Commissioner Approval: 

Commissioner Wes Cormier 

Commissioner Randy Ross

Commissioner Vickie L. Raines 

Attest: Date:

Was the Contract reviewed by the Prosecutor’s Office? (if applicable- if a contract or lease is included)   

      ☐     YES                 NO        Signature of Deputy Prosecuting Attorney:
Was the agenda item reviewed by the Budget Director?  (req. for all purchases)   

           YES           ☐      NO        Signature of Budget Director:
Was the agenda item reviewed by Central Services?  (req. for technology purchases)   

           YES           ☐      NO        Signature of Central Services Director:

Grader Surplus and Purchase Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 154 of 308



2019 Road Levy Digital Submittal Certification2019 Road Levy Digital Submittal Certification2019 Road Levy Digital Submittal Certification Agenda Item Page 1 of 3

Packet Page 155 of 308



��������� ����	�
�

���������� ���

������������������
������������������������	��� �!������"���#�����	�!�����$�������

%����&'(�)�(���

*+,-.�/+01,2�3-.0-,4+15 6'78&879��7�9�

:;<*=+0>-1?@A+-?�B4>,C4D,�3-.0-,4+1 EF+01,

G4H=I>,�J-KL0.�A+-?�JIM25� 6�����9)N 6�7�))7��&7&'� 6'7�897N9�

/+01,2�A+-?�JIM2�O=4L,I?�,+�/0CCI1,�PQRI1>I�:S���	�%�9N�)���N&@5� 6�������� 6�7�))7��&7&'� 6�

E?T0>,I?�G4H=I>,�J-KL0.�A+-?�JIM25 6�����9)N 6�7�))7��&7&'� 6'7�897N9�

ED,0-.�P>,-U.4>=I?�A+-?�JIM25�
V �!��W�X����������������Y����	�%�&'�N�����Z�

6����9))N 6�7�))7��&7&'� 6'7���7�&N

������	���$�S�����[�X�	�!������\�!������W��]�����̂�����S������$��S�����������������Y����
�	�%�&'�&&����7�	�%�&��9�7���	�%�9N�))��)��

OICM4DI�,+�UI�_C+M4?I? B4MIC,I?�;<*=+0>-1? B4MIC,I?�JIM2�EF+01,

*+,-.�B4MIC,I?�A+-?�JIM25 ; ;̀

A+-?�JIM2�AIMI10I�AIF-4141H�L+C�A+-?>
�V	�%�&'�9���N�Z

;ab̀cdeef ;ghàihajf

	���W�����k��l������������������[������� �Y�"�����#���

[������� �Y�"�����#����W������[���l��]S������l�[��������VS����l���#���Z� 6�

[������� �Y�"�����#����W������[���l��\������$��#����V�������#�����#���Z�6''�7���

*+,-.�m0?HI,I?�A+-?�n01?�PQRI1?4,0CI>�L+C�*C-LL4D�P1L+CDIFI1,5;gg̀h̀̀ `

	�S����l���\�!������	��� �!���������l�����	���W����"XS�������������[������� �Y�"�����#���
�#���������������o�����������������������������������l�����������	�[���������V����%����&'(�)�(�&�Z

p+,I��%����&'(�)�(����S�!����������q[����	�k����Y������o�����������!������������l������!��������������#��������������������Y��l������#����������������!�

��X������������#���7�������7����l������������������Y����	�%�&'�&&������������������Y�������#�������������������S��S�����#���!������������!��������������

W�����������������������r�

Agenda Item Page 2 of 3

Packet Page 156 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2019 Road Levy Digital Submittal Certification

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The 2019 Road Levy Certification is submitted electronically to CRAB.  The attached Digital Submittal 
Certification is required as part of the submission.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign the Digital Submittal Certification.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Agenda Item Page 3 of 3

Packet Page 157 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Sheriff

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Ranee Farmer

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Surplus office equipment

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

We currently have office equipment that is no longer working.  We are asking permission to surplus those items 
and have them taken off our inventory.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Grant permission to surplus office equipment.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Surplus office equipmentSurplus office equipment Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 158 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 159 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Sheriff

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Ranee Farmer

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Equitable Sharing Agreement and Certification

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

These funds are received when the Grays Harbor County Drug Task Force assists a federal agency on cases 
where assets are seized and forfeited.  Upon our department’s application to the Treasury Department, they 
determine what portion of the assets we are to receive on each case and distribute them to us when they 
become available.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the attached equitable sharing agreement and certification.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Equitable Sharing Agreement and CertificationEquitable Sharing Agreement and Certification Agenda Item Page 1 of 8

Packet Page 160 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 8

Packet Page 161 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 8

Packet Page 162 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 8

Packet Page 163 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 8

Packet Page 164 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 8

Packet Page 165 of 308



Agenda Item Page 7 of 8

Packet Page 166 of 308



Agenda Item Page 8 of 8

Packet Page 167 of 308



WSDA-Noxious Weed Reimbursement AgreementWSDA-Noxious Weed Reimbursement AgreementWSDA-Noxious Weed Reimbursement Agreement Agenda Item Page 1 of 11

Packet Page 168 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 11

Packet Page 169 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 11

Packet Page 170 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 11

Packet Page 171 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 11

Packet Page 172 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 11

Packet Page 173 of 308



Agenda Item Page 7 of 11

Packet Page 174 of 308



Agenda Item Page 8 of 11

Packet Page 175 of 308



DEPARTMENT: WSU Extension/Noxious Weed

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Sue Sparkman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  WSDA-Noxious Weed Reimbursement Agreement

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Washington State Dept. of Agriculture (WSDA) offered funding to support the development of an invasive 
knotweed control program in Grays Harbor County via a reimbursement agreement that runs from August 1, 
2018 – June 30, 2019 unless terminated sooner or extended by the WSDA. The Grays Harbor County Noxious 
Weed Control Board approved and signed the agreement in September 2018. We respectfully request the 
Board of County Commissioners approve and sign the current agreement. 

Norma Tillotson, Deputy Prosecuting Attorney, created a resolution to ratify this agreement. It was attached to 
our request on January 23, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

General Fund/Noxious Weed Budget

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Request approval and signature of the current agreement with WSDA

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Agenda Item Page 9 of 11

Packet Page 176 of 308



Agenda Item Page 10 of 11

Packet Page 177 of 308



Resolution No. 2019-_______                                                                                         

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2019-________

A RESOLUTION OF THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS RATIFYING 2018 INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND GRAYS HARBOR 
COUNTY AND ITS AGENT GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY NOXIOUS WEED 
CONTROL BOARD SIGNED BY MEMBERS OF GRAYS HARBOR NOXIOUS 
WEED BOARD 

WHEREAS, the Grays Harbor County Noxious Weed Board has entered into an interagency 
agreement dated September 26, 2018, with the Washington State Department of Agriculture for grant 
funding to support the development of an invasive knotweed control program within Grays Harbor County; 
and

WHEREAS, the Grays Harbor County Board of Commissioners desires to ratify the 2018 
interagency agreement with the Washington State Department of Agriculture,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Grays Harbor County Board of 
Commissioners that the 2018 Interagency Agreement with the Washington State Department of Agriculture 
for grant funding to support the development of an invasive knotweed control program within Grays Harbor 
County is hereby ratified.

ADOPTED this _____ day of ____________________________, 2018.

BOARD OF COMMISSION
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

__________________________________________
Randy Ross, Chair, Commissioner

__________________________________________
Wes Cormier, Commissioner

__________________________________________
Vickie L. Raines, Commissioner

ATTEST: Approved as to form:

__________________________
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board Deputy Prosecuting Attorney

Agenda Item Page 11 of 11

Packet Page 178 of 308



DEPARTMENT: WSU Extension/Noxious Weed

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Sue Sparkman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Update Interagency Agreement and 2019 MOA with WSU

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Update of Interagency Agreement  (most recent from 1997 is attached)
2019 MOA between Grays Harbor County and Washington State University

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

County General Fund, 2019 Approved Budget

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Signed approval requested

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 9:00:00 AM

Update Interagency Agreement and 2019 MOA with WSUUpdate Interagency Agreement and 2019 MOA with WSUUpdate Interagency Agreement and 2019 MOA with WSUUpdate Interagency Agreement and 2019 MOA with WSU Agenda Item Page 1 of 10

Packet Page 179 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 10

Packet Page 180 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 10

Packet Page 181 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 10

Packet Page 182 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 10

Packet Page 183 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 10

Packet Page 184 of 308



      

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT

Between

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY EXTENSION

And

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

I. Mission Statement 

Washington State University Extension engages people, organizations and communities 
to advance knowledge, economic well-being and quality of life by fostering inquiry, 
learning, and the application of research.  This mission is carried out using research and 
experience-based educational programs from colleges and departments dispersed throughout 
the WSU system, which address important issues and needs of individuals and communities 
in all 39 counties in the state of Washington.  WSU Extension is enabled for this task as the 
Land Grant Institution for Washington through partnerships with county, state, and federal 
governments.

II. Purpose

The purpose of this agreement is to formalize the longstanding relationships between 
Washington State University Extension and County Government.  This also continues a 
longstanding, joint funding relationship for county/area Extension faculty and designated 
support staff.  This agreement conforms to the standards for interagency agreements set 
forth in RCW 39.34.130. 

III. Under terms of this Interagency Agreement, Washington State University Extension agrees 
to:

A. Recruit, employ and establish salaries for county/area Extension Educators and 
designated WSU support staff for County.

B. Assure that salary increase monies will be available for Extension Educators and 
designated support staff based on criteria established by the Washington State 
Legislature and Washington State University President.

C. Supplement the funds received from the county professional services contract and pay 
salary and fringe benefits for each county/area Extension Educator and designated staff 
members.

D. Submit to the County at the beginning of each month an invoice for ½ of the contract 
amount. Current monthly invoice to be billed by the 10th and payable on the 25th of the 
month, or on a schedule mutually agreed upon between WSU and the County. This is a 
fixed price agreement.

Agenda Item Page 7 of 10

Packet Page 185 of 308



E. In cases where position vacancies occur due to separations during a contract period, the 
counties will be invoiced to cover the county portion of annual leave and sick leave 
payout. 

F. Provide fringe benefits to county/area Extension Educators as outlined in the WSU 
Faculty Manual and provide fringe benefits to support staff as specified by the applicable 
agreement, policy, or law.

G. Grant annual leave, sick leave, professional leave, other leave and holidays as outlined in 
the WSU Faculty Manual for county/area Extension Educators or by the applicable 
agreement, policy, or law for jointly funded or fully WSU funded support staff.

H. Provide in-service education for county/area Extension faculty members.

IV. Under terms of this Interagency Agreement, County will:

A.  Pay the amount agreed upon monthly, or as mutually agreed upon, to Washington State 
University for Extension education services to be rendered in County.  This professional 
services contract, is known as a fixed price “Appendix A” to this agreement, shall be for 
a term of one calendar year and will be negotiated prior to the beginning of each 
calendar year.

B. Promptly pay the invoice voucher from Washington State University.  Current month 
invoice to be billed by the 10th and payable on the 25th of the month, or on a schedule 
mutually agreed upon between WSU and the County. This is a fixed price agreement.

C. The county agrees to pay the “county portion” of accumulated leave payments for 
contracted personnel due to separation.  

D. Contingent upon approval of the Board of County Commissioners or County Executive, 
the county will continue to support contracted personnel on professional or retraining 
leave.

E. Furnish office facilities for faculty and support staff.

F. Provide an adequate operating budget to carry out Extension educational programs for 
citizens of the County.  This budget will cover secretarial and support staff salaries not 
covered by this Agreement and telephone, office equipment, teaching and office supplies 
and travel costs.

G. Provide interagency agreement for use/rental of Fairgrounds meeting space/buildings at 
the established rate as available. 

V. Washington State University and County jointly agree that:

A. Additional program support staff positions may be employed and fully funded by either 
party to assist in carrying out Extension educational programs in the County.

Agenda Item Page 8 of 10

Packet Page 186 of 308



B. This Interagency Agreement is effective upon being signed by appropriate 
representatives of the two organizations.  It may be periodically reviewed and amended 
or supplemented as may be mutually agreed upon in writing.

VI. Terms of Modification or Termination of this Agreement:

A. This Interagency Agreement may be modified by the parties when mutually agreed 
upon in writing.  This Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated following 
mutual discussion and agreement.  Should the parties be unable to agree on the level of 
support for professional services of Extension Educators and jointly funded staff in an 
upcoming contract period specified in Appendix A to this document, either party may 
terminate the contract.  However, written notice of termination must be received before 
October 1 for termination effective January 1 of the next year.

VII. Records Retention

A. Both Washington State University and the County will maintain records which are 
sufficient and properly reflect all costs incurred under terms of this Interagency 
Agreement.  These records will be retained as set forth in the applicable retention 
schedule or six years, whichever is less.

APPROVED:

_____________________________________        _____________________________________
Michael J. Gaffney                                   Date         Randy Ross, Chair                 Date  
Acting Director                     Grays Harbor County Board of Commissioners
WSU Extension

_____________________________________         
Daniel G. Nordquist      Date
AVPRA/Director
Office of Research Services and Operations

Attest:

           ____________________________________
           Jenna Amsbury                                Date
           Clerk of the Board
           Grays Harbor County

Agenda Item Page 9 of 10

Packet Page 187 of 308



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY EXTENSION

And

    GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

APPENDIX A 

The following funds will be provided under this Memorandum of Agreement for the period 
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019 to provide WSU Extension programs.

TOTAL $189,111.00

Michael J. Gaffney             Date Randy Ross, Chairman  Date
Acting Director  District 2
WSU Extension

____________________________________
Wes Cormier, Commissioner              Date
District 1

Daniel G. Nordquist Date
Associate Vice President 
Office of Research Support & Operations   

  ____________________________________
Vickie L. Raines, Commissioner          Date
District 3

Attest:

______________________________________
Jenna Amsbury                                Date
Clerk of the Board
Grays Harbor County

Agenda Item Page 10 of 10

Packet Page 188 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Commissioners

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Jenna Amsbury

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Resolution re: I-1639

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Resolution opposing implementation of Washington State Initiative I-1639, or any trailer bill or any bill similar 
thereto which restricts the Individual rights of United States Citizens as protected by the Second Amendment of 
the United States Constitution or Art. I, Section 24 of the Washington State Constitution.  The County Sheriff is 
agreement with the Resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve 

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Resolution re: I-1639Resolution re: I-1639 Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 189 of 308



Grays Harbor County
RESOLUTION NO.________________

Resolution opposing implementation of Washington State Initiative I-1639, or any trailer bill or any bill 
similar thereto which restricts the Individual rights of United States Citizens as protected by the Second 
Amendment of the United States Constitution or Art. I, Section 24 of the Washington State Constitution.     

WHEREAS, the Right of the People to Keep and Bear Arms is guaranteed as an Individual Right 
under the Second Amendment to the United States Constitution and under Article I, Section 24 of the 
Constitution of the State of Washington;  and

WHEREAS, the Right of the People to Keep and Bear Arms for defense of Life, Liberty, and 
Property is regarded as an Inalienable Right by the residents of Grays Harbor County, Washington, and:

WHEREAS, the residents of Grays Harbor County derive economic benefit from all safe forms of 
firearms recreation, hunting, and shooting conducted within the County using all types of firearms 
allowable under federal and state constitutions;  and

WHEREAS, any provision or application of I-1639, and any trailer bill, or any bill similar thereto, 
which restricts the individual rights of United States Citizens as protected by the United States Constitution 
and the Washington State Constitution will create economic hardship on lawfully owned and operated, 
small business firearm dealerships; will create undue burdens and price increases on persons to lawfully 
purchase firearms; will have a direct negative impact on local economies through job loss and sales tax 
loss; will create a layer of burdensome, troublesome and unlawful governmental regulation;  and

WHEREAS, Grays Harbor County Board of Commissioners, being elected to represent the 
residents of Grays Harbor County and being duly sworn by their Oath of Office to uphold the United States 
Constitution and the Constitution of the State of Washington, including, but not limited to the protection of 
a lawful Right to Keep and Bear Arms, for defense of Life, Liberty and Property, and for safe forms of 
firearms recreation, hunting and shooting conducted within Grays Harbor County, Washington; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE AND IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Grays Harbor County 
Board of Commissioners does hereby oppose the implementation of I-1639 or the enactment of any 
legislation that would infringe upon the lawful rights of its residents to Keep and Bear Arms, and would 
consider such laws to be unconstitutional and beyond lawful application of its legislative and governance 
authority or duties.

Done in open session, this ______ day of February, 2019

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY, WA

       __________________________________
Randy Ross, Chairman

__________________________________
       Wes Cormier, Commissioner

       __________________________________
              Vickie L. Raines, Commissioner
Attest:
____________________________
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 190 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Fair, Events, and Tourism

DIVISION:  Tourism
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Mike Bruner

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2019 Grays Harbor Tourism Special Marketing Project Grants/Hospitality Project 
Grant

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
The Grays Harbor County Fairgrounds, Tourism and Parks Department is seeking Board of County Commissioners confirmation of the 
2019 Grays Harbor Tourism Special Marketing Project Grant allocations recommended by the Grays Harbor Tourism Lodging Tax Advisory 
Committee.  Please note there is $100,000.00 budgeted for Special Marketing Project Grants in the 2019 Tourism Budget, and the LTAC is 
recommending allocations totaling $100,000.00.  Projects are detailed below.  Please note if the Board of Commissioners wishes to review 
the Grant Applications in detail, they are located on the G Drive under g/everyone/fair/2019 Tourism Special Marketing Grant.  
98520 & 98550 October Music Festival – Recommended funding amount:  $19,700.00
2019 Chocolate on the Beach Festival – Recommended funding amount:  $0.00
Seabrook I-5 Billboard Project – Recommended funding amount:  $0.00
Seabrook Bands by the Beach – Recommended funding amount:  $36,100.00 with the criteria that a detailed marketing plan be submitted
Grays Harbor Talk Social Media Content Marketing Option “C”:  Recommended funding amount:  $44,200.00

Also recommended for funding through the Tourism Hospitality and Special Project Grant Fund, which is separate fund from the above 
detailed $100,000.00 Special Marketing Project Grant Line Item, was an application from the Port of Grays Harbor for advertising for 
Friends Landing in the Good Sam Directory.  The LTAC Recommended funding amount for this project is $3,000.00.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:  Budgetary Line Item

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Board of County Commissioners confirmation of the Grant Funding 
Recommendations from the Grays Harbor County Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

2019 Grays Harbor Tourism Special Marketing Project... Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 191 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Forestry

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Andrea Todd

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  2019 Timber Sales

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Please review the proposal of the 2019 Timber Sales and authorize the Grays Harbor County Treasurer to 
advertise and sell at public auction.

Please set March 15, 2019 and April 19, 2019 at the hour of 10:00 a.m. as the dates and time of these timber 
sales.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize 2019 Timber Sales.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

2019 Timber Sales2019 Timber Sales Agenda Item Page 1 of 3

Packet Page 192 of 308



January 18, 2019

Board of County Commissioners
Grays Harbor County
100 West Broadway, Suite 1
Montesano, Washington  98563

RE:  2019 Timber Sales

Members of the Board:

We are proposing the following timber sales be offered at public action:

    March 15, 2019

Sale Name Estimated Volume Estimated Value

Lytle Creek No. 10 6,528.00 MBF $ 2,128,297.00  
East Hoquiam River No. 4 3,823.00 MBF $1,336,009.00  
Raney Creek No. 11 883.00 MBF $273,133.00
West Fork Andrews Creek No. 2
(Cedar Salvage)

215 Cords $75,000.00

    April 19, 2019

Sale Name
Polson Pond #3

Estimated Volume
3,601.00  MBF

Estimated Value
$1,606,130.00

South Fork Andrews Creek #1 2,539.00 MBF $579,924.00
West Fork Andrews Creek #3 Pending $660,000.00

      (Pending FPA approval)
TOTALS $6,658,493.00

310 W. Spruce St., Suite 100
Montesano, WA  98563
Office: (360) 249-5071
Fax: (360) 249-5696

DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY
DON L. SMITH, Director

JON W. PRICE, Deputy Director

Agenda Item Page 2 of 3

Packet Page 193 of 308



If the Board is in agreement with the foregoing proposal, please authorize the Grays Harbor 
County Treasurer to advertise and sell at public auction, the above listed timber sales.

Please set March 15, 2019 and April 19, 2019 at the hour of 10:00 a.m. as the dates and time 
for these timber sales.

Sincerely,

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
DEPT. OF FORESTRY

Don Smith
Director

Attest:

Clerk of the Board

Date:

APPROVAL:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

Randy Ross, Chairman

Wes Cormier, District 1

Vickie L. Raines, District 3

Date:

Agenda Item Page 3 of 3

Packet Page 194 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Forestry

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Andrea Todd

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Port Blakely Easement Exchange

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Please find attached two copies of a partially executed Easement and Right-of-Way Exchange 
Agreement with Port Blakely Tree Farms for your review and signature.  This Easement provides 
perpetual access to approximately 560 acres of county forestland.  The access received in the 
exchange is equal to that which we are granting, so therefore there is no cost involved.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Please review, sign, and return to the Forestry Department.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Port Blakely Easement ExchangePort Blakely Easement Exchange Agenda Item Page 1 of 7

Packet Page 195 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 7

Packet Page 196 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 7

Packet Page 197 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 7

Packet Page 198 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 7

Packet Page 199 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 7

Packet Page 200 of 308



Agenda Item Page 7 of 7

Packet Page 201 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Resolution adjusting budgeted beginning cash

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

This resolution adjusts the budgeted beginning cash in all County funds to the actual balance as of 
January 1, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Resolution adjusting budgeted beginning cashResolution adjusting budgeted beginning cashResolution adjusting budgeted beginning cash Agenda Item Page 1 of 4

Packet Page 202 of 308



 
RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS AUTHORIZING ADJUSTMENTS TO BUDGETED 
BEGINNING CASH BALANCES AS OF JANUARY 1, 2019 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Grays Harbor County (“the Board”) finds it is necessary 
and appropriate that adjustments be made within specified general and miscellaneous County 
fund budgets to reflect the actual beginning cash balances as of January 1, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board, having conducted a duly advertised public meeting as provided by law, 
further finds that the Auditor should be authorized and directed to adjust the budgets of County 
funds identified in Attachment “A” to this resolution, in the amounts stated therein as actually 
existing on January 1, 2019,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners that the Grays 
Harbor County Auditor is hereby authorized and directed to adjust the attached 2019 beginning 
cash balances to the actual amount in the budget of each fund as stated in Attachment “A” hereto.   
 
ADOPTED this ________ day of _________________, 2019. 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY 

 
 

________________________________________ 
Chair 
 

 
________________________________________ 
Commissioner 
 

 
________________________________________ 
Commissioner 

 
Attest:       
 
______________________________  
Clerk of the Board           

Agenda Item Page 2 of 4

Packet Page 203 of 308



Resolution No. __________  Attachment A
Adjusting Budgeted Beginning Cash to Actual at 1/1/19

Beginning Cash Ending Cash
Fund # Fund Name BARS Account Amount BARS Account Amount

001-000-000 General Fund 308-80-00-00 $387,024 508-80-00-00 $387,024
101-000-000 Special Projects 308-10-00-00 $1,476 508-10-00-00 $1,476
102-000-000 Auditor's M & O 308-10-00-00 ($21,021) 508-10-00-00 ($21,021)
103-000-000 Fair 308-10-00-00 ($4,343) 508-10-00-00 ($4,343)
104-000-000 Trial Court Improvement 308-10-00-00 $7,952 508-10-00-00 $7,952
105-000-000 Paths & Trails 308-10-00-00 $12,621 508-10-00-00 $12,621
106-000-000 Law Library 308-10-00-00 $15,848 508-10-00-00 $15,848
107-000-000 Affordable Housing 308-10-00-00 $13,961 508-10-00-00 $13,961
108-000-000 Sheriff's Law Enforcement 308-10-00-00 $30,834 508-10-00-00 $30,834
108-200-000 Federal Equitable Sharing 308-10-00-00 ($11,935) 508-10-00-00 ($11,935)
109-000-000 Crime Victim Penalty Assmt 308-10-00-00 $31,275 508-10-00-00 $31,275
110-000-000 Roads 308-10-00-00 $2,406,637 508-10-00-00 $2,406,637
111-000-000 Treasurer's M & O 308-10-00-00 $45,349 508-10-00-00 $45,349
112-000-000 Stadium 308-10-00-00 $196,755 508-10-00-00 $196,755
112-000-100 Tourism 308-10-00-00 $164,517 508-10-00-00 $164,517
113-000-000 GH Raceway 308-10-00-00 $3,951 508-10-00-00 $3,951
114-000-000 Veterans Relief 308-10-00-00 $100,220 508-10-00-00 $100,220
116-000-000 Election Reserve 308-10-00-00 $25,328 508-10-00-00 $25,328
117-000-000 Ab Landfill Postclosure 308-10-00-00 ($24,115) 508-10-00-00 ($24,115)
118-000-000 ORV Park 308-10-00-00 $17,967 508-10-00-00 $17,967
129-000-000 Public Health & Social Services 308-10-00-00 $575,857 508-10-00-00 $575,857
130-000-000 Real Estate Excise Tax Tech 308-10-00-00 ($445) 508-10-00-00 ($445)
131-000-000 Tax Refund 308-10-00-00 $0 508-10-00-00 $0
132-000-000 Excise/Revaluation Maintenance 308-10-00-00 $45,171 508-10-00-00 $45,171
137-000-000 Public Safety Sales Tax 308-80-00-00 $190,919 508-80-00-00 $190,919
139-000-000 Chem Dep/MH/Therap Court 308-10-00-00 $338,762 508-10-00-00 $338,762
140-000-002 Developmental Disabilities 308-10-00-00 $41,577 508-10-00-00 $41,577
140-000-400 MH/DDD Levy Tax 308-10-00-00 ($2,036) 508-10-00-00 ($2,036)
145-000-000 Homeless Housing 308-10-00-00 $197,169 508-10-00-00 $197,169
301-000-000 Facilities Capital 308-10-00-00 ($18,192) 508-10-00-00 ($18,192)
302-000-000 Software Replacement Reserve 308-10-00-00 $84,238 508-10-00-00 $84,238
305-000-000 Reserve for Courtroom Constr 308-10-00-00 $13,690 508-10-00-00 $13,690
307-000-000 Cumulative Reserve for Constr 308-10-00-00 ($49,162) 508-10-00-00 ($49,162)
309-000-000 Capital Improvements 308-10-00-00 $81,564 508-10-00-00 $81,564
310-000-000 Distressed Area Capital 308-10-00-00 $292,229 508-10-00-00 $292,229
401-000-100 Solid Waste Plan 308-10-00-00 $295,558 508-10-00-00 $295,558
402-000-000 Hogan's Corner Water System 308-10-00-00 $62,965 508-10-00-00 $62,965
403-000-000 Tax Title Management 308-10-00-00 $843,508 508-10-00-00 $843,508
404-000-000 PB Sewer M & O 308-10-00-00 $161,085 508-10-00-00 $161,085
404-000-100 PB Sewer Construction 308-10-00-00 $0 508-10-00-00 $0
404-007-201 PB Sewer Bond Res ULID #7 308-10-00-00 $1,841 508-10-00-00 $1,841
404-008-200 PB Sewer Bond ULID #8 308-10-00-00 $5,467 508-10-00-00 $5,467
405-000-000 PB/Moclips Water Sys M & O 308-10-00-00 $218,990 508-10-00-00 $218,990

Page 1

Agenda Item Page 3 of 4

Packet Page 204 of 308



Resolution No. __________  Attachment A
Adjusting Budgeted Beginning Cash to Actual at 1/1/19

Beginning Cash Ending Cash
Fund # Fund Name BARS Account Amount BARS Account Amount

406-000-000 North Beach Water System 308-10-00-00 ($11,162) 508-10-00-00 ($11,162)
407-000-000 Illahee Oyehut Sewer System 308-10-00-00 $171,320 508-10-00-00 $171,320
501-000-000 E R & R 308-10-00-00 $472,580 508-10-00-00 $472,580
501-000-100 E R & R Replacement 308-10-00-00 ($162,460) 508-10-00-00 ($162,460)
501-000-200 E R & R Maintenance Facility 308-10-00-00 ($29,000) 508-10-00-00 ($29,000)
501-000-300 E R & R Communication Facility 308-10-00-00 ($2,608) 508-10-00-00 ($2,608)
503-000-000 Central Services 308-10-00-00 ($23,564) 508-10-00-00 ($23,564)
503-000-100 Central Services Replacement 308-10-00-00 $12,405 508-10-00-00 $12,405
504-000-000 Management Services 308-10-00-00 ($73,725) 508-10-00-00 ($73,725)

Totals $7,134,842 $7,134,842

Page 2

Agenda Item Page 4 of 4

Packet Page 205 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 102

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

This resolution increases appropriations for records management software in the amount of $15,000.  
Ending cash is sufficient to allow this transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

Auditor’s M & O funding

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 102Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 102 Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 206 of 308



RESOLUTION NO.___________

TRANSFERRING ITEMS IN THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS FUND AUDITOR’S M & O #102-000-000

WHEREAS, it appears that an adjustment should be made within the budget of the Grays 
Harbor County Miscellaneous Funds, Auditor’s M & O Fund #102-000-000; 

WHEREAS, there appear to be sufficient funds in other accounts to permit the necessary 
adjustment to be made as requested;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Auditor be authorized and directed 
as follows:

Transfer From:
102-000-000-508-10-00-00 Reserved Ending Cash $15,000

Transfer To:
102-000-000-594-14-64-04 Records Management Software $15,000

ADOPTED this ____________ day of _____________________________, 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

_________________________________________
Chair

_________________________________________
ATTEST: Commissioner

________________________________ _________________________________________
Clerk of the Board Commissioner

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 207 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Budget Transfer Resolution

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

This resolution appropriates the remaining balance in this fund for the third courtroom project.  Ending cash is 
sufficient to allow this transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
Appropriates the remaining balance in this fund

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 2:00:00 PM

Budget Transfer ResolutionBudget Transfer Resolution Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 208 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 209 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 101

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Transfer budget for the WSDOE Streamflow grant to its own budget lines

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 2:00:00 PM

Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 101Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 101 Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 210 of 308



RESOLUTION NO.___________

TRANSFERRING ITEMS IN THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS FUND SPECIAL PROJECTS #101-000-000

WHEREAS, it appears that an adjustment should be made within the budget of the Grays 
Harbor County Miscellaneous Funds, Special Projects Fund #101-000-000; 

WHEREAS, there appear to be sufficient funds in other accounts to permit the necessary 
adjustment to be made as requested;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Auditor be authorized and directed 
as follows:

Transfer From:
101-000-000-334-02-70-08 RCO Lead Entity Grant $100,000
101-000-000-573-90-41-04 RCO Lead Entity Grant    100,000

Transfer To:
101-000-000-334-03-10-06 WSDOE CB Stream Flow $100,000

    101-000-000-558-60-41-35      WSDOE CB Stream Flow            100,000

ADOPTED this ____________ day of _____________________________, 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

_________________________________________
Chair

_________________________________________
ATTEST: Commissioner

________________________________ _________________________________________
Clerk of the Board Commissioner

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 211 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 113

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Authorize transfers out to the Fair Building Construction Fund for 2018 and 2019, $8,700 each year.  Ending 
cash is sufficient to allow this transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
Ending cash

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 113Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 113 Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 212 of 308



RESOLUTION NO.___________ 
 
 

TRANSFERRING ITEMS IN THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY 
MISCELLANEOUS FUND GH RACEWAY #113-000-000 

 
 WHEREAS, it appears that an adjustment should be made within the budget of the Grays 
Harbor County Miscellaneous Fund, GH Raceway #113-000-000;  
 
 WHEREAS, there appear to be sufficient funds in other accounts to permit the necessary 
adjustment to be made as requested; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Auditor be authorized and directed 
as follows: 
 
 
TRANSFER FROM: 
113-000-000-508-10-00-00 Ending Cash & Investments    $ 17,400 
   
TRANSFER TO: 
113-000-000-597-00-00-00 Transfer Out – Fair Building Construction              $  17,400 

 
     
           
 ADOPTED this ____________ day of _____________________________, 2019. 
 
 
      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
       FOR GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Chair 
 
      _________________________________________ 
ATTEST:     Commissioner 
 
________________________________ _________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board    Commissioner 
 

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 213 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Brenda Sherman

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 301

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Resolution increases appropriations to include two projects in the jail:  kitchen improvements $20,000 and 
sewer upgrades $200,000.  Ending cash in sufficient to allow this transfer.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

Ending cash

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approval

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 2:00:00 PM

Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 301Budget Transfer Resolution - Fund 301 Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 214 of 308



RESOLUTION NO.___________

TRANSFERRING ITEMS IN THE GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
MISCELLANEOUS FUND

FACILITIES CAPITAL #301-000-000

WHEREAS, it appears that an adjustment should be made within the budget of the Grays 
Harbor County Facilities Capital Fund #301-000-000; 

WHEREAS, there appear to be sufficient funds in other accounts to permit the necessary 
adjustment to be made as requested;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Auditor be authorized and 
directed as follows:

TRANSFER FROM:
301-000-000-508-10-00-00 Ending Cash & Investments $220,000

TRANSFER TO:
301-000-000-594-23-65-03 Jail Kitchen Improvements $20,000
301-000-000-594-23-65-04 Jail Sewer Upgrades       $200,000

ADOPTED this ____________ day of ________________________________, 2019.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FOR GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

________________________________________
Chair

________________________________________
ATTEST: Commissioner

_________________________________ ________________________________________
Clerk of the Board Commissioner

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 215 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Management Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Marilyn Lewis

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Annual Title VI Update & Accomplishment Report

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The Annual Title VI Update & Accomplishment Report is an annual report required to continue federal funding 
for public works projects.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Annual Title VI Update & Accomplishment Report Agenda Item Page 1 of 1

Packet Page 216 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Health and Social Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Julie Myers

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  River of Life - Dads Matter - 2019 Agreement

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Submitted for your approval is our 2019 agreement with Grays Harbor River of Life Fellowship for delivery of 
the Dads Matter program.  Dads Matter is an education and support curriculum designed to address and 
remediate the issues leading to fathers having their children removed by the State and placed in foster care.  
This amendment extends our original River of Life – Dads Matter agreement, through 12/31/2019.  The total 
amount of this agreement is $25,480 and is funded by Treatment Sales Tax Dollars.

This agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

$25,480/Treatment Sales Tax Dollars

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Please approve

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

River of Life - Dads Matter - 2019 AmendmentRiver of Life - Dads Matter - 2019 AmendmentRiver of Life - Dads Matter - 2019 Amendment Agenda Item Page 1 of 11

Packet Page 217 of 308



Page 1 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Grays Harbor County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Washington, through its Department of Public Health and Social 
Services, hereinafter referred to as “County,” and Grays Harbor River of Life Fellowship, 
hereinafter referred to as “Agency” to provide the Dads Matter program.

WHEREAS, RCW 82.14.460 authorizes the use of sales tax collected by counties for chemical 
dependency or mental health treatment services; and

WHEREAS, fathers who have had their children removed from their care by the State need 
support to address the issues leading to the children being placed out of their home; and

WHEREAS, education, training and assistance accessing mental health and substance use 
treatment services have been demonstrated to help successfully return these families to their 
natural state; and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to provide grants to entities which meet the requirements 
for use of the sales tax collected under RCW 82.14.460; and

WHEREAS, the County has reviewed and approved the proposal submitted by Agency for 
helping address the mental illness and substance use disorder conditions affecting these fathers,
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. TERMS.  This agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2019  to December 31, 2019. 
Total consideration payable to Agency for satisfactory performance of the work under this 
Agreement shall be a maximum of $25,480. Agency may bill County on a monthly basis.  
Reimbursement will require Agency to supply documentation of the actual costs.

Monthly invoices shall be in a format approved by the County.  Invoices shall be sent to:

Grays Harbor County Public Health and Social Services
Fiscal Department, 

2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200
Aberdeen, WA 98520

2. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.  The parties intend that an independent 
contractor relationship will be created by this Agreement.  No agent, employee, servant, or 
representative of the Agency shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant, or representative 
of the County for any purpose, and the employees of the Agency are not entitled to any of the 
benefits the County provides for County employees.  The Agency will be solely and entirely 
responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, subcontractors, or 
otherwise during the performance of this Agreement.

Agenda Item Page 2 of 11

Packet Page 218 of 308



Page 2 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

3.  MODIFICATION.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing 
duly authorized and executed by all parties.  Any such amendment shall be attached to and 
incorporated into this Agreement. This modification amendment shall include annual extensions 
of the termination date, as agreed by the parties.  

4. RESULTS TO BE ACHIEVED. County is interested only in the results to be 
achieved; the implementation of services will lie solely with Agency. However, the results of the 
work contemplated must meet the approval of County and shall be subject to County’s general 
rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  

5. USES OF FUNDS. The Contractor shall ensure that the individuals participating in 
services funded by this agreement are affected by mental illness or substance use disorders.  The 
Contractor is responsible for maintaining documentation establishing the service recipients’ 
eligibility.  Agency shall ensure funds are used for the following activities:

Program or 
Service Description

Reimbursement 
Method

The Dads Matter 
Program

Dads Matter is an education and support curriculum 
designed to address and remediate the issues leading 
to fathers having their children removed from their 
care by the State and placed in foster care.  Services 
under this agreement include 

• Reaching out to fathers at or around the time 
of court proceedings resulting in out-of-home 
placement for their children to offer services; 

• Following up with fathers to encourage 
program participation; 

• Convening groups for fathers to provide 
education, support, information, referral, and 
mentorship using a curriculum approved by 
the State;

• Accompanying fathers to appointments and 
commitments needed to address the issues 
that led to their children being placed out of 
the home;

• Payment for child care so fathers can 
participate in program activities;

• Stipends to program staff called Ally Parents 
for delivering recovery support services to 
fathers and to defray costs the Ally Parents 
incur in service to the program.

Agency shall deliver 
the services listed in 
the Description 
column throughout 
the contract period.  
Agency shall submit 
Monthly invoices to 
County.  While 
monthly invoice 
amounts will vary 
with the volume of 
services delivered, 
amount of child care 
purchased, and 
number and type of 
stipends distributed, 
total consideration for 
the contract period 
shall not exceed 
$25,480.

Agenda Item Page 3 of 11

Packet Page 219 of 308



Page 3 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  Agency shall participate in the design and 
implementation of program evaluation procedures through meetings convened by County or its 
designee, and shall report data related to program evaluation in a manner approved by the 
County.  At a minimum Agency shall document that people served under this agreement are 
impacted by untreated mental illness or substance use disorders.

7. ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.  Agency agrees to 
maintain books, records, documents and accounting procedures, and practices which accurately 
reflect the use of the funds provided under this Agreement.  Agency shall retain all books, 
records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement for six (6) years after its 
expiration.  Agency agrees that County or its designee shall have full access and right to examine 
any of said materials at all reasonable times during said period.

8. INDEMNIFICATION. All services to be rendered or performed under this contract will 
be performed or rendered entirely at the Agency’s own risk and the Agency expressly agrees to 
indemnify and hold harmless the County and its departments, elected and appointed officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers, from any and all liability, loss, or damage that they may suffer 
as a result of claims, demands, actions, or damages to any and all persons or property, costs, or 
judgments against the County, which result from, arise out of, or are in any way connected with 
the services to be performed by the Agency under this contract. The Agency agrees that all 
Agency’s indemnification obligations shall survive the termination, completion, or expiration of 
this contract.

9.  INSURANCE.  Agency shall carry at its own expense the following insurance coverage 
to the extent described below:

• Commercial General Liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, 2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability.

• Professional Liability in the amount of $1,500,000 per occurrence.
• Automobile insurance covering bodily injury and property damage activities of the      

Agency arising out of or, in connection with Work to be performed under this Agreement 
in an amount not less than 1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident.

• Agency shall procure policies for all insurance required by this section for a period of not 
less than one year and shall provide the County (on or before the date this Agreement 
commences) with a certificate of insurance as satisfactory evidence that the premiums 
have been paid and that such insurance policy is in effect.  The County shall be carried as 
a named insured on each insurance policy required by this section.

Upon demand by the County, Agency shall provide a complete copy of all policies for insurance 
required by this Agreement.  This requirement is supplementary to, but does not replace the 
requirement in this Agreement to provide the County with certificates of insurance as satisfactory 
evidence that the premiums have been paid and that such insurance policy is in effect.

10.  ASSIGNMENT OR SUBCONTRACTING.  The Agency shall not subcontract, nor 
assign this Agreement or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the County.

Agenda Item Page 4 of 11

Packet Page 220 of 308



Page 4 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Agency, in performance of this Agreement, agrees to 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws or ordinances, including federal and 
state nondiscrimination statutes and regulations.

Agency assumes full responsibility for the payment of all assessments, payroll taxes, or 
contributions, whether State or Federal, as to Agency and all of Agency’s employees, if any, 
engaged in the performance of work under this agreement.  Agency shall furnish to the County, 
on its request, a certificate or other evidence of compliance with all State or Federal laws 
concerning contributions, taxes, and payroll assessments.  In addition, Agency agrees to pay any 
and all taxes or assessments of whatever nature or kind levied or assessed as a consequence of 
the work performed or on the compensation to be paid under this contract.

12. TERMINATION.  Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party 
of the intent to withdraw.  

Termination for Cause.  If the Agency fails to perform in the manner called for in this 
Agreement, or if the Agency fails to comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails 
to correct such noncompliance within ten (10) days written notice thereof, the County may 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on the Agency setting forth the manner in which the Agency is in default.  The 
Agency will only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance 
set forth in this Agreement.

13. NOTICE.  Any official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be 
deemed delivered upon deposit thereof in the United States mail by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, with postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

County  River of Life
Grays Harbor County Contract Manager
2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200 308 W. King St.
Aberdeen, WA  98520 Aberdeen, WA 98520 
Attn:  Manger – Social Services Attn:  Pastor Doug Marks 

The above addresses may be changed by either party by giving written notice to the other.

14.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE.  The laws of the State of Washington govern this 
Agreement. In the event of a lawsuit by the Agency against the County involving this Agreement, 
venue shall be proper only in Grays Harbor County, Washington. In the event of a lawsuit by the 
County against the Agency involving this Agreement, venue shall be proper only as provided in 
RCW 36.01.050. 

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete 
expression of the terms hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated 

Agenda Item Page 5 of 11

Packet Page 221 of 308



Page 5 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

herein are excluded.  Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed 
by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be signed and attested to by 
the respective officers on the date indicated below.

DATED: ____________________, 2019

RIVER OF LIFE  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 for Grays Harbor County

     
Director Chair          

                Commissioner

Commissioner
ATTEST:

_______________________________
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 6 of 11

Packet Page 222 of 308



Page 1 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Grays Harbor County, a political 
subdivision of the State of Washington, through its Department of Public Health and Social 
Services, hereinafter referred to as “County,” and Grays Harbor River of Life Fellowship, 
hereinafter referred to as “Contractor” to provide the Dads Matter program.

WHEREAS, RCW 82.14.460 authorizes the use of sales tax collected by counties for chemical 
dependency or mental health treatment services; and

WHEREAS, fathers who have had their children removed from their care by the State need 
support to address the issues leading to the children being placed out of their home; and

WHEREAS, education, training and assistance accessing mental health and substance use 
treatment services have been demonstrated to help successfully return these families to their 
natural state; and

WHEREAS, the County is authorized to provide grants to entities which meet the requirements 
for use of the sales tax collected under RCW 82.14.460; and

WHEREAS, the County has reviewed and approved the proposal submitted by Contractor for 
helping address the mental illness and substance use disorder conditions affecting these fathers,
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. TERMS.  This agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. 
Total consideration payable to Contractor for satisfactory performance of the work under this 
Agreement shall be a maximum of $25,480. Contractor may bill County on a monthly basis.  
Reimbursement will require Contractor to supply documentation of the actual costs.

Monthly invoices shall be in a format approved by the County.  Invoices shall be sent to:

Grays Harbor County Public Health and Social Services
Fiscal Department, 

2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200
Aberdeen, WA 98520

2. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.  The parties intend that an independent 
contractor relationship will be created by this Agreement.  No agent, employee, servant, or 
representative of the Contractor shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, servant, or 
representative of the County for any purpose, and the employees of the Contractor are not entitled 
to any of the benefits the County provides for County employees.  The Contractor will be solely 
and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, 
subcontractors, or otherwise during the performance of this Agreement.

Agenda Item Page 7 of 11

Packet Page 223 of 308



Page 2 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

3.  MODIFICATION.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing 
duly authorized and executed by all parties.  Any such amendment shall be attached to and 
incorporated into this Agreement. This modification amendment shall include annual extensions 
of the termination date, as agreed by the parties.  

4. RESULTS TO BE ACHIEVED. County is interested only in the results to be 
achieved; the implementation of services will lie solely with Contractor. However, the results of 
the work contemplated must meet the approval of County and shall be subject to County’s 
general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  

5. USES OF FUNDS. The Contractor shall ensure that the individuals participating in 
services funded by this agreement are affected by mental illness or substance use disorders.  The 
Contractor is responsible for maintaining documentation establishing the service recipients’ 
eligibility.  Contractor shall ensure funds are used for the following activities:

Program or 
Service Description

Reimbursement 
Method

The Dads Matter 
Program

Dads Matter is an education and support curriculum 
designed to address and remediate the issues leading 
to fathers having their children removed from their 
care by the State and placed in foster care.  Services 
under this agreement include 

• Reaching out to fathers at or around the time 
of court proceedings resulting in out-of-home 
placement for their children to offer services; 

• Following up with fathers to encourage 
program participation; 

• Convening groups for fathers to provide 
education, support, information, referral, and 
mentorship using a curriculum approved by 
the State;

• Accompanying fathers to appointments and 
commitments needed to address the issues 
that led to their children being placed out of 
the home;

• Payment for child care so fathers can 
participate in program activities;

• Stipends to program staff called Ally Parents 
for delivering recovery support services to 
fathers and to defray costs the Ally Parents 
incur in service to the program.

Contractor shall 
deliver the services 
listed in the 
Description column 
throughout the 
contract period.  
Contractor shall 
submit Monthly 
invoices to County.  
While monthly 
invoice amounts will 
vary with the volume 
of services delivered, 
amount of child care 
purchased, and 
number and type of 
stipends distributed, 
total consideration for 
the contract period 
shall not exceed 
$25,480.

Agenda Item Page 8 of 11

Packet Page 224 of 308



Page 3 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  Contractor shall participate in the design and 
implementation of program evaluation procedures through meetings convened by County or its 
designee, and shall report data related to program evaluation in a manner approved by the 
County.  At a minimum Contractor shall document that people served under this agreement are 
impacted by untreated mental illness or substance use disorders.

7. ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.  Contractor agrees to 
maintain books, records, documents and accounting procedures, and practices which accurately 
reflect the use of the funds provided under this Agreement.  Contractor shall retain all books, 
records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement for six (6) years after its 
expiration.  Contractor agrees that County or its designee shall have full access and right to 
examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said period.

8. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  All services to be rendered or performed 
under this Agreement will be performed or rendered entirely at Contractor’s own risk and 
Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its departments, 
elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers,, from any and all liability, loss 
or damage that it may suffer as a result of claims, demands, actions, or damages to any and all 
persons or property, costs or judgments against the County which result from, arise out of, or are 
in any way connected with the services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.  
Contractor agrees that all the Contractor’s indemnification obligations shall survive the 
completion, expiration, or termination of this Agreement.

9.  INSURANCE.  Contractor shall carry at its own expense the following insurance 
coverage to the extent described below:

• Commercial General Liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, 2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability.

• Professional Liability in the amount of $1,500,000 per occurrence.
• Automobile insurance covering bodily injury and property damage activities of the      

Contractor arising out of or, in connection with Work to be performed under this 
Agreement in an amount not less than 1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident.

• Contractor shall procure policies for all insurance required by this section for a period of 
not less than one year and shall provide the County (on or before the date this Agreement 
commences) with a certificate of insurance as satisfactory evidence that the premiums 
have been paid and that such insurance policy is in effect.  The County shall be carried as 
a named insured on each insurance policy required by this section.

Upon demand by the County, Contractor shall provide a complete copy of all policies for 
insurance required by this Agreement.  This requirement is supplementary to, but does not 
replace the requirement in this Agreement to provide the County with certificates of insurance as 
satisfactory evidence that the premiums have been paid and that such insurance policy is in 
effect.

Agenda Item Page 9 of 11

Packet Page 225 of 308



Page 4 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

10.  ASSIGNMENT OR SUBCONTRACTING.  The Contractor shall not subcontract, nor 
assign this Agreement or any portion thereof without the prior written consent of the County.

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Contractor, in performance of this Agreement, agrees 
to comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws or ordinances, including federal and 
state nondiscrimination statutes and regulations.

Contractor assumes full responsibility for the payment of all assessments, payroll taxes, or 
contributions, whether State or Federal, as to Contractor and all of Contractor’s employees, if 
any, engaged in the performance of work under this agreement.  Contractor shall furnish to the 
County, on its request, a certificate or other evidence of compliance with all State or Federal laws 
concerning contributions, taxes, and payroll assessments.  In addition, Contractor agrees to pay 
any and all taxes or assessments of whatever nature or kind levied or assessed as a consequence 
of the work performed or on the compensation to be paid under this contract.

12. TERMINATION.  Termination for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this 
Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party 
of the intent to withdraw.  

Termination for Cause.  If the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in this 
Agreement, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and 
fails to correct such noncompliance within ten (10) days written notice thereof, the County may 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on the Contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default.  The 
Contractor will only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of 
performance set forth in this Agreement.

13. NOTICE.  Any official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be 
deemed delivered upon deposit thereof in the United States mail by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, with postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed as follows:

County  River of Life
Grays Harbor County Contract Manager
2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200 308 W. King St.
Aberdeen, WA  98520 Aberdeen, WA 98520 
Attn:  Manger – Social Services Attn:  Pastor Doug Marks 

The above addresses may be changed by either party by giving written notice to the other.

14.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE.  The laws of the State of Washington govern this 
Agreement. In the event of a lawsuit by the Contractor against the County involving this 
Agreement, venue shall be proper only in Grays Harbor County, Washington. In the event of a 
lawsuit by the County against the Contractor involving this Agreement, venue shall be proper 
only as provided in RCW 36.01.050. 

Agenda Item Page 10 of 11

Packet Page 226 of 308



Page 5 of 5
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\River of Life Dads Matter

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete 
expression of the terms hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated 
herein are excluded.  Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed 
by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be signed and attested to by 
the respective officers on the date indicated below.

DATED: ____________________, 2019

RIVER OF LIFE  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
 for Grays Harbor County

     
Director Chair          

                Commissioner

Commissioner
ATTEST:

_______________________________
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 11 of 11

Packet Page 227 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Health and Social Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Julie Myers

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Evergreen Treatment Services - Jail Based Services 2019

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Submitted for your approval is an agreement with Evergreen Treatment Services (ETS).  
This agreement helps address the opioid crisis impacting the County Jail.  The contractor 
provides assessment and treatment services to individuals with opioid use disorders in 
the jail.  The program is a collaboration between Dr. Shin, the Grays Harbor County 
Sheriff’s Department and ETS with the goal to begin treating individuals while 
incarcerated and ensuring coordinated care in the community upon release from the 
jail.  The agreement is for the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.  
The total amount of this agreement is $39,700.00 and it is funded by Treatment Sales 
Tax dollars.  

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
$39,700.00/Treatment Sales Tax dollars

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Please approve

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Evergreen Treatment Services - Jail Based Services 2019Evergreen Treatment Services - Jail Based Services 2019 Agenda Item Page 1 of 6

Packet Page 228 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR JAIL BASED MAT SERVICES 2019 
 

Page 1 of 5 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Evergreen Treatment - Jail Based Services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT   
 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Grays Harbor County Public Health and Social  
Services hereinafter referred to as “County,” and Evergreen Treatment Services, hereinafter referred to 
as “Contractor,” to provide medication assisted treatment and chemical dependency assessment services, 
which is part of the jail opiate use disorder intervention program. 
 

WHEREAS, RCW 82.14.460 authorizes the use of sales tax collected by counties for chemical 
dependency or mental health treatment services; and 
 

WHEREAS, Contractor provides treatment and care coordination services for persons with substance 
use disorder; and 
 

WHEREAS, healthcare initiatives have not yet resulted in payment methodology that covers all of 
Contractor’s costs to deliver continuity of care while clients are incarcerated; and 
 

WHEREAS, County has reviewed and approved the services provided in collaboration with medical 
services within the County jail which uses local funds to cover unreimbursed treatment costs to promote 
the stability of patients while incarcerated and at reentry into community-based care; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance contained 
herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1. TERMS.  This agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. Total 
consideration payable to Contractor for satisfactory performance of the work under this Agreement shall 
be a maximum of $ 39,700. Contractor shall bill County on a monthly basis. 
 
Monthly invoices shall be in a format approved by the County.  Invoices shall be sent to: 
 

Grays Harbor County Public Health and Social Services 
Fiscal Department,  

2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200 
Aberdeen, WA 98520 

 

2.   MODIFICATION.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a writing duly 
authorized person and executed by all parties.  Any such amendment shall be attached to and 
incorporated into this Agreement. This modification amendment may include annual extensions of the 
termination date, as agreed by the parties in writing.   
 

3. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.  The parties intend that an independent Contractor 
relationship will be created by this Agreement.  The County is interested only in the results to be 
achieved; the implementation of services will lie solely with the Contractor. However, the results of the 
work contemplated must meet the approval of the County and shall be subject to the County’s general 
rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory completion thereof.  Neither Contractor nor any 
agent, employee, servant, or representative of Contractor shall be deemed to be an employee, agent, 
servant, or representative of County for any purpose. Neither Contractor nor the employees of Contractor 
are entitled to any of the benefits the County provides for County employees.  Contractor will be solely 
and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, subcontractors, or 
otherwise during the performance of this Agreement. 

Agenda Item Page 2 of 6

Packet Page 229 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR JAIL BASED MAT SERVICES 2019 
 

Page 2 of 5 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Evergreen Treatment - Jail Based Services 

 

4. USES OF FUNDS.  Contractor shall ensure funds are used to support the Jail Opiate Use 
Disorder Intervention Program and the following activities: 
 

Program or 
Service Description 

Reimbursement 
Method 

Medication 
Assisted 
Treatment 
in a Jail 
Setting 

Provides evidence-based Medication Assisted Treatment 
(MAT) services by dispensing medications to incarcerated 
individuals diagnosed with an Opioid Use Disorder as a 
means of stabilizing the individual while incarcerated and 
prepares the individual to receive community based treatment.   
 
Inmates enrolled and receiving MAT with the Contractor prior 
to incarceration are provided continuity of care for the 
duration of their incarceration and are scheduled to reengage 
in community based treatment upon discharge from jail.   
 
Inmates not previously enrolled in MAT services but who are 
identified as experiencing withdrawal from opioids and 
request medical attention may be referred to the Contractor 
for treatment services initiated in the jail.  
 
All services are coordinated with jail and medical staff to 
ensure daily treatment is administered and outpatient 
continuing care is scheduled prior to being released.    
 
Medication is dispensed by an Contractor licensed nurse in 
compliance with state and federal laws  

 
$ 50.00 per hour to 
dispense medications.  
 
All service related 
expenses are included 
in the hourly rate   
 
Maximum award for 
this service is $25,000  
 
  

 
Chemical 
Dependency 
Assessment 
Services  

 
At the request of Grays Harbor County Jail Medical Director, 
the Contractor shall perform an ASAM compliant Chemical 
Dependency Assessment for the purpose of diagnosing and 
recommendations to begin treatment in the jail. Assessments 
may be conducted within the County jail.   Assessments may 
also be conducted at the treatment facility when inmates have 
been grated furlough status for this purpose.    
 
The Contractor shall provide the results of the assessment to 
the Medical Director and jail staff in accordance with all 
privacy rules.  
 
The Contractor shall collaborate with jail staff to immediately 
admit the inmate into community based treatment upon 
release from jail.   

 
$350 per assessment 
conducted in Grays 
Harbor County jail.  
 
Assessments conducted 
at the Contractor for 
inmates on furlough 
shall be billed to 
Medicaid. 
 
All service related 
expenses are included 
in the per assessment 
rate.  
 
Maximum award for 
this service is $14,700 

 
5. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  Contractor shall participate in the design and 
implementation of program evaluation procedures through meetings convened by County or its designee, 

Agenda Item Page 3 of 6

Packet Page 230 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR JAIL BASED MAT SERVICES 2019 
 

Page 3 of 5 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Evergreen Treatment - Jail Based Services 

and shall report data related to program evaluation in a manner approved by the County.  At a minimum 
Contractor shall document that people served under this agreement are impacted by untreated mental 
illness or substance use disorders. 
 

6. ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.  Contractor agrees to maintain 
books, records, documents and accounting procedures, and practices which accurately reflect the use of 
the funds provided under this Agreement.  Contractor shall retain all books, records, documents, and 
other material relevant to this Agreement for six (6) years after its expiration.  Contractor agrees that 
County or its designee shall have full access and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable 
times during said period. 
 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Contractor, in performance of this Agreement, agrees to 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws or ordinances, including federal and state 
nondiscrimination statutes and regulations.  
 
The undersigned (authorized official signing for the contracting organization) certifies to the best of his 
or her knowledge and belief, that the contractor, defined as the primary participant in accordance with 45 
CFR Part 76, and its principals:  

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal Department or agency; 

b. have not within a 3-year period preceding this contract been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

c. are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (b) of this certification; and  

d. have not within a 3-year period preceding this contract had one or more public 
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 

Should the contractor not be able to provide this certification, an explanation as to why should be placed 
after the assurances page in the contract. 
 
The contractor agrees by signing this contract that it will include, without modification, the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, In eligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier 
Covered Transactions" in all lower tier covered transactions (i.e., transactions with sub-grantees and/or 
contractors) and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions in accordance with 45 CFR Part 
76. 
 
Contractor assumes full and complete liability for any and all losses related to claims that are not paid as 
a result of services rendered by an ineligible employee or subcontractor of the contractor pursuant to the 
above paragraph. Contractor agrees to fully completely and promptly refund any monies paid for 
services rendered in violation of the above section. 
 
Contractor assumes full responsibility for the payment of all assessments, payroll taxes, or contributions, 
whether State or Federal, as to Contractor and all of Contractor’s employees, if any, engaged in the 
performance of work under this agreement.  Contractor shall furnish to the County, on its request, a 

Agenda Item Page 4 of 6

Packet Page 231 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR JAIL BASED MAT SERVICES 2019 
 

Page 4 of 5 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Evergreen Treatment - Jail Based Services 

certificate or other evidence of compliance with all State or Federal laws concerning contributions, 
taxes, and payroll assessments.  In addition, Contractor agrees to pay any and all taxes or assessments of 
whatever nature or kind levied or assessed as a consequence of the work performed or on the 
compensation to be paid under this contract. 
 

8. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  All services to be rendered or performed under 
this Agreement will be performed or rendered entirely at Contractor’s own risk and Contractor expressly 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its departments, elected and appointed officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers, from any and all liability, loss or damage that it may suffer as a result 
of claims, demands, actions, or damages to any and all persons or property, costs or judgments against 
the County which result from, arise out of, or are in any way connected with the services to be performed 
by Contractor under this Agreement.  Contractor agrees that all the Contractor’s indemnification 
obligations shall survive the completion, expiration, or termination of this Agreement. 
 
9.   INSURANCE.  Contractor shall carry at its own expense the following insurance coverage to the 
extent described below: 

 Commercial General Liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, 
$2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, including 
without limitation, blanket contractual liability. 

 Professional Liability in the amount of $1,500,000 per occurrence. 
 Contractor shall procure policies for all insurance required by this section for a period of not less 

than one year and shall provide the County (on or before the date this Agreement commences) 
with a certificate of insurance as satisfactory evidence that the premiums have been paid and that 
such insurance policy is in effect.  The County shall be carried as a named insured on each 
insurance policy required by this section. 
 

Upon demand by the County, Contractor shall provide a complete copy of all policies for insurance 
required by this Agreement.  This requirement is supplementary to, but does not replace the requirement 
in this Agreement to provide the County with certificates of insurance as satisfactory evidence that the 
premiums have been paid and that such insurance policy is in effect. 
 
10. TERMINATION  
 
Termination for Convenience:  Either party may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any 
time, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party of the intent to withdraw.   
Termination for Cause:  If the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in this Agreement, or 
if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such 
noncompliance within ten (10) days written notice thereof, the County may terminate this Agreement for 
cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on the Contractor setting forth 
the manner in which the Contractor is in default.  The Contractor will be paid for services performed in 
accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this Agreement. 
 
11. NOTICE.  Any official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be deemed 
delivered upon deposit thereof in the United States mail by certified mail, return receipt requested, with 
postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 

County      Contractor  

Agenda Item Page 5 of 6

Packet Page 232 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR JAIL BASED MAT SERVICES 2019 
 

Page 5 of 5 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Evergreen Treatment - Jail Based Services 

Grays Harbor County   Evergreen Treatment Services  
2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200   1700 Airport Way South 
Aberdeen, WA  98520   Seattle, WA 98134-1618  
Attn:  Manger – Social Services   Attn: - Molly Carney  

      
These addresses may be changed by either party by giving written notice to the other. 
 
12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of 
the terms hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  
Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be signed and attested to by the 
respective officers on the date indicated below. 
 
DATED: ____________________, 2019 
 
Evergreen Treatment Services    BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
         for Grays Harbor County 
 
 
 
                   
Director       Chair   
 
  
                  
                 
                       Commissioner 
 
 
 
              
        Commissioner 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board 

Agenda Item Page 6 of 6

Packet Page 233 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Health and Social Services

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Julie Myers

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
For your review is an amendment to the Consolidated Contracts with the WA Department of Health. The 
changes include an increase of $19,330 and amends statements of work for three (3) current programs 
(Maternal & Child Health Block Grant; Office of Drinking Water Group A Program; and WIC Nutrition Program. 
With the amendment, the revised maximum consideration is $1,737,135.  The agreement is for the period 
January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2020.  

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
Increase of $19,330 / WA DOH Consolidated Contract grants

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Please approve

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 2:00:00 PM

Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6Consolidated Contract, Amendment 6 Agenda Item Page 1 of 27

Packet Page 234 of 308



GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
2018 – 2020 CONSOLIDATED CONTRACT

Page 1 of 20

CONTRACT NUMBER:  CLH18245 AMENDMENT NUMBER:  6

PURPOSE OF CHANGE:  To amend this contract between the DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH hereinafter referred to as 
“DOH”, and GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT hereinafter 
referred to as “LHJ”, pursuant to the Modifications/Waivers clause, and to make necessary changes within the scope of 
this contract and any subsequent amendments thereto.

IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED:  That the contract is hereby amended as follows:

1. Exhibit A Statements of Work, attached and incorporated by this reference, are amended as follows:

Adds Statements of Work for the following programs:

Amends Statements of Work for the following programs:

• Maternal & Child Health Block Grant - Effective January 1, 2018
• Office of Drinking Water Group A Program - Effective January 1, 2018
• WIC Nutrition Program - Effective January 1, 2018

Deletes Statements of Work for the following programs:

2. Exhibit B-6 Allocations, attached and incorporated by this reference, amends and replaces Exhibit B-5 Allocations as 
follows:

Increase of $19,330 for a revised maximum consideration of $1,737,135.

Decrease of       for a revised maximum consideration of      .

No change in the maximum consideration of      .
Exhibit B Allocations are attached only for informational purposes.

3. Exhibit C-6 Schedule of Federal Awards, attached and incorporated by this reference, amends and replaces 
Exhibit C-5.

Unless designated otherwise herein, the effective date of this amendment is the date of execution.

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS of the original contract and any subsequent amendments remain in full force 
and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has affixed his/her signature in execution thereof.

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH & 
SOCIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

________________________________________________

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

___________________________________________
Date Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY
Assistant Attorney General

Agenda Item Page 2 of 27

Packet Page 235 of 308



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

20
18

-2
02

0 
C

O
N

SO
L

ID
A

T
E

D
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
E

X
H

IB
IT

 A
ST

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S 

O
F 

W
O

R
K

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 N

am
e 

or
 T

itl
e:

  M
at

er
na

l &
 C

hi
ld

 H
ea

lth
 B

lo
ck

 G
ra

nt
 - 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.3
D

O
H

 P
ro

gr
am

 N
am

e 
or

 T
itl

e:
  O

ff
ic

e 
of

 D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 G

ro
up

 A
 P

ro
gr

am
 - 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
8

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 N

am
e 

or
 T

itl
e:

  W
IC

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 - 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8.
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
13

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

3 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

23
6 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

E
xh

ib
it 

A
St

at
em

en
t o

f W
or

k
C

on
tr

ac
t T

er
m

:  
20

18
-2

02
0

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 N

am
e 

or
 T

itl
e:

  M
at

er
na

l &
 C

hi
ld

 H
ea

lth
 B

lo
ck

 G
ra

nt
 - 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8
L

oc
al

 H
ea

lth
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

N
am

e:
  G

ra
ys

 H
ar

bo
r C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 &

 S
oc

ia
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

C
on

tr
ac

t N
um

be
r:

  C
LH

18
24

5

SO
W

 T
yp

e:
  R

ev
is

io
n

R
ev

is
io

n 
# 

(f
or

 th
is

 S
O

W
)  

3

Pe
ri

od
 o

f P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

:  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
 F

ed
er

al
 S

ub
re

ci
pi

en
t

 S
ta

te
 O

th
er

Fe
de

ra
l C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
(c

he
ck

 if
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

)
 F

FA
TA

 (T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
)

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

T
yp

e 
of

 P
ay

m
en

t
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
 F

ix
ed

 P
ric

e

St
at

em
en

t o
f W

or
k 

Pu
rp

os
e:

  T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f w

or
k 

is
 to

 su
pp

or
t l

oc
al

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 th
at

 im
pa

ct
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
M

at
er

na
l a

nd
 C

hi
ld

 H
ea

lth
 B

lo
ck

 
G

ra
nt

.

R
ev

is
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

e:
  T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
hi

s r
ev

is
io

n 
is

 to
 re

vi
se

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 fo
r 2

01
8-

19
 a

nd
 a

dd
 la

ng
ua

ge
 re

la
te

d 
to

 a
llo

w
ab

le
 e

xp
en

se
s i

n 
th

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l I
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

 
se

ct
io

n.
.

C
ha

rt
 o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s P
ro

gr
am

 N
am

e 
or

 T
itl

e
C

FD
A

 #
B

A
R

S 
R

ev
en

ue
 

C
od

e

M
as

te
r 

In
de

x 
C

od
e

Fu
nd

in
g

(L
H

J 
U

se
St

ar
t D

at
e

 P
er

io
d

 O
nl

y)
E

nd
 D

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

C
ha

ng
e

N
on

e

T
ot

al
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n

FF
Y

18
 M

C
H

B
G

 L
H

J C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS
93

.9
94

33
3.

93
.9

9
78

12
02

81
01

/0
1/

18
09

/3
0/

18
63

,6
49

0
63

,6
49

FF
Y

19
 M

C
H

B
G

 L
H

J C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS
93

.9
94

33
3.

93
.9

9
78

12
02

91
10

/0
1/

18
09

/3
0/

19
80

,1
29

0
80

,1
29

T
O

T
A

L
S

14
3,

77
8

0
14

3,
77

8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 B
lo

ck
 G

ra
nt

 (M
C

H
B

G
) A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n

1a
Pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 c

al
ls

, a
t a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f e

ve
ry

 
qu

ar
te

r, 
w

ith
 D

O
H

 c
on

tra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

. D
at

es
 a

nd
 

tim
e 

fo
r c

al
ls

 a
re

 m
ut

ua
lly

 a
gr

ee
d 

up
on

 b
et

w
ee

n 
D

O
H

 a
nd

 L
H

J

D
es

ig
na

te
d 

LH
J s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t c
al

ls
.

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9

1b
R

ep
or

t a
ct

ua
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s f

or
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

7 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

8
Su

bm
it 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s u

si
ng

 th
e 

M
C

H
B

G
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

kb
oo

k 
to

 D
O

H
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

M
ay

 2
6,

 2
01

8

1c
D

ev
el

op
 2

01
8-

20
19

 M
C

H
B

G
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

kb
oo

k 
fo

r O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
8 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9 
us

in
g 

D
O

H
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

te
m

pl
at

e.

Su
bm

it 
M

C
H

B
G

 B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k 

to
 D

O
H

 c
on

tra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

Se
pt

em
be

r 5
, 2

01
8

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t f

or
 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
ts

, n
ot

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 to

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

ts
 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
re

fle
ct

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 p

ai
d 

fo
r 

w
ith

 fu
nd

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f 

w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

4 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

23
7 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

1d
R

ep
or

t a
ct

ua
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s f

or
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9
Su

bm
it 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s u

si
ng

 th
e 

M
C

H
B

G
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

kb
oo

k 
to

 D
O

H
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

.

M
ay

 2
4,

 2
01

9

1e
D

ev
el

op
 2

01
9-

20
20

 M
C

H
B

G
 B

ud
ge

t W
or

kb
oo

k 
fo

r O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
9 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
02

0 
us

in
g 

D
O

H
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

te
m

pl
at

e.

Su
bm

it 
M

C
H

B
G

 B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k 

to
 D

O
H

 c
on

tra
ct

 m
an

ag
er

Se
pt

em
be

r 5
, 2

01
9

1f
R

ep
or

t a
ct

ua
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s f

or
 O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

7 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

Su
bm

it 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s u
si

ng
 th

e 
M

C
H

B
G

 B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k 

to
 D

O
H

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
.

N
ov

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8

pe
rio

d.

Se
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
Sp

ec
ia

l B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

M
C

H
B

G
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

2a
Pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 p

ro
je

ct
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
co

or
di

na
te

d 
by

 D
O

H
, a

s 
re

qu
es

te
d.

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
us

in
g 

re
po

rt 
te

m
pl

at
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

D
O

H
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
8

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9

2b
R

ep
or

t p
ro

gr
am

 le
ve

l s
tra

te
gy

 m
ea

su
re

 d
at

a 
(C

SH
C

N
, U

D
S,

 A
C

Es
).

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
us

in
g 

re
po

rt 
te

m
pl

at
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

D
O

H
Ja

nu
ar

y 
15

, 2
01

8
A

pr
il 

15
, 2

01
8

Ju
ly

 1
5,

 2
01

8
O

ct
ob

er
 1

5,
 2

01
8

Ja
nu

ar
y 

15
, 2

01
9

Ap
ri

l 1
5,

 2
01

9
Ju

ly
 1

5,
 2

01
9

2c
C

on
du

ct
 a

 M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 (M
C

H
) 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
Su

bm
it 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

to
 D

O
H

 c
on

tra
ct

 
m

an
ag

er
 u

si
ng

 te
m

pl
at

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 D

O
H

M
ay

 2
4,

 2
01

9

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t f

or
 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
ts

, n
ot

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 to

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

Se
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
Sp

ec
ia

l B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

M
C

H
B

G
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

3a
D

ev
el

op
 2

01
8-

20
19

 M
C

H
B

G
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 fo

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9 

us
in

g 
D

O
H

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
te

m
pl

at
e.

Su
bm

it 
M

C
H

B
G

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 to
 

D
O

H
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
D

ra
ft 

A
ug

us
t 1

7,
 2

01
8

Fi
na

l S
ep

te
m

be
r 5

, 2
01

8

3b
R

ep
or

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 o

ut
co

m
es

 o
f 2

01
7-

20
18

 
M

C
H

B
G

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 u
si

ng
 D

O
H

- p
ro

vi
de

d 
te

m
pl

at
e.

Su
bm

it 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 m

on
th

ly
 re

po
rts

 
to

 D
O

H
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
M

on
th

ly
, o

n 
or

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
on

th

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t f

or
 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
ts

, n
ot

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 to

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

ts
 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

5 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

23
8 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

3c
D

ev
el

op
 2

01
9-

20
20

 M
C

H
B

G
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 fo

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

9 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

02
0 

us
in

g 
D

O
H

-p
ro

vi
de

d 
te

m
pl

at
e.

Su
bm

it 
M

C
H

B
G

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 to
 

D
O

H
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
D

ra
ft 

A
ug

us
t 1

7,
 2

01
9

Fi
na

l- 
Se

pt
em

be
r 5

, 
20

19
3d

R
ep

or
t a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 o
ut

co
m

es
 o

f 2
01

8-
20

19
 

M
C

H
B

G
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 u

si
ng

 D
O

H
- p

ro
vi

de
d 

te
m

pl
at

e.

Su
bm

it 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 m

on
th

ly
 re

po
rts

 
to

 D
O

H
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
M

on
th

ly
, o

n 
or

 b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

15
th

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
on

th

m
us

t o
nl

y 
re

fle
ct

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 p

ai
d 

fo
r 

w
ith

 fu
nd

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f 

w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
pe

rio
d.

Se
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
Sp

ec
ia

l B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 S

pe
ci

al
 H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
N

ee
ds

 (C
SH

C
N

)

4a
C

om
pl

et
e 

C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 In
ta

ke
 F

or
m

 (C
H

IF
) 

us
in

g 
th

e 
C

H
IF

 A
ut

om
at

ed
 S

ys
te

m
 o

n 
al

l i
nf

an
ts

 
an

d 
ch

ild
re

n 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
SH

C
N

 P
ro

gr
am

 a
s 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 in

 C
SH

C
N

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ua
l.

En
su

re
 c

lie
nt

 d
at

a 
is

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 o

n 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

C
SH

C
N

 c
on

tra
ct

or
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ne

ur
od

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l c
en

te
rs

, r
eg

io
na

l 
m

ax
ill

of
ac

ia
l c

oo
rd

in
at

or
s, 

an
d 

th
e 

D
O

H
 

N
ew

bo
rn

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
.

Su
bm

it 
C

H
IF

 d
at

a 
in

to
 S

ec
ur

e 
Fi

le
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t (
SF

T)
 w

eb
si

te
:  

ht
tp

s:
//s

ft.
w

a.
go

v

Ja
nu

ar
y 

15
, 2

01
8

A
pr

il 
15

, 2
01

8
Ju

ly
 1

5,
 2

01
8

O
ct

ob
er

 1
5,

 2
01

8
Ja

nu
ar

y 
15

, 2
01

9
A

pr
il 

15
, 2

01
9

Ju
ly

 1
5,

 2
01

9

4b
A

dm
in

is
te

r r
eq

ue
st

ed
 D

O
H

 D
ia

gn
os

tic
 a

nd
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t f
un

ds
 fo

r i
nf

an
ts

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
pe

r 
C

SH
C

N
 P

ro
gr

am
 M

an
ua

l w
he

n 
fu

nd
s a

re
 u

se
d.

Su
bm

it 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
fo

rm
s a

nd
 C

en
tra

l 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t F

un
d 

re
qu

es
ts

 d
ire

ct
ly

 to
 

th
e 

C
SH

C
N

 P
ro

gr
am

 a
s n

ee
de

d.

30
 d

ay
s a

fte
r f

or
m

s a
re

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.

4c
Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

C
SH

C
N

 R
eg

io
na

l S
ys

te
m

 a
nd

 
qu

ar
te

rl
y 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

SH
C

N
 

Fo
cu

s o
f W

or
k.

Su
bm

it 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rt
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
nu

m
be

r o
f r

eg
io

na
l 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
tte

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
D

O
H

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
.

M
on

th
ly

, o
n 

or
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
15

th
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

on
th

4d
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
C

YS
H

C
N

 C
ou

nt
y 

Re
so

ur
ce

 
Li

st
 a

nd
 sh

ar
e 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s a
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e 
C

SH
C

N
 F

oc
us

 o
f W

or
k.

Su
bm

it 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 re
so

ur
ce

 li
st

 
el

ec
tr

on
ic

al
ly

 to
 th

e 
D

O
H

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
m

an
ag

er
.

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t f

or
 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
ts

, n
ot

 to
 

ex
ce

ed
 to

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 
Pr

og
re

ss
 R

ep
or

ts
 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
re

fle
ct

 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 p

ai
d 

fo
r 

w
ith

 fu
nd

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f 

w
or

k 
fo

r t
he

 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 fu

nd
in

g 
pe

rio
d.

Se
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Sp

ec
ifi

c 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
Sp

ec
ia

l B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.

*F
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

O
nl

y:
Fu

nd
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 ti
ed

 to
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s l
is

te
d 

he
re

.  
Th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l i
n 

di
sc

us
si

on
s o

f h
ow

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 m
ee

tin
g 

a 
St

an
da

rd
/M

ea
su

re
.  

M
or

e 
de

ta
il 

on
 th

es
e 

an
d/

or
 o

th
er

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
B

oa
rd

 (P
H

A
B

) S
ta

nd
ar

ds
/M

ea
su

re
s t

ha
t m

ay
 a

pp
ly

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
at

:
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.p

ha
bo

ar
d.

or
g/

w
p-

co
nt

en
t/u

pl
oa

ds
/P

H
A

B
-S

ta
nd

ar
ds

-a
nd

-M
ea

su
re

s-
V

er
si

on
-1

.0
.p

df

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

6 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

23
9 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
fic

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
/N

ar
ra

tiv
e

Sp
ec

ia
l R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
 (F

FA
T

A
)

Th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f w

or
k 

is
 su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 fe

de
ra

l f
un

ds
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
 (F

FA
TA

 o
r t

he
 T

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

A
ct

). 
 

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
Tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 A

ct
 is

 to
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

lin
e 

so
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 c
an

 se
e 

ho
w

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

 a
re

 sp
en

t.

To
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

is
 a

ct
 a

nd
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 th

is
 st

at
em

en
t o

f w
or

k,
 th

e 
LH

J m
us

t h
av

e 
a 

D
at

a 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 N
um

be
rin

g 
Sy

st
em

 (D
U

N
S®

) n
um

be
r.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 L
H

J a
nd

 th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 U

SA
Sp

en
di

ng
.g

ov
 b

y 
D

O
H

 a
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 P

.L
. 1

09
-2

82
.

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ua
l, 

H
an

db
oo

k,
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

ef
er

en
ce

s
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 S
pe

ci
al

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

N
ee

ds
 M

an
ua

l -
 h

ttp
://

w
w

w
.d

oh
.w

a.
go

v/
Po

rta
ls

/1
/D

oc
um

en
ts

/P
ub

s/
97

0-
20

9-
C

SH
C

N
-M

an
ua

l.p
df

H
ea

lth
 S

er
vi

ce
s A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

(H
SA

) F
or

m
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

oh
.w

a.
go

v/
Po

rta
ls

/1
/D

oc
um

en
ts

/P
ub

s/
91

0-
00

2-
A

pp
ro

ve
dH

SA
.d

oc
x

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 o
n 

Fu
nd

s (
w

ha
t f

un
ds

 c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, n
ot

 d
ir

ec
t p

ay
m

en
ts

, e
tc

.)
1.

A
t l

ea
st

 3
0%

 o
f f

ed
er

al
 T

itl
e 

V
 fu

nd
s m

us
t b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r p
re

ve
nt

iv
e 

an
d 

pr
im

ar
y 

ca
re

 se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

at
 le

as
t 3

0%
 m

us
t b

e 
us

ed
 se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

sp
ec

ia
l h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
ne

ed
s. 

[S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 L

aw
, S

ec
. 5

05
(a

)(
3)

]. 

2.
Fu

nd
s m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r: 
a.

In
pa

tie
nt

 se
rv

ic
es

, o
th

er
 th

an
 in

pa
tie

nt
 se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 sp

ec
ia

l h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

ne
ed

s o
r h

ig
h 

ris
k 

pr
eg

na
nt

 w
om

en
 a

nd
 in

fa
nt

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r p

at
ie

nt
 se

rv
ic

es
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 

H
ea

lth
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 S
er

vi
ce

s A
dm

in
is

tra
tio

n 
(H

R
SA

).
b.

C
as

h 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 in
te

nd
ed

 re
ci

pi
en

ts
 o

f h
ea

lth
 se

rv
ic

es
.

c.
Th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f l

an
d,

 th
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

, c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 o

r p
er

m
an

en
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f a
ny

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
or

 o
th

er
 fa

ci
lit

y,
 o

r t
he

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 m

ed
ic

al
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t.
d.

M
ee

tin
g 

ot
he

r f
ed

er
al

 m
at

ch
in

g 
fu

nd
s r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

.
e.

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
fu

nd
s f

or
 re

se
ar

ch
 o

r t
ra

in
in

g 
to

 a
ny

 e
nt

ity
 o

th
er

 th
an

 a
 p

ub
lic

 o
r n

on
pr

of
it 

pr
iv

at
e 

en
tit

y.
f.

pa
ym

en
t f

or
 a

ny
 se

rv
ic

es
 fu

rn
is

he
d 

by
 a

 p
ro

vi
de

r o
r e

nt
ity

 w
ho

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 u

nd
er

 T
itl

e 
X

V
II

I (
M

ed
ic

ar
e)

, T
itl

e 
X

IX
 (M

ed
ic

ai
d)

, o
r T

itl
e 

X
X

 (s
oc

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s b

lo
ck

 
gr

an
t).

[S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 L

aw
, S

ec
 5

04
(b

)]
.

3.
If

 a
ny

 c
ha

rg
es

 a
re

 im
po

se
d 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f h

ea
lth

 se
rv

ic
es

 u
si

ng
 T

itl
e 

V
 (M

C
H

 B
lo

ck
 G

ra
nt

) f
un

ds
, s

uc
h 

ch
ar

ge
s w

ill
 b

e 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 a
 p

ub
lic

 sc
he

du
le

 o
f c

ha
rg

es
; w

ill
 n

ot
 

be
 im

po
se

d 
w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 lo
w

 in
co

m
e 

m
ot

he
rs

 o
r c

hi
ld

re
n;

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

in
co

m
e,

 re
so

ur
ce

s, 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 si
ze

 o
f t

he
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. [

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

ity
 L

aw
, S

ec
. 5

05
 (1

)(
D

)]
.

M
on

ito
ri

ng
 V

is
its

 (f
re

qu
en

cy
, t

yp
e)

Te
le

ph
on

e 
ca

lls
 w

ith
 c

on
tra

ct
 m

an
ag

er
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 e

ve
ry

 q
ua

rte
r, 

an
d 

an
nu

al
 si

te
 v

is
it.

Sp
ec

ia
l B

ill
in

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Pa
ym

en
t i

s c
on

tin
ge

nt
 u

po
n 

D
O

H
 re

ce
ip

t a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f a

ll 
de

liv
er

ab
le

s a
nd

 a
n 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 A

19
-1

A
 in

vo
ic

e 
vo

uc
he

r. 
 P

ay
m

en
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
ex

pe
nd

 th
e 

“T
ot

al
 C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n”

 
fo

r a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
fu

nd
in

g 
pe

rio
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

pr
oc

es
se

d 
un

til
 a

ll 
de

liv
er

ab
le

s a
re

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
D

O
H

.  
 In

vo
ic

es
 m

us
t b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
30

th
 o

f e
ac

h 
m

on
th

 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

m
on

th
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s w
er

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 a

nd
 m

us
t b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
ua

l a
llo

w
ab

le
 p

ro
gr

am
 c

os
ts

.  
B

ill
in

g 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

s o
n 

a 
m

on
th

ly
 fr

ac
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

“T
ot

al
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n”
 w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 o

r a
pp

ro
ve

d.

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

7 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
0 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
C

on
ta

ct
 D

O
H

 c
on

tr
ac

t m
an

ag
er

 b
el

ow
 fo

r a
pp

ro
va

l o
f e

xp
en

se
s n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
bu

dg
et

 w
or

kb
oo

k.

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 C

on
ta

ct
K

ar
a 

Se
am

an
, C

om
m

un
ity

 C
on

su
lta

nt
O

ff
ic

e 
of

 F
am

ily
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 H
ea

lth
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
St

at
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
St

re
et

 A
dd

re
ss

: 3
10

 Is
ra

el
 R

d 
SE

, T
um

w
at

er
, W

A
 9

85
01

M
ai

lin
g 

A
dd

re
ss

: P
O

 B
ox

 4
78

48
, O

ly
m

pi
a,

 W
A

 9
85

04
Te

le
ph

on
e:

 3
60

-2
36

-3
96

3/
 F

ax
: 3

60
-2

36
-3

64
6

Em
ai

l: 
 K

ar
a.

Se
am

an
@

do
h.

w
a.

go
v

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

8 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
1 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

E
xh

ib
it 

A
St

at
em

en
t o

f W
or

k
C

on
tr

ac
t T

er
m

:  
20

18
-2

02
0

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 N

am
e 

or
 T

itl
e:

  O
ff

ic
e 

of
 D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 G
ro

up
 A

 P
ro

gr
am

 - 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

L
oc

al
 H

ea
lth

 J
ur

is
di

ct
io

n 
N

am
e:

  G
ra

ys
 H

ar
bo

r C
ou

nt
y 

Pu
bl

ic
 H

ea
lth

 &
 S

oc
ia

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
C

on
tr

ac
t N

um
be

r:
  C

LH
18

24
5

SO
W

 T
yp

e:
  R

ev
is

io
n

R
ev

is
io

n 
# 

(f
or

 th
is

 S
O

W
)  

2

Pe
ri

od
 o

f P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

:  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
0

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
 F

ed
er

al
 C

on
tra

ct
or

 S
ta

te
 O

th
er

Fe
de

ra
l C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
(c

he
ck

 if
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

)
 F

FA
TA

 (T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
)

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

T
yp

e 
of

 P
ay

m
en

t
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
 F

ix
ed

 P
ric

e

St
at

em
en

t o
f W

or
k 

Pu
rp

os
e:

  T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f w

or
k 

is
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 th

e 
LH

J f
or

 c
on

du
ct

in
g 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
s a

nd
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

to
 sm

al
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 G
ro

up
 A

 w
at

er
 sy

st
em

s.

R
ev

is
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

e:
  T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
hi

s r
ev

is
io

n 
is

 to
 c

ha
ng

e 
en

d 
da

te
 in

 F
un

di
ng

 P
er

io
d 

fr
om

 1
2/

31
/1

8 
to

 1
2/

31
/1

9,
 in

cr
ea

se
 T

ot
al

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n,
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 S
pe

ci
al

 B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 S

pe
ci

al
 In

st
ru

ct
io

ns
. 

C
ha

rt
 o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s P
ro

gr
am

 N
am

e 
or

 T
itl

e
C

FD
A

 #
B

A
R

S 
R

ev
en

ue
 

C
od

e

M
as

te
r 

In
de

x 
C

od
e

Fu
nd

in
g

(L
H

J 
U

se
St

ar
t D

at
e

 P
er

io
d

 O
nl

y)
E

nd
 D

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

C
ha

ng
e

In
cr

ea
se

 (+
)

T
ot

al
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n

Y
r 2

0 
SR

F 
- L

oc
al

 A
ss

t (
15

%
) (

FS
)  

  S
S

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

4
24

13
92

20
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

18
0

0
0

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

Fe
es

 (F
O

-S
W

)  
   

   
   

SS
-S

ta
te

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

5
24

23
25

22
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

19
4,

60
0

3,
60

0
8,

20
0

Y
r 2

0 
SR

F 
- L

oc
al

 A
ss

t (
15

%
) (

FS
)  

  T
A

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

6
24

13
92

20
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

18
0

0
0

Y
r 2

0 
SR

F 
- P

ro
g 

M
gm

t (
10

%
) (

FS
)  

 T
A

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

6
24

13
72

20
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

18
50

0
0

50
0

Y
r 2

1 
SR

F 
- L

oc
al

 A
ss

t (
15

%
) (

FS
)  

  S
S

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

4
24

13
92

21
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

19
4,

60
0

3,
60

0
8,

20
0

Y
r 2

1 
SR

F 
- L

oc
al

 A
ss

t (
15

%
) (

FS
)  

  T
A

N
/A

34
6.

26
.6

6
24

13
92

21
01

/0
1/

18
12

/3
1/

19
1,

50
0

2,
00

0
3,

50
0

T
O

T
A

L
S

11
,2

00
9,

20
0

20
,4

00

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

1
Tr

ai
ne

d 
LH

J s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 c

on
du

ct
 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
s o

f s
m

al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
no

n-
co

m
m

un
ity

 G
ro

up
 A

 w
at

er
 

sy
st

em
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
O

H
 O

ff
ic

e 
of

 D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
 (O

D
W

) R
eg

io
na

l 
O

ff
ic

e.

Se
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
 fo

r t
as

k 
ac

tiv
ity

.

Pr
ov

id
e 

Fi
na

l*
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Su
rv

ey
 R

ep
or

ts
 to

 O
D

W
 

R
eg

io
na

l O
ff

ic
e.

 C
om

pl
et

e 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ur
ve

y 
R

ep
or

ts
 sh

al
l 

in
cl

ud
e:

1.
C

ov
er

 le
tte

r i
de

nt
ify

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s, 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fi

nd
in

gs
, 

ob
se

rv
at

io
ns

, 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
, a

nd
 

re
fe

rr
al

s f
or

 fu
rth

er
 

O
D

W
 fo

llo
w

-u
p.

Fi
na

l S
an

ita
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

R
ep

or
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

O
D

W
 

R
eg

io
na

l O
ff

ic
e 

w
ith

in
 

30
 c

al
en

da
r 

da
ys

 o
f 

co
nd

uc
tin

g 
th

e 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 su

rv
ey

.

U
po

n 
O

D
W

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Fi

na
l 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

R
ep

or
t, 

th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ai
d 

$4
00

 fo
r e

ac
h 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
 

of
 a

 n
on

-c
om

m
un

ity
 sy

st
em

 w
ith

 th
re

e 
or

 fe
w

er
 c

on
ne

ct
io

ns
.

U
po

n 
O

D
W

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Fi

na
l 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

R
ep

or
t, 

th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ai
d 

$8
00

 fo
r e

ac
h 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
 

of
 a

 n
on

-c
om

m
un

ity
 sy

st
em

 w
ith

 fo
ur

 
or

 m
or

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
ac

h 
co

m
m

un
ity

 sy
st

em
. 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

9 
of

 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
2 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 2
0

C
on

tra
ct

 N
um

be
r C

LH
18

24
5-

6
R

ev
is

ed
 a

s o
f N

ov
em

be
r 1

5,
 2

01
8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

D
O

H
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 ta
bl

et
 a

nd
 G

PS
 

un
it 

fo
r t

he
 L

H
J t

o 
ga

th
er

 so
ur

ce
 d

at
a 

du
rin

g 
a 

ro
ut

in
e 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
. D

O
H

 
ex

pe
ct

s t
he

 L
H

J t
o 

co
m

m
it 

to
 u

si
ng

 
th

e 
ta

bl
et

 a
nd

 G
PS

 fo
r a

 fi
ve

-y
ea

r 
pe

rio
d.

2.
C

om
pl

et
ed

 S
m

al
l W

at
er

 
Sy

st
em

 c
he

ck
lis

t.
3.

U
pd

at
ed

 W
at

er
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
(W

FI
).

4.
Ph

ot
os

 o
f w

at
er

 sy
st

em
 

w
ith

 te
xt

 id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

fe
at

ur
es

 
5.

A
ny

 o
th

er
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
.

*F
in

al
 R

ep
or

ts
 re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

O
D

W
 

R
eg

io
na

l O
ff

ic
e.

Th
e 

LH
J s

ur
ve

yo
r w

ill
 re

co
rd

 
at

 le
as

t t
w

o 
(2

) G
PS

 d
at

a 
po

in
ts

, f
or

 e
ac

h 
so

ur
ce

, i
nt

o 
th

e 
pr

el
oa

de
d 

Ex
ce

l t
em

pl
at

e 
on

 th
e 

ta
bl

et
 a

nd
 su

bm
it 

th
at

 
da

ta
 fi

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 su

rv
ey

.

Pa
ym

en
t i

s i
nc

lu
si

ve
 o

f a
ll 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

co
st

s s
uc

h 
as

 tr
av

el
, l

od
gi

ng
, p

er
 d

ie
m

.

Pa
ym

en
t i

s a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 u

po
n 

re
ce

ip
t a

nd
 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 F
in

al
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Su
rv

ey
 R

ep
or

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
30

-d
ay

 
de

ad
lin

e.
 

La
te

 o
r i

nc
om

pl
et

e 
re

po
rts

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 fo
r p

ay
m

en
t.

2
Tr

ai
ne

d 
LH

J s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 c

on
du

ct
 

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ur
po

se
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 (S
PI

) 
of

 sm
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 n

on
-

co
m

m
un

ity
 G

ro
up

 A
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

O
D

W
 R

eg
io

na
l 

O
ff

ic
e.

Se
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
 fo

r t
as

k 
ac

tiv
ity

.

Pr
ov

id
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 S

PI
 

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 a

ny
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ho
to

s t
o 

O
D

W
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e.

C
om

pl
et

ed
 S

PI
 

R
ep

or
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

O
D

W
 

R
eg

io
na

l O
ff

ic
e 

w
ith

in
 

2 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s o

f t
he

 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
es

t.

U
po

n 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 S
PI

 
R

ep
or

t, 
th

e 
LH

J s
ha

ll 
be

 p
ai

d 
$8

00
 fo

r 
ea

ch
 S

PI
.

Pa
ym

en
t i

s i
nc

lu
si

ve
 o

f a
ll 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

co
st

s s
uc

h 
as

 tr
av

el
, l

od
gi

ng
, p

er
 d

ie
m

.

Pa
ym

en
t i

s a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 u

po
n 

re
ce

ip
t a

nd
 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f c
om

pl
et

ed
 S

PI
 R

ep
or

t 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

2 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
 d

ea
dl

in
e.

 

La
te

 o
r i

nc
om

pl
et

e 
re

po
rts

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 fo
r p

ay
m

en
t.

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

10
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
3 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

3
Tr

ai
ne

d 
LH

J s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

ire
ct

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(T

A
) t

o 
sm

al
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 
G

ro
up

 A
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

O
D

W
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e.
 

Se
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
 fo

r t
as

k 
ac

tiv
ity

.

Pr
ov

id
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 T

A
 

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 a

ny
 su

pp
or

tin
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

ho
to

s t
o 

O
D

W
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e.

C
om

pl
et

ed
 T

A
 R

ep
or

t 
m

us
t b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
O

D
W

 R
eg

io
na

l 
O

ff
ic

e 
w

ith
in

 3
0 

ca
le

nd
ar

 d
ay

s o
f 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
te

ch
ni

ca
l 

as
si

st
an

ce
.

U
po

n 
ac

ce
pt

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 T
A

 
R

ep
or

t, 
th

e 
LH

J s
ha

ll 
be

 p
ai

d 
fo

r e
ac

h 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

•
U

p 
to

 3
 h

ou
rs

 o
f w

or
k:

 $
25

0
•

3-
6 

ho
ur

s o
f w

or
k:

 $
50

0
•

M
or

e 
th

an
 6

 h
ou

rs
 o

f w
or

k:
 $

75
0

Pa
ym

en
t i

s i
nc

lu
si

ve
 o

f a
ll 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 

co
st

s s
uc

h 
as

 c
on

su
lti

ng
 fe

e,
 tr

av
el

, 
lo

dg
in

g,
 p

er
 d

ie
m

.

Pa
ym

en
t i

s a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 u

po
n 

re
ce

ip
t a

nd
 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 o

f c
om

pl
et

ed
 T

A
 R

ep
or

t 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

30
-d

ay
 d

ea
dl

in
e.

 

La
te

 o
r i

nc
om

pl
et

e 
re

po
rts

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

 fo
r p

ay
m

en
t.

4
LH

J s
ta

ff
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 

un
de

r t
as

ks
 1

, 2
 a

nd
 3

 m
us

t h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

m
an

da
to

ry
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Su
rv

ey
 T

ra
in

in
g.

Se
e 

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tru

ct
io

ns
 fo

r t
as

k 
ac

tiv
ity

.

Pr
io

r t
o 

at
te

nd
in

g 
th

e 
tra

in
in

g,
 su

bm
it 

an
 

“A
ut

ho
riz

at
io

n 
fo

r T
ra

ve
l 

(N
on

-E
m

pl
oy

ee
)”

 D
O

H
 

Fo
rm

 7
10

-0
13

 to
 th

e 
O

D
W

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 C

on
ta

ct
 b

el
ow

 fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 (t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 

en
ou

gh
 fu

nd
s a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e)

.

A
nn

ua
lly

LH
J s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ai
d 

m
ile

ag
e,

 p
er

 d
ie

m
, 

lo
dg

in
g,

 a
nd

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

co
st

s a
s 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
e-

au
th

or
iz

at
io

n 
fo

rm
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
at

es
 

lis
te

d 
on

 th
e 

O
FM

 W
eb

si
te

 
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.o

fm
.w

a.
go

v/
re

so
ur

ce
s/

tra
v

el
.a

sp

*F
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

O
nl

y:
Fu

nd
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 ti
ed

 to
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s l
is

te
d 

he
re

.  
Th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l i
n 

di
sc

us
si

on
s o

f h
ow

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 m
ee

tin
g 

a 
St

an
da

rd
/M

ea
su

re
.  

M
or

e 
de

ta
il 

on
 th

es
e 

an
d/

or
 o

th
er

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
B

oa
rd

 (P
H

A
B

) S
ta

nd
ar

ds
/M

ea
su

re
s t

ha
t m

ay
 a

pp
ly

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
at

:
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.p

ha
bo

ar
d.

or
g/

w
p-

co
nt

en
t/u

pl
oa

ds
/P

H
A

B
-S

ta
nd

ar
ds

-a
nd

-M
ea

su
re

s-
V

er
si

on
-1

.0
.p

df

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
fic

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
/N

ar
ra

tiv
e

Sp
ec

ia
l R

ef
er

en
ce

s (
R

C
W

s, 
W

A
C

s, 
et

c)
C

ha
pt

er
 2

46
-2

90
 W

A
C

 is
 th

e 
se

t o
f r

ul
es

 th
at

 re
gu

la
te

 G
ro

up
 A

 w
at

er
 sy

st
em

s. 
 B

y 
th

is
 st

at
em

en
t o

f w
or

k,
 O

D
W

 c
on

tra
ct

s w
ith

 th
e 

LH
J t

o 
co

nd
uc

t s
an

ita
ry

 su
rv

ey
s (

an
d 

SP
Is

, a
nd

 
pr

ov
id

e 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e)
 fo

r s
m

al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 n
on

-c
om

m
un

ity
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
 so

ur
ce

s. 
 O

D
W

 re
ta

in
s r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r c

on
du

ct
in

g 
sa

ni
ta

ry
 su

rv
ey

s (
an

d 
SP

Is
, a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 te

ch
ni

ca
l a

ss
is

ta
nc

e)
 fo

r s
m

al
l c

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 n
on

-c
om

m
un

ity
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 su

rf
ac

e 
w

at
er

 so
ur

ce
s, 

la
rg

e 
w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s, 

an
d 

sy
st

em
s w

ith
 c

om
pl

ex
 

tre
at

m
en

t.
LH

J s
ta

ff
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 u
nd

er
 ta

sk
s 1

, 2
, a

nd
 3

 m
us

t b
e 

tra
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 O

D
W

 p
rio

r t
o 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

w
or

k.
 S

ee
 sp

ec
ia

l i
ns

tru
ct

io
ns

 u
nd

er
 T

as
k 

4,
 b

el
ow

.

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

11
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
4 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

Sp
ec

ia
l B

ill
in

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll 

su
bm

it 
qu

ar
te

rly
 in

vo
ic

es
 w

ith
in

 3
0 

da
ys

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r i

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
or

k 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

, n
ot

in
g 

on
 th

e 
in

vo
ic

e 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r a
nd

 y
ea

r b
ei

ng
 b

ill
ed

 fo
r. 

 
Pa

ym
en

t c
an

no
t e

xc
ee

d 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 a
cc

um
ul

at
iv

e 
fe

e 
of

 $
9,

20
0 

$1
6,

40
0 

fo
r T

as
k 

1,
 a

nd
 $

2,
00

0 
$4

,0
00

 fo
r T

as
k 

2,
 T

as
k 

3 
an

d 
T

as
k 

4 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
pe

rio
d,

 to
 

be
 p

ai
d 

at
 th

e 
ra

te
s s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 th

e 
Pa

ym
en

t M
et

ho
d/

A
m

ou
nt

 se
ct

io
n 

ab
ov

e.
  W

he
n 

in
vo

ic
in

g 
fo

r s
an

ita
ry

 su
rv

ey
s, 

bi
ll 

ha
lf 

to
 B

A
R

S 
R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

34
6.

26
.6

4 
an

d 
ha

lf 
to

 B
A

R
S 

R
ev

en
ue

 C
od

e 
34

6.
26

.6
5.

 

W
he

n 
in

vo
ic

in
g 

fo
r T

as
k 

1,
 su

bm
it 

th
e 

lis
t o

f W
S 

N
am

e,
 ID

 #
, A

m
ou

nt
 B

ill
ed

, S
ur

ve
y 

D
at

e 
an

d 
Le

tte
r D

at
e 

th
at

 y
ou

 a
re

 re
qu

es
tin

g 
pa

ym
en

t. 
 

W
he

n 
in

vo
ic

in
g 

fo
r T

as
k 

2-
3,

 su
bm

it 
th

e 
lis

t o
f W

S 
N

am
e,

 ID
 #

, T
A

 D
at

e 
an

d 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

of
 T

A
 w

or
k 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
, a

nd
 A

m
ou

nt
 B

ill
ed

.

W
he

n 
in

vo
ic

in
g 

fo
r T

as
k 

4,
 su

bm
it 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
nd

 th
e 

si
gn

ed
 p

re
-a

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 fo
r n

on
-e

m
pl

oy
ee

 tr
av

el
 to

 th
e 

O
D

W
 P

ro
gr

am
 C

on
ta

ct
 b

el
ow

 a
nd

 a
 si

gn
ed

 A
19

-1
A

 In
vo

ic
e 

V
ou

ch
er

 to
 th

e 
D

O
H

 G
ra

nt
s M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
bi

lli
ng

 to
 B

A
R

S 
R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

34
6.

26
.6

6 
un

de
r T

ec
hn

ic
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

(T
A

).

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tr

uc
tio

ns
T

as
k 

1
Tr

ai
ne

d 
LH

J s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

w
at

er
 sy

st
em

 fo
r p

hy
si

ca
l a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s a
nd

 p
re

pa
re

 a
 F

in
al

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

R
ep

or
t w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 b

y 
O

D
W

. D
et

ai
le

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fi
el

d 
G

ui
de

 fo
r S

an
ita

ry
 S

ur
ve

ys
, S

pe
ci

al
 P

ur
po

se
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
(F

ie
ld

 G
ui

de
). 

Th
e 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
 w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ei
gh

t e
le

m
en

ts
: s

ou
rc

e;
 tr

ea
tm

en
t; 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

sy
st

em
; f

in
is

he
d 

w
at

er
 st

or
ag

e;
 p

um
ps

, p
um

p 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s a

nd
 c

on
tro

ls
; m

on
ito

rin
g,

 re
po

rti
ng

 a
nd

 d
at

a 
ve

rif
ic

at
io

n;
 sy

st
em

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
n;

 a
nd

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
op

er
at

or
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e.
  I

f a
 sy

st
em

 is
 m

or
e 

co
m

pl
ex

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 o
r o

th
er

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 is

su
es

 a
ris

e,
 th

e 
LH

J m
ay

 
re

qu
es

t O
D

W
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e.
•

N
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 1

 2
 su

rv
ey

 o
f n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 th

re
e 

or
 fe

w
er

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

•
N

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 1
1 

13
 su

rv
ey

s o
f n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 fo

ur
 o

r m
or

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
ll 

co
m

m
un

ity
 sy

st
em

s t
o 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

•
N

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 3
 su

rv
ey

s o
f n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 th

re
e 

or
 fe

w
er

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

9 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9.

•
N

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 5
 su

rv
ey

s o
f n

on
-c

om
m

un
ity

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 fo

ur
 o

r m
or

e 
co

nn
ec

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
ll 

co
m

m
un

ity
 sy

st
em

s t
o 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

9 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
9.

Th
e 

pr
oc

es
s f

or
 a

ss
ig

nm
en

t o
f s

ur
ve

ys
 to

 th
e 

LH
J, 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
w

at
er

 sy
st

em
, a

nd
 O

D
W

 fo
llo

w
-u

p 
w

ith
 u

nr
es

po
ns

iv
e 

w
at

er
 sy

st
em

s;
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 ro
le

s a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s o

f 
th

e 
LH

J a
re

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

Fi
el

d 
G

ui
de

. 

T
as

k 
2

Tr
ai

ne
d 

LH
J s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 p
er

fo
rm

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ur

po
se

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 (S

PI
s)

 a
s a

ss
ig

ne
d 

by
 O

D
W

. S
PI

s a
re

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ca
us

e 
of

 p
os

iti
ve

 c
ol

ifo
rm

 sa
m

pl
es

 o
r t

he
 c

au
se

 o
f 

ot
he

r e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

co
nd

iti
on

s. 
SP

Is
 m

ay
 a

ls
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

sa
ni

ta
ry

 su
rv

ey
s o

f n
ew

ly
 d

is
co

ve
re

d 
G

ro
up

 A
 w

at
er

 sy
st

em
s. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 d

et
ai

l a
bo

ut
 c

on
du

ct
in

g 
SP

Is
 is

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 th
e 

Fi
el

d 
G

ui
de

. T
he

 O
D

W
 R

eg
io

na
l O

ff
ic

e 
m

us
t a

ut
ho

riz
e 

in
 a

dv
an

ce
 a

ny
 S

PI
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 b
y 

LH
J s

ta
ff

. 

T
as

k 
3

Tr
ai

ne
d 

LH
J s

ta
ff

 w
ill

 c
on

du
ct

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
as

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
by

 O
D

W
. T

ec
hn

ic
al

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
ss

is
tin

g 
w

at
er

 sy
st

em
 p

er
so

nn
el

 in
 c

om
pl

et
in

g 
w

or
k 

or
 v

er
ify

in
g 

w
or

k 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

as
 re

qu
ire

d,
 re

qu
es

te
d,

 o
r a

dv
is

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
O

D
W

 to
 m

ee
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 d
rin

ki
ng

 w
at

er
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

.  
Ex

am
pl

es
 o

f t
ec

hn
ic

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

re
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 th

e 
Fi

el
d 

G
ui

de
. T

he
 O

D
W

 R
eg

io
na

l O
ff

ic
e 

m
us

t a
ut

ho
riz

e 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

 a
ny

 te
ch

ni
ca

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

LH
J t

o 
a 

w
at

er
 sy

st
em

.

T
as

k 
4

LH
J s

ta
ff

 a
ss

ig
ne

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 u

nd
er

 ta
sk

s 1
, 2

, a
nd

 3
 m

us
t b

e 
tra

in
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 O
D

W
 p

rio
r t

o 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
w

or
k.

 L
H

J s
ta

ff
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 u

nd
er

 ta
sk

s 1
, 

2 
an

d 
3 

m
us

t h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, w
ith

 a
 p

as
si

ng
 sc

or
e,

 th
e 

O
D

W
 O

nl
in

e 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ur
ve

y 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
O

D
W

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

Fi
el

d 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
. L

H
J s

ta
ff

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 u
nd

er
 

ta
sk

s 1
, 2

, a
nd

 3
 m

us
t a

tte
nd

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l O

D
W

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ur

ve
y 

W
or

ks
ho

p,
 a

nd
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 a

tte
nd

 th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l O
D

W
 L

H
J D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

 M
ee

tin
gs

.Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

12
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
5 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

If
 re

qu
ire

d 
tra

in
in

gs
, w

or
ks

ho
ps

 o
r m

ee
tin

gs
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 n
ot

 sc
he

du
le

d,
 o

r i
f t

he
 L

H
J s

ta
ff

 p
er

so
n 

is
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 a
tte

nd
 th

es
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 p
rio

r t
o 

co
nd

uc
tin

g 
as

si
gn

ed
 ta

sk
s, 

th
e 

LH
J s

ta
ff

 p
er

so
n 

m
ay

, w
ith

 O
D

W
 a

pp
ro

va
l, 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ot

he
r t

ra
in

in
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

O
D

W
. S

uc
h 

su
bs

tit
ut

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
on

e-
on

-o
ne

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ith

 O
D

W
 

st
af

f, 
co

-s
ur

ve
ys

 w
ith

 O
D

W
 st

af
f, 

or
 o

th
er

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

s a
rr

an
ge

d 
an

d 
pr

e-
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
O

D
W

. L
H

J s
ta

ff
 m

ay
 n

ot
 p

er
fo

rm
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 u

nd
er

 ta
sk

s 1
, 2

, a
nd

 3
 w

ith
ou

t c
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
e 

tra
in

in
g 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ar

ra
ng

ed
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 O

D
W

.

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ua
l, 

H
an

db
oo

k,
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

ef
er

en
ce

s
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.d

oh
.w

a.
go

v/
Po

rt
al

s/
1/

D
oc

um
en

ts
/P

ub
s/

33
1-

48
6.

pd
f

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 C

on
ta

ct
D

O
H

 F
is

ca
l C

on
ta

ct
D

en
is

e 
M

ile
s

K
ar

en
a 

M
cG

ov
er

n
D

O
H

 O
ff

ic
e 

of
 D

rin
ki

ng
 W

at
er

D
O

H
 O

ff
ic

e 
of

 D
rin

ki
ng

 W
at

er
24

3 
Is

ra
el

 R
d 

SE
24

3 
Is

ra
el

 R
d 

SE
Tu

m
w

at
er

, W
A

  9
85

01
Tu

m
w

at
er

, W
A

  9
85

01
D

en
is

e.
M

ile
s@

do
h.

w
a.

go
v

K
ar

en
a.

M
cG

ov
er

n@
do

h.
w

a.
go

v
(3

60
) 2

36
-3

02
8

(3
60

) 2
36

-3
09

4

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

13
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
6 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

E
xh

ib
it 

A
St

at
em

en
t o

f W
or

k
C

on
tr

ac
t T

er
m

:  
20

18
-2

02
0

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 N

am
e 

or
 T

itl
e:

  W
IC

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 - 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
L

oc
al

 H
ea

lth
 J

ur
is

di
ct

io
n 

N
am

e:
  G

ra
ys

 H
ar

bo
r C

ou
nt

y 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 &

 S
oc

ia
l 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

C
on

tr
ac

t N
um

be
r:

  C
LH

18
24

5

SO
W

 T
yp

e:
  R

ev
is

io
n

R
ev

is
io

n 
# 

(f
or

 th
is

 S
O

W
)  

5

Pe
ri

od
 o

f P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

:  
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
0

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
 F

ed
er

al
 S

ub
re

ci
pi

en
t

 S
ta

te
 O

th
er

Fe
de

ra
l C

om
pl

ia
nc

e
(c

he
ck

 if
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

)
 F

FA
TA

 (T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
)

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

T
yp

e 
of

 P
ay

m
en

t
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

t
 F

ix
ed

 P
ric

e

St
at

em
en

t o
f W

or
k 

Pu
rp

os
e:

  T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s r

ev
is

io
n 

is
 to

 a
dd

 fu
nd

s i
n 

th
e 

FF
Y

19
 C

SS
 U

SD
A

 W
IC

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
gn

t f
or

 c
as

el
oa

d 
an

d 
an

nu
al

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 fu
nd

s..

R
ev

is
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

e:
  T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
hi

s r
ev

is
io

n 
is

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 fu

nd
in

g 
in

 C
SS

 W
IC

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
gn

t c
at

eg
or

y 
fo

r F
FY

19
, F

FY
20

 a
nd

 F
FY

21
, a

dd
 F

FY
16

 C
as

ca
de

s U
SD

A
 W

IC
 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
gn

t f
un

di
ng

, m
od

ify
 ta

sk
s 1

.8
a 

an
d 

1.
8b

, a
dd

 a
 S

pe
ci

al
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t, 

an
d 

up
da

te
 P

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 F

is
ca

l C
on

ta
ct

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

C
ha

rt
 o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s P
ro

gr
am

 N
am

e 
or

 T
itl

e
C

FD
A

 #
B

A
R

S 
R

ev
en

ue
 

C
od

e

M
as

te
r 

In
de

x 
C

od
e

Fu
nd

in
g

(L
H

J 
U

se
St

ar
t D

at
e

 P
er

io
d

 O
nl

y)
E

nd
 D

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

C
ha

ng
e

In
cr

ea
se

 (+
)

T
ot

al
 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n

FF
Y

18
 C

SS
 U

SD
A

 W
IC

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 M

G
N

T
10

.5
57

33
3.

10
.5

5
76

21
12

80
01

/0
1/

18
09

/3
0/

18
22

4,
66

0
0

22
4,

66
0

FF
Y

19
 C

SS
 U

SD
A

 W
IC

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 M

G
N

T
10

.5
57

33
3.

10
.5

5
76

21
12

90
10

/0
1/

18
09

/3
0/

19
27

4,
71

0
30

0
27

5,
01

0
FF

Y
20

 C
SS

 U
SD

A
 W

IC
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 M
G

N
T

10
.5

57
33

3.
10

.5
5

TB
D

10
/0

1/
19

09
/3

0/
20

26
1,

96
0

5,
40

0
26

7,
36

0
FF

Y
21

 C
SS

 U
SD

A
 W

IC
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 M
G

N
T

10
.5

57
33

3.
10

.5
5

TB
D

10
/0

1/
20

12
/3

1/
20

65
,4

90
1,

35
0

66
,8

40
FF

Y
18

 C
SS

 U
SD

A
 W

IC
 F

M
N

P 
PR

O
G

R
A

M
 M

G
N

T
10

.5
72

33
3.

10
.5

7
76

21
12

84
01

/0
1/

18
09

/3
0/

18
32

7
0

32
7

FF
Y

16
 C

A
SC

A
D

ES
 W

IC
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 M
G

N
T 

M
IS

10
.5

78
33

3.
10

.5
7

76
41

12
6X

01
/0

1/
19

09
/3

0/
19

0
3,

08
0

3,
08

0
T

O
T

A
L

S
82

7,
14

7
10

,1
30

83
7,

27
7

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

1
W

IC
 N

ut
ri

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

Se
e 

“S
pe

ci
al

 B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
” 

be
lo

w
.

1.
1

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
ca

se
lo

ad
 a

t 1
00

%
 

ba
se

d 
on

 q
ua

rte
rly

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
s d

et
er

m
in

ed
 fr

om
 

m
on

th
ly

 c
as

el
oa

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 g
en

er
at

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
st

at
e 

W
IC

 o
ff

ic
e.

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 (D

O
H

) S
ta

te
 W

IC
 

N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 h

as
 th

e 
op

tio
n 

of
 re

du
ci

ng
 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

ca
se

lo
ad

 a
nd

 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

fu
nd

in
g 

w
he

n:

7.
2

O
ut

co
m

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

m
on

th
ly

 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
da

ta
 fr

om
 st

at
e 

W
IC

 
ca

se
lo

ad
 m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ep

or
ts

. 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

14
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
7 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

1.
U

na
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

si
tu

at
io

ns
 o

cc
ur

.
2.

R
ea

llo
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 re
di

st
rib

ut
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

 st
at

ew
id

e.

A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
ca

se
lo

ad
 fo

r 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

18
 th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
20

 =
 1

,2
60

A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
ca

se
lo

ad
 fo

r 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
18

 th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

20
 =

 1
,3

50

1.
2

Su
bm

it 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 P

la
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

ct
.

9.
2 

N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 P

la
n

Fi
rs

t y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

18
Se

co
nd

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

19
Th

ird
 y

ea
r d

ue
 

11
/3

0/
20

Pa
ym

en
t w

ith
he

ld
 if

 
no

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
by

 d
ue

 
da

te
.

1.
3

Su
bm

it 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

R
ep

or
t f

or
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

ct
.

11
.2

N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

R
ep

or
t

Fi
rs

t y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

18
Se

co
nd

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

19
Th

ird
 y

ea
r d

ue
 

11
/3

0/
20

Pa
ym

en
t w

ith
he

ld
 if

 
no

t r
ec

ei
ve

d 
by

 d
ue

 
da

te
.

1.
4

Te
ll 

cl
ie

nt
s a

bo
ut

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

 se
rv

ic
es

 in
 th

e 
ag

en
cy

.  
If

 n
ee

de
d,

 d
ev

el
op

 w
rit

te
n 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 re

fe
r c

lie
nt

s t
o 

th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.

3.
1 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 m
on

ito
r

1.
5

Pr
ov

id
e 

nu
tri

tio
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 c
lie

nt
s a

nd
 

ca
re

gi
ve

rs
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 fe
de

ra
l a

nd
 st

at
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.

3.
1 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 m
on

ito
r

1.
6

Is
su

e 
W

IC
 c

he
ck

s w
hi

le
 a

ss
ur

in
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
he

ck
 

se
cu

rit
y 

an
d 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n.
11

.2
D

oc
um

en
ta

tio
n 

m
us

t b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r r
ev

ie
w

 b
y 

W
IC

 m
on

ito
r s

ta
ff

.
B

ie
nn

ia
l W

IC
 m

on
ito

r

1.
7

C
ol

le
ct

 d
at

a,
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
co

rd
s, 

an
d 

su
bm

it 
re

po
rts

 
to

 e
ff

ec
tiv

el
y 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

no
n-

di
sc

rim
in

at
io

n 
la

w
s 

(R
ef

er
 to

 C
iv

il 
R

ig
ht

s A
ss

ur
an

ce
s b

el
ow

).

7.
1 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 m
on

ito
r

1.
8a

Su
bm

it 
en

tir
e 

W
IC

 B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k 

w
ith

 O
ct

ob
er

 
A1

9 
In

vo
ic

e.
Su

bm
it 

W
IC

 B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 

co
nt

ra
ct

.

11
.2

B
ud

ge
t W

or
kb

oo
k

Fi
rs

t y
ea

r d
ue

 
10

/3
1/

18
Se

co
nd

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
10

/3
1/

19
 0

9/
30

/1
9

Th
ird

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
10

/3
1/

20
 0

9/
30

/2
0

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

15
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
8 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

1.
8b

Su
bm

it 
R

ev
-E

xp
 R

ep
or

t s
pr

ea
ds

he
et

 fr
om

 th
e 

W
IC

 
B

ud
ge

t W
or

kb
oo

k 
on

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

 w
ith

 A
19

 
in

vo
ic

e 
an

d 
su

bm
it 

en
tir

e 
re

vi
se

d 
W

IC
 B

ud
ge

t 
W

or
kb

oo
k 

fo
r e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t.

11
.2

R
ev

-E
xp

 R
ep

or
t a

nd
 re

vi
se

d 
Bu

dg
et

 W
or

kb
oo

k.
10

/3
1 

en
tir

e 
w

or
kb

oo
k 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
11

/3
0 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
12

/3
1 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
01

/3
0 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
02

/2
8 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
03

/3
1 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
04

/3
0 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r 
05

/3
1 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
06

/3
0 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
07

/3
1 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
08

/3
1 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
09

/3
0 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r
M

id
-y

ea
r r

ev
is

io
n 

du
e 

04
/3

0/
19

M
id

-y
ea

r r
ev

is
io

n 
du

e 
04

/3
0/

20

2
B

re
as

tf
ee

di
ng

 P
ro

m
ot

io
n

Se
e 

“S
pe

ci
al

 B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
” 

be
lo

w

2.
1

Pr
ov

id
e 

br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 fe

de
ra

l a
nd

 st
at

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts

3.
1 

St
at

us
 re

po
rt 

of
 c

ho
se

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 
N

ut
rit

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 P
la

n.

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

Fi
rs

t y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

18
Se

co
nd

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

19
Th

ird
 y

ea
r d

ue
 

11
/3

0/
20

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 m
on

ito
r

2.
2

W
or

k 
w

ith
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 th
at

 a
ff

ec
t b

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g.

  C
ho

os
e 

on
e 

or
 

m
or

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

ts
:

C
ha

ng
e 

w
or

ks
ite

 p
ol

ic
ie

s o
f e

m
pl

oy
er

s w
ho

 
lik

el
y 

em
pl

oy
 lo

w
 in

co
m

e 
w

om
en

Pr
ov

id
e 

br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

to
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

er
s w

ho
 se

rv
e 

lo
w

 in
co

m
e 

pr
eg

na
nt

 a
nd

 
br

ea
st

fe
ed

in
g 

w
om

en
W

or
k 

w
ith

 b
irt

hi
ng

 h
os

pi
ta

ls
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

m
at

er
ni

ty
 c

ar
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 th
at

 a
ff

ec
t W

IC
 c

lie
nt

 
br

ea
st

fe
ed

in
g 

ra
te

s
Pr

ov
id

e 
cl

ie
nt

s a
cc

es
s t

o 
la

ct
at

io
n 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s

4.
2 

St
at

us
 re

po
rt 

of
 c

ho
se

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 in

 
N

ut
rit

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 P
la

n.

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

Fi
rs

t y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

18
Se

co
nd

 y
ea

r d
ue

 
11

/3
0/

19
Th

ird
 y

ea
r d

ue
 

11
/3

0/
20

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 m
on

ito
rAg

en
da

 It
em

 P
ag

e 
16

 o
f 2

7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

24
9 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

T
as

k 
N

um
be

r
T

as
k/

A
ct

iv
ity

/D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

*M
ay

 S
up

po
rt

 P
H

A
B

 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s
D

el
iv

er
ab

le
s/

O
ut

co
m

es
D

ue
 D

at
e/

T
im

e 
Fr

am
e

Pa
ym

en
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d/

or
 

A
m

ou
nt

Pr
ov

id
e 

st
af

f a
nd

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g 
tra

in
in

g

O
th

er
 p

ro
je

ct
s w

ill
 n

ee
d 

pr
e-

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 th
e 

St
at

e 
W

IC
 O

ff
ic

e.
 

3
Fa

rm
er

s M
ar

ke
t N

ut
ri

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (F
M

N
P)

Se
e 

“S
pe

ci
al

 B
ill

in
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
” 

be
lo

w
3.

1
D

is
tri

bu
te

 a
ll 

Fa
rm

er
s M

ar
ke

t N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

ch
ec

ks
 to

 e
lig

ib
le

 W
IC

 c
lie

nt
s b

et
w

ee
n 

Ju
ne

 a
nd

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 y
ea

r.

Se
nd

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 re

ad
ab

le
 c

op
y 

of
 

FM
N

P 
ch

ec
k 

re
gi

st
er

s t
o 

St
at

e 
W

IC
 o

ff
ic

e 
on

 a
 w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
FM

N
P 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

D
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
m

us
t b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 b

y 
W

IC
 m

on
ito

r s
ta

ff
.

W
ee

kl
y 

Ju
ne

-S
ep

t. 
20

18
W

ee
kl

y 
Ju

ne
-S

ep
t. 

20
19

W
ee

kl
y 

Ju
ne

-S
ep

t. 
20

20

A
ll 

re
gi

st
er

s s
en

t b
y 

O
ct

. 1
, 2

01
8;

 O
ct

. 1
, 

20
19

, a
nd

 O
ct

. 1
, 2

02
0

B
ie

nn
ia

l W
IC

 M
on

ito
r

*F
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

O
nl

y:
Fu

nd
in

g 
is

 n
ot

 ti
ed

 to
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
St

an
da

rd
s/

M
ea

su
re

s l
is

te
d 

he
re

.  
Th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
he

lp
fu

l i
n 

di
sc

us
si

on
s o

f h
ow

 p
ro

gr
am

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 m

ig
ht

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 m
ee

tin
g 

a 
St

an
da

rd
/M

ea
su

re
.  

M
or

e 
de

ta
il 

on
 th

es
e 

an
d/

or
 o

th
er

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 A
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
B

oa
rd

 (P
H

A
B

) S
ta

nd
ar

ds
/M

ea
su

re
s t

ha
t m

ay
 a

pp
ly

 c
an

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
at

:
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.p

ha
bo

ar
d.

or
g/

w
p-

co
nt

en
t/u

pl
oa

ds
/P

H
A

B
-S

ta
nd

ar
ds

-a
nd

-M
ea

su
re

s-
V

er
si

on
-1

.0
.p

df

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
fic

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
/N

ar
ra

tiv
e

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
 (F

FA
T

A
)

Th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f w

or
k 

is
 su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 fe

de
ra

l f
un

ds
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l F

un
di

ng
 A

cc
ou

nt
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 T
ra

ns
pa

re
nc

y 
A

ct
 (F

FA
TA

 o
r t

he
 T

ra
ns

pa
re

nc
y 

A
ct

). 
 

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

e 
Tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 A

ct
 is

 to
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

lin
e 

so
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 c
an

 se
e 

ho
w

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l f

un
ds

 a
re

 sp
en

t.

To
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

is
 a

ct
 a

nd
 b

e 
el

ig
ib

le
 to

 p
er

fo
rm

 th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 in
 th

is
 st

at
em

en
t o

f w
or

k,
 th

e 
LH

J m
us

t h
av

e 
a 

D
at

a 
U

ni
ve

rs
al

 N
um

be
rin

g 
Sy

st
em

 (D
U

N
S®

) n
um

be
r.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 L
H

J a
nd

 th
is

 st
at

em
en

t o
f w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 U

SA
Sp

en
di

ng
.g

ov
 b

y 
D

O
H

 a
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 P

.L
. 1

09
-2

82
.

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
an

ua
l, 

H
an

db
oo

k,
 P

ol
ic

y 
R

ef
er

en
ce

s:
Th

e 
LH

J s
ha

ll 
be

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r p

ro
vi

di
ng

 se
rv

ic
es

 a
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 ru
le

s, 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
co

nt
ai

ne
d 

in
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

•
W

IC
 F

ed
er

al
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, U

SD
A

, F
N

S 
7C

FR
 P

ar
t 2

46
, 3

01
6,

 3
01

7 
an

d 
30

18
•

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St
at

e 
W

IC
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
M

an
ua

l

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

17
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
0 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

•
Fa

rm
er

s M
ar

ke
t N

ut
rit

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 F
ed

er
al

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

, U
SD

A
, F

N
S 

7C
FR

 P
ar

t 2
48

 
•

O
th

er
 d

ire
ct

iv
es

 is
su

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
te

rm
 o

f t
he

 C
on

tra
ct

St
af

fin
g 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
:

Th
e 

LH
J m

us
t:

•
U

se
 C

om
pe

te
nt

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
st

af
f, 

as
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
W

IC
 p

ol
ic

y,
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

cl
ie

nt
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

, p
re

sc
rib

e 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
od

 p
ac

ka
ge

 a
nd

 o
ff

er
 n

ut
rit

io
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
cl

ie
nt

s’
 n

ee
ds

.
•

U
se

 a
 R

eg
is

te
re

d 
D

ie
tit

ia
n 

(R
D

) o
r o

th
er

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
nu

tri
tio

ni
st

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ut
rit

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 to
 h

ig
h 

ris
k 

cl
ie

nt
s, 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
ca

re
 p

la
n.

 T
he

 R
D

 is
 a

ls
o 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 W

IC
 n

ut
rit

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

. S
ee

 W
IC

 P
ol

ic
y 

fo
r q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r a

 R
eg

is
te

re
d 

D
ie

tit
ia

n 
an

d 
ot

he
r q

ua
lif

ie
d 

nu
tri

tio
ni

st
.

•
A

ss
ig

n 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 p
er

so
n 

to
 b

e 
th

e 
B

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 to
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

an
d 

di
re

ct
 lo

ca
l a

ge
nc

y 
ef

fo
rts

 to
 m

ee
t f

ed
er

al
 a

nd
 st

at
e 

po
lic

ie
s r

eg
ar

di
ng

 b
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t. 

Th
e 

B
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 m

us
t b

e 
an

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l B
oa

rd
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

La
ct

at
io

n 
C

on
su

lta
nt

 o
r a

tte
nd

 a
n 

in
te

ns
iv

e 
la

ct
at

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

ou
rs

e,
 o

r o
th

er
 st

at
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. 

R
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 o
n 

Fu
nd

s:
Th

e 
LH

J s
ha

ll 
fo

llo
w

 th
e 

in
st

ru
ct

io
ns

 fo
un

d 
in

 th
e 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

M
an

ua
l u

nd
er

 W
IC

 A
llo

w
ab

le
 C

os
ts

.

M
on

ito
ri

ng
 V

is
its

: 
Pr

og
ra

m
 a

nd
 fi

sc
al

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

e 
do

ne
 o

n 
a 

B
ie

nn
ia

l (
ev

er
y 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s)
 b

as
is

, a
nd

 a
re

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 o

ns
ite

.

Th
e 

LH
J m

us
t m

ai
nt

ai
n 

on
 fi

le
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r r
ev

ie
w

, a
ud

it 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n:

1)
A

ll 
cr

ite
ria

 u
se

d 
fo

r c
er

tif
ic

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 in

co
m

e,
 n

ut
rit

io
n 

ris
k 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 re

fe
rr

al
s

2)
Pr

og
ra

m
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
3)

N
ut

rit
io

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n

4)
A

ll 
fin

an
ci

al
 re

co
rd

s

D
ef

in
iti

on
s:

W
ha

t i
s t

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
?

(1
) T

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

 th
e 

st
at

e 
of

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

is
 a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 D

O
H

.

(2
) T

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 is

 a
 fe

de
ra

lly
 fu

nd
ed

 p
ro

gr
am

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

in
 1

97
2 

by
 a

n 
am

en
dm

en
t t

o 
th

e 
C

hi
ld

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
A

ct
 o

f 1
96

6.
 T

he
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

 is
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 n
ut

rit
io

n 
an

d 
he

al
th

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t; 

nu
tri

tio
n 

ed
uc

at
io

n;
 n

ut
rit

io
us

 fo
od

; b
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
co

un
se

lin
g;

 a
nd

 re
fe

rr
al

 se
rv

ic
es

 to
 p

re
gn

an
t, 

br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g,
 a

nd
 p

os
tp

ar
tu

m
 w

om
en

, i
nf

an
ts

, a
nd

 y
ou

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
ris

k 
ca

te
go

rie
s.

(3
) F

ed
er

al
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 g
ov

er
ni

ng
 th

e 
W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 (7

 C
FR

 P
ar

t 2
46

) r
eq

ui
re

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 st
an

da
rd

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s t

o 
gu

id
e 

th
e 

st
at

e's
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

Th
es

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 d
ef

in
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

s, 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s, 
an

d 
le

ga
l p

ro
ce

du
re

s o
f W

IC
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s, 
cl

ie
nt

s, 
pe

rs
on

s a
ct

in
g 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f a

 c
lie

nt
, a

nd
 re

ta
ile

rs
. T

he
y 

ar
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 to
 

pr
om

ot
e:

   
  (

a)
 H

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 n

ut
rit

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

;
   

  (
b)

 C
on

si
st

en
t a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
of

 p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s f

or
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n;

   
  (

c)
 C

on
si

st
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s f
or

 fo
od

 b
en

ef
it 

is
su

an
ce

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y;
 a

nd
   

  (
d)

 W
IC

 p
ro

gr
am

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e.

(4
) T

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 im

pl
em

en
ts

 p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s s

ta
te

d 
in

 p
ro

gr
am

 m
an

ua
ls

, h
an

db
oo

ks
, c

on
tra

ct
s, 

fo
rm

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r p

ro
gr

am
 d

oc
um

en
ts

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

U
SD

A
 F

oo
d 

an
d 

N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e.

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

18
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
1 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

(5
) T

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 m

ay
 im

po
se

 sa
nc

tio
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 W
IC

 c
lie

nt
s f

or
 n

ot
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

W
IC

 p
ro

gr
am

 ru
le

s s
ta

te
d 

on
 th

e 
W

IC
 ri

gh
ts

 a
nd

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

(6
) T

he
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 m

ay
 im

po
se

 m
on

et
ar

y 
pe

na
lti

es
 a

ga
in

st
 p

er
so

ns
 w

ho
 m

is
us

e 
W

IC
 c

he
ck

s o
r W

IC
 fo

od
 b

ut
 w

ho
 a

re
 n

ot
 W

IC
 c

lie
nt

s.

A
ss

ur
an

ce
s/

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

ns
: 

1.
  C

om
pu

te
r 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t L

oa
ne

d 
by

 th
e 

D
O

H
 W

IC
 N

ut
ri

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
 W

IC
 p

ro
gr

am
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

, D
O

H
 re

qu
ire

s c
om

pu
te

rs
 a

nd
 p

rin
te

rs
 to

 b
e 

in
 lo

ca
l W

IC
 c

lin
ic

s o
r t

o 
be

 tr
an

sp
or

te
d 

to
 m

ob
ile

 c
lin

ic
s. 

 T
hi

s e
qu

ip
m

en
t (

“L
oa

ne
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t”
) i

s o
w

ne
d 

by
 D

O
H

, a
nd

 lo
an

ed
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
y 

(L
H

J)
.  

Th
e 

Lo
an

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t i
s s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 D

O
H

.  
Th

is
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r W
IC

 b
us

in
es

s o
nl

y 
or

 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 W

IC
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
Pr

oc
ed

ur
es

. 

A
n 

in
ve

nt
or

y 
of

 L
oa

ne
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t i
s k

ep
t b

y 
D

O
H

.  
Ea

ch
 ti

m
e 

Lo
an

ed
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t i
s c

ha
ng

ed
, t

he
 p

ar
tie

s s
ha

ll 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t T
ra

ns
fe

r F
or

m
 a

nd
 D

O
H

 u
pd

at
es

 th
e 

in
ve

nt
or

y.
  A

 c
op

y 
of

 th
e 

Tr
an

sf
er

 F
or

m
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 th
e 

LH
J. 

 C
op

ie
s o

f t
he

 u
pd

at
ed

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
lis

t m
ay

 b
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e.
 

Th
e 

LH
J a

gr
ee

s t
o:

a.
 D

ef
en

d,
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

ha
rm

le
ss

 D
O

H
 o

r a
ny

 o
f i

ts
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s f
ro

m
 a

ny
 c

la
im

s, 
su

its
 o

r a
ct

io
ns

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

is
 L

oa
ne

d 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t.

b.
 A

ss
um

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r a

ny
 lo

ss
 o

r d
am

ag
e 

fr
om

 a
bn

or
m

al
 w

ea
r o

r u
se

, o
r f

ro
m

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 st
or

ag
e 

or
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n.

 

D
O

H
 m

ay
 e

nf
or

ce
 th

is
 b

y:
1)

R
eq

ui
rin

g 
re

im
bu

rs
em

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

LH
J o

f t
he

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 L
oa

ne
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
lo

ss
 o

r d
am

ag
e.

2)
R

eq
ui

rin
g 

th
e 

LH
J t

o 
re

pl
ac

e 
th

e 
Lo

an
ed

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t w

ith
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t o
f t

he
 sa

m
e 

ty
pe

, m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r, 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s (
as

 p
re

-a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 D
O

H
), 

or
3)

A
ss

er
tio

n 
of

 a
 li

en
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
LH

J's
 p

ro
pe

rty
.

c.
 N

ot
ify

 D
O

H
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 o

f a
ny

 d
am

ag
e 

to
 L

oa
ne

d 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t.

d.
 N

ot
ify

 D
O

H
 p

rio
r t

o 
m

ov
in

g 
or

 re
pl

ac
in

g 
an

y 
Lo

an
ed

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t.

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t r

ec
om

m
en

ds
 L

H
Js

 c
ar

ry
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

ag
ai

ns
t p

os
si

bl
e 

lo
ss

 o
r t

he
ft.

2.
  C

iv
il 

R
ig

ht
s A

ss
ur

an
ce

Th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 d
ut

ie
s n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 fe

de
ra

l l
aw

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

C
iv

il 
R

ig
ht

s A
ss

ur
an

ce
: 

a.
“T

he
 L

H
J h

er
eb

y 
ag

re
es

 th
at

 it
 w

ill
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 T

itl
e 

V
I o

f t
he

 C
iv

il 
R

ig
ht

s A
ct

 o
f 1

96
4 

(4
2 

U
.S

.C
. 2

00
0d

 e
t s

eq
.),

 T
itl

e 
IX

 o
f t

he
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 o
f 1

97
2 

(2
0 

U
.S

.C
. 1

68
1 

et
 se

q.
), 

Se
ct

io
n 

50
4 

of
 th

e 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

A
ct

 o
f 1

97
3 

(2
9 

U
.S

.C
. 7

94
), 

A
ge

 D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

A
ct

 o
f 1

97
5 

(4
2 

U
.S

.C
. 6

10
1 

et
 se

q.
); 

al
l p

ro
vi

si
on

s r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
; D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f J

us
tic

e 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t G
ui

de
lin

es
, 2

8 
C

FR
 5

0.
3 

an
d 

42
; a

nd
 F

N
S 

di
re

ct
iv

es
 a

nd
 g

ui
de

lin
es

, 
to

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 th

at
, n

o 
pe

rs
on

 sh
al

l, 
on

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 o

f r
ac

e,
 c

ol
or

, n
at

io
na

l o
rig

in
, s

ex
, a

ge
 o

r h
an

di
ca

p,
 b

e 
ex

cl
ud

ed
 fr

om
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
, b

e 
de

ni
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f, 

or
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n 

un
de

r a
ny

 p
ro

gr
am

 o
r a

ct
iv

ity
 fo

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
LH

J r
ec

ei
ve

s F
ed

er
al

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

fr
om

 F
N

S;
 a

nd
 h

er
eb

y 
gi

ve
s a

ss
ur

an
ce

 th
at

 it
 w

ill
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 ta
ke

 m
ea

su
re

s n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 e
ff

ec
tu

at
e 

th
is

 C
on

tra
ct

. 

b.
“B

y 
ac

ce
pt

in
g 

th
is

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
, t

he
 L

H
J a

gr
ee

s t
o 

co
m

pi
le

 d
at

a,
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
co

rd
s a

nd
 su

bm
it 

re
po

rts
 a

s r
eq

ui
re

d,
 to

 p
er

m
it 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t o
f t

he
 n

on
di

sc
rim

in
at

io
n 

la
w

s a
nd

 p
er

m
it 

au
th

or
iz

ed
 U

SD
A

 p
er

so
nn

el
 d

ur
in

g 
no

rm
al

 w
or

ki
ng

 h
ou

rs
 to

 re
vi

ew
 su

ch
 re

co
rd

s, 
bo

ok
s a

nd
 a

cc
ou

nt
s a

s n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

sc
er

ta
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

no
nd

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
la

w
s. 

If
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 o

f t
hi

s a
ss

ur
an

ce
, t

he
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
, F

oo
d 

an
d 

N
ut

rit
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 sh

al
l h

av
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

 to
 se

ek
 ju

di
ci

al
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t o

f t
hi

s a
ss

ur
an

ce
. T

hi
s a

ss
ur

an
ce

 is
 b

in
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
LH

J, 
its

 su
cc

es
so

rs
, t

ra
ns

fe
re

es
, a

nd
 a

ss
ig

ne
es

, a
s l

on
g 

as
 it

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

or
 re

ta
in

s p
os

se
ss

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 

as
si

st
an

ce
 fr

om
 D

O
H

. T
he

 p
er

so
n 

or
 p

er
so

ns
 w

ho
se

 si
gn

at
ur

es
 a

pp
ea

r o
n 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 a
re

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 to

 si
gn

 th
is

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 th

e 
LH

J.”Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

19
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
2 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

3.
  7

C
FR

 P
ar

ts
 3

01
6,

 3
01

7,
 3

01
8 

Th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 a
ll 

th
e 

fis
ca

l a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 p

re
sc

rib
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
at

e 
ag

en
cy

 a
s d

ire
ct

ed
 b

y 
Fe

de
ra

l W
IC

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 (7
C

FR
 p

ar
t 2

46
.6

), 
7C

FR
 p

ar
t 

30
16

, t
he

 d
eb

ar
m

en
t a

nd
 su

sp
en

si
on

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 7

C
FR

 p
ar

t 3
01

7,
 if

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
, t

he
 lo

bb
yi

ng
 re

st
ric

tio
ns

 o
f 7

C
FR

 p
ar

t 3
01

8,
 a

nd
 F

N
S 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 in

st
ru

ct
io

ns
 a

nd
 sh

al
l 

pr
ov

id
e 

on
 a

 ti
m

el
y 

ba
si

s t
o 

th
e 

st
at

e 
ag

en
cy

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
fis

ca
l a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n.

Sp
ec

ia
l B

ill
in

g 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

:
1.

  D
ef

in
iti

on
s 

C
on

tr
ac

t P
er

io
d:

  J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
8-

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0

C
on

tr
ac

t B
ud

ge
t P

er
io

d:
  T

he
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
is

 b
ud

ge
te

d.

•
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

fo
ur

 fe
de

ra
l b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
ds

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

th
ro

ug
h 

Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

8;
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

8 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
9;

 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
01

9 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

pt
em

be
r 3

0,
 2

02
0;

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

02
0 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0.

2.
B

ill
in

g 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
a.

B
ill

in
gs

 a
re

 su
bm

itt
ed

 o
n 

an
 A

19
-1

A
 fo

rm
, w

hi
ch

 is
 c

od
ed

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 D
O

H
 p

rio
r t

o 
ea

ch
 fe

de
ra

l f
is

ca
l b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
d.

 S
ub

m
it 

su
m

m
ar

y 
le

ve
l f

in
an

ci
al

 d
at

a 
to

 
su

pp
or

t e
ac

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
ro

gr
am

 b
ill

in
g.

b.
A

19
-1

A
 fo

rm
s a

re
 su

bm
itt

ed
 m

on
th

ly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

cl
os

e 
of

 e
ac

h 
ca

le
nd

ar
 m

on
th

 o
r u

po
n 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 se

rv
ic

es
, b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

fe
de

ra
l c

on
tra

ct
 b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
d.

c.
Fu

nd
s a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

by
 b

ud
ge

t c
at

eg
or

ie
s (

re
fe

r t
o 

C
ha

rt 
of

 A
cc

ou
nt

s P
ro

gr
am

 n
am

es
) a

nd
 b

y 
st

at
e 

an
d 

fe
de

ra
l b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
ds

 (r
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
sh

ee
t).

d.
Ex

pe
ns

es
 a

re
 in

cu
rr

ed
 o

nl
y 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 p
er

io
d;

 n
o 

ca
rr

y 
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 p

re
vi

ou
s t

im
e 

pe
rio

ds
, o

r b
or

ro
w

in
g 

fr
om

 fu
tu

re
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
 is

 a
llo

w
ed

. A
dv

an
ce

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 

ar
e 

no
t a

llo
w

ed
.

e.
Pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r a
 b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
d 

ar
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
s a

llo
ca

te
d 

fo
r t

he
 b

ud
ge

t p
er

io
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

bu
dg

et
 c

at
eg

or
y.

f.
B

ill
in

gs
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 c

os
ts

, w
ith

 b
ac

k 
up

 d
oc

um
en

ta
tio

n 
re

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
LH

J a
nd

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
n 

by
 D

O
H

 o
r o

th
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

g.
Pa

ym
en

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

on
ly

 fo
r W

IC
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s. 

 R
ef

er
 to

 th
e 

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St
at

e 
W

IC
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
M

an
ua

l V
ol

um
e 

2,
 C

ha
pt

er
 4

 –
 

A
llo

w
ab

le
 C

os
ts

 a
nd

 2
 C

FR
 P

ar
t 2

00
 U

ni
fo

rm
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, C

os
t P

rin
ci

pl
es

, a
nd

 A
ud

it 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 fo
r F

ed
er

al
 A

w
ar

ds
.

Sp
ec

ia
l I

ns
tr

uc
tio

ns
:

Th
e 

LH
J s

ha
ll:

1)
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 a

cc
ur

at
e,

 a
nd

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

of
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l, 

st
at

e,
 a

nd
 fe

de
ra

l p
ro

gr
am

 fu
nd

s r
ec

ei
ve

d 
an

d 
ex

pe
nd

ed
.

2)
Pr

ov
id

e,
 a

s n
ec

es
sa

ry
, a

 si
ng

le
 a

ud
it 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f 2

 C
FR

 P
ar

t 2
00

 U
ni

fo
rm

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

, C
os

t P
rin

ci
pl

es
, a

nd
 A

ud
it 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
Fe

de
ra

l A
w

ar
ds

. T
hi

s c
irc

ul
ar

 re
qu

ire
s t

he
 L

H
J t

o 
ha

ve
 a

 si
ng

le
 a

ud
it 

pe
rf

or
m

ed
 sh

ou
ld

 L
H

J s
pe

nd
 $

75
0,

00
0 

or
 m

or
e 

of
 fe

de
ra

l g
ra

nt
s o

r a
w

ar
ds

 fr
om

 a
ll 

so
ur

ce
s. 

Th
e 

LH
J i

s 
a 

su
br

ec
ip

ie
nt

 o
f f

ed
er

al
 fu

nd
s.

3)
St

af
f m

us
t u

se
 B

re
as

tfe
ed

in
g 

Pe
er

 C
ou

ns
el

in
g 

(B
FP

C
) P

ro
gr

am
 fu

nd
s o

nl
y 

to
 su

pp
or

t t
he

 p
ee

r c
ou

ns
el

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

. O
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

pe
er

 c
ou

ns
el

or
s a

re
 

tra
in

ed
, t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 sa
la

ry
 c

os
ts

 m
us

t b
e 

pa
id

 to
 p

ee
r c

ou
ns

el
or

s t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

di
re

ct
 se

rv
ic

es
 to

 W
IC

 c
lie

nt
s. 

Fo
r a

 li
st

 o
f a

llo
w

ab
le

 c
os

ts
 se

e 
V

ol
um

e 
2,

 C
ha

pt
er

 4
 –

 
A

llo
w

ab
le

 C
os

ts
. T

he
 p

rio
rit

y 
us

e 
of

 B
FP

C
 fu

nd
s i

s t
o 

hi
re

 a
nd

 tr
ai

n 
pe

er
 c

ou
ns

el
or

s t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g 
pe

er
 c

ou
ns

el
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 W
IC

 c
lie

nt
s. 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

20
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
3 

of
 3

08



A
M

EN
D

M
EN

T 
#6

Ex
hi

bi
t A

, S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f W

or
k

Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 2

0
C

on
tra

ct
 N

um
be

r C
LH

18
24

5-
6

R
ev

is
ed

 a
s o

f N
ov

em
be

r 1
5,

 2
01

8

Sp
ec

ia
l R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

: 

C
on

tr
ac

t F
un

di
ng

 P
er

io
d

T
im

e 
Pe

ri
od

 S
pe

ci
al

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t 
Fu

nd
s A

va
ila

bl
e

A
m

ou
nt

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 S

pe
ci

al
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
t

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
18

-S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
8

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

- S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
9

$8
,1

00
A

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
U

SD
A

/W
IC

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t “

O
th

er
” 

ca
te

go
ry

 to
 fu

nd
 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

tra
ve

l e
xp

en
se

s f
or

 W
IC

 st
af

f t
o 

at
te

nd
 W

IC
-r

el
at

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s. 

Th
is

 d
oe

sn
’t 

in
cl

ud
e 

ou
t o

f s
ta

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s.

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

8-
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

9
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
8-

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
9

$8
,3

40
A

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
U

SD
A

/W
IC

 P
ro

gr
am

 M
an

ag
em

en
t “

O
th

er
” 

ca
te

go
ry

 to
 fu

nd
 

tra
in

in
g 

an
d 

tra
ve

l e
xp

en
se

s f
or

 W
IC

 st
af

f t
o 

at
te

nd
 W

IC
-r

el
at

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s a

nd
 

fo
r W

IC
 st

af
f s

al
ar

ie
s t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

lo
ca

l a
ge

nc
y 

pr
ov

id
ed

 W
IC

-r
el

at
ed

 
tra

in
in

gs
. T

hi
s d

oe
sn

’t 
in

cl
ud

e 
ou

t o
f s

ta
te

 tr
ai

ni
ng

s.
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

19
 –

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

01
9

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

 –
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 2
01

9
$3

,0
80

Ad
de

d 
in

 th
e 

20
16

 U
SD

A 
M

IS
 S

AM
 C

as
ca

de
s t

ec
h 

gr
an

t c
at

eg
or

y 
to

 fu
nd

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 tr

av
el

 e
xp

en
se

s f
or

 W
IC

 S
ta

ff 
to

 a
tte

nd
 C

as
ca

de
s t

ra
in

in
gs

.

O
th

er
 

A
ny

 p
ro

gr
am

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ot

 fo
llo

w
ed

 m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
co

rr
ec

tiv
e 

ac
tio

n,
 a

nd
 m

ay
 re

su
lt 

in
 m

on
et

ar
y 

fin
es

, r
ep

ay
m

en
t o

f f
un

ds
, o

r w
ith

ho
ld

in
g 

of
 C

on
tra

ct
 p

ay
m

en
t.

D
O

H
 P

ro
gr

am
 C

on
ta

ct
D

O
H

 F
is

ca
l C

on
ta

ct
K

at
hi

 L
Lo

yd
, H

SC
3 

So
ni

a 
Fe

rg
us

on
 H

SC
1

D
an

ie
lle

 V
an

D
er

ho
of

, F
is

ca
l A

na
ly

st
 H

SC
3

W
IC

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
Pr

og
ra

m
W

IC
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

PO
 B

ox
 4

78
86

, O
ly

m
pi

a,
 W

A
 9

85
04

-7
88

6
PO

 B
ox

 4
78

86
, O

ly
m

pi
a,

 W
A

 9
85

04
-7

88
6

K
at

hi
.L

Lo
yd

@
do

h.
w

a.
go

v 
So

ni
a.

Fe
rg

us
on

@
do

h.
w

a.
go

v
D

an
ie

lle
.V

an
D

er
ho

of
@

do
h.

w
a.

go
v

36
0-

23
6-

39
65

 o
r 1

-8
00

-8
41

-1
41

0 
x 

39
65

 3
60

-2
36

-3
81

6
36

0-
23

6-
36

76
 o

r 1
-8

00
-8

41
-1

41
0 

x 
36

76

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

21
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
4 

of
 3

08



Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

22
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
5 

of
 3

08



Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

23
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
6 

of
 3

08



Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

24
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
7 

of
 3

08



Agenda Item Page 25 of 27

Packet Page 258 of 308



Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

26
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

25
9 

of
 3

08



Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

27
 o

f 2
7

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

26
0 

of
 3

08



DEPARTMENT: NONE

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Julie Myers

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services Agreement

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)
Submitted for your approval is an agreement with the Dispute Resolution Center of Grays Harbor and Pacific 
Counties.  The agreement funds communication and skill building classes for youth and families impacted by 
mental illness and/or substance user disorders.  The services provided under this agreement have been 
identified by a steering committee in Grays Harbor working to develop a comprehensive system of care for 
youth and families affected by mental illness and/or substance use disorders.  Lack of education programs like 
this one has been identified as a barrier to the recovery and stability for area families. The agreement is for the 
period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.  The total amount of this agreement is up to $32,260 and is 
funded by Treatment Sales Tax dollars.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
$32,260.00/Treatment Sales Tax 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Please approve.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services...Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services...Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services...Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services...Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services...Dispute Resolution Center Professional Services... Agenda Item Page 1 of 13

Packet Page 261 of 308



DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

Agenda Item Page 2 of 13

Packet Page 262 of 308



Page 1 of 4 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Dispute Resolution Center 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  
 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered by and between Grays Harbor County, hereinafter referred to as 
"County," and Dispute Resolution Center of Grays Harbor and Pacific Counties, hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor,” to provide parent/child communication and skill building classes. 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor has the capability to provide parent/child communication and skill 
building classes using evidence based curricula; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is substantial need in the community for these services among youth and 
families served by the Juvenile Department, the local offices of the Division of Children and 
Family Services and area schools; and 
 
WHEREAS, these services have been identified as necessary by a local steering committee 
whose aim is to improve the system of care for youth and families impacted by mental illness and 
substance use disorders, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. GRANT.   
 
This agreement is in effect between January 1, 2019 and December 31, 2019.  Consideration 
payable to Contractor for satisfactory performance of the work under this Agreement includes 

 $340 per family that substantially completes the 2-day, 12 hour We’re In This Together 
(WITT) classes described in section 2 

 Each WITT serves up to 14 families 
 $3,700 for provision of each Washington State Aggression Replacement Training 

(WSART) class described in section 2 
 Each WSART class will serve 6-12 youth 
 The maximum consideration in this agreement is $32,260.  

The Contractor may bill County on a monthly basis following the delivery of services.  Payment 
will be subject to documentation of completion of the activities listed in section 2.  Monthly 
invoices shall be in a format approved by the County.  Invoices shall be sent to: 

 
Grays Harbor County Public Health and Social Services 

Fiscal Department,  
2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200 

Aberdeen, WA 98520 
 
2. USES OF FUNDS.  
 
The Contractor shall ensure that the youth or families participating in the classes funded by this 
agreement are affected by mental illness or substance use disorders.  The Contractor is 

Agenda Item Page 3 of 13

Packet Page 263 of 308



Page 2 of 4 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Dispute Resolution Center 

responsible for maintaining documentation establishing the service recipients’ eligibility.  The 
method of documenting this requirement is shown in Exhibit A. 
The contractor shall participate in the design of program evaluation procedures through meetings 
convened by the County of its designee, and shall report data related to program evaluation in a 
manner approved by the County. 
 
Contractor shall ensure funds are used for the following activities: 
 

Program or 
Service Description 

WITT programs 
following the 
curriculum shown 
in Exhibit B. 

Quantity:  Up to 6 (six), 12 hour classes conducted over 2 days 
Appropriate Referrals:  Youth served under this grant may come from any 
source; however youth referred by the Grays Harbor County Juvenile Department 
must be pre-screened using the Washington State Juvenile Court Assessment 
(short-form) tool and score in the “low risk to re-offend” range. 

WSART 
programs 
following the 
curriculum shown 
in Exhibit C. 

Quantity:  A minimum of 1 (one), 30 hour course conducted over 10 consecutive 
weeks 
Appropriate Referrals:  Youth served under this grant must be referred by the 
Grays Harbor County Juvenile Department or a Youth System of Care Partner 
Agency and must have either a Youth At Risk or Truancy petition before the 
court at the time of referral. 

 
3. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS.  The contractor shall participate in the design of 
program evaluation procedures through meetings convened by the County or its designee, and 
shall report data related to program evaluation in a manner approved by the County. 
 
4. ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS.  Contractor agrees to 
maintain books, records, documents and accounting procedures, and practices which accurately 
reflect the use of the funds provided under this Agreement.  Contractor shall retain all books, 
records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement for six (6) years after its 
expiration.  Contractor agrees that the County or its designee shall have full access and right to 
examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said period. 
 
5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Contractor, in performance of this Agreement, agrees 
to comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws or ordinances, including federal and 
state nondiscrimination statutes and regulations. 
 
6. INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  All services to be rendered or performed 
under this Agreement will be performed or rendered entirely at Contractor’s own risk and 
Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County and its departments, 
elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and volunteers,, from any and all liability, loss 
or damage that it may suffer as a result of claims, demands, actions, or damages to any and all 
persons or property, costs or judgments against the County which result from, arise out of, or are 
in any way connected with the services to be performed by Contractor under this Agreement.  

Agenda Item Page 4 of 13

Packet Page 264 of 308



Page 3 of 4 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Dispute Resolution Center 

Contractor agrees that all the Contractor’s indemnification obligations shall survive the 
completion, expiration, or termination of this Agreement. 
 
7.   INSURANCE.  Contractor shall carry at its own expense the following insurance 
coverage to the extent described below: 

 Commercial General Liability insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, for bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. 

 Professional Liability in the amount of $1,500,000 per occurrence. 
 Contractor shall procure policies for all insurance required by this section for a period of 

not less than one year and shall provide the County (on or before the date this Agreement 
commences) with a certificate of insurance as satisfactory evidence that the premiums 
have been paid and that such insurance policy is in effect.  The County shall be carried as 
a named insured on each insurance policy required by this section. 
 

Upon demand by the County, Contractor shall provide a complete copy of all policies for 
insurance required by this Agreement.  This requirement is supplementary to, but does not 
replace the requirement in this Agreement to provide the County with certificates of insurance as 
satisfactory evidence that the premiums have been paid and that such insurance policy is in 
effect. 
 
8. NOTICE.  Any official notice that either party hereto desires to give the other shall be 
deemed delivered upon deposit thereof in the United States mail by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, with postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 

COUNTY      CONTRACTOR  
Grays Harbor PHSS   Dispute Resolution Center GHPC 
2109 Sumner Ave. Suite 200   207 S. Chehalis Street #301 
Aberdeen, WA  98520   Aberdeen, WA 98520  
Attn:  Manager – Social Services   Attn:  Director 

       
The above addresses may be changed by either party by giving written notice to the other. 
 
9. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete 
expression of the terms hereto and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated 
herein are excluded.  Further, any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed 
by both parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Page 5 of 13

Packet Page 265 of 308



Page 4 of 4 
G:\Health\Health General\Contract Process\Social Services Contracts\Treatment Sales Tax 2019\Dispute Resolution Center 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be signed and attested to by 
the respective officers on the date indicated below. 
 
DATED: ________________, 2019 
 
 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENTER OF  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
GRAYS HARBOR/PACIFIC COUNTY  for Grays Harbor County 
 
 
                  
Director      Chair               
      
             
                      Commissioner 
 
ATTEST:            

Commissioner 
____________________________  
Jenna Amsbury, Clerk of the Board    

Agenda Item Page 6 of 13

Packet Page 266 of 308



    
 

Ver. 1 – 2017-5-2 

AGGRESSION REPLACEMENT TRAINING 
REFERRAL FORM – ALL OTHER 

 
REFERRAL DATE  

REFERRED FROM  

MENTAL HEALTH/ 
SUBSTANCE ABUSE 
IMPACT 

 
 Yes        No 

 

GRAYS HARBOR 
RESIDENT 

 
 Yes        No 

 

STATUS  Diversion        Status Offenders  Other: 

YOUTH INFORMATION 

YOUTH NAME  

DOB & GENDER  

CUSTODIAL PARENT/ 
GUARDIAN 

 

PARENT/ GUARDIAN INFORMATION 

PARENTS/GUARDIANS  

ADDRESS 
 
 
 

PHONE   

E-MAIL  

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF 
YOUTH’S 
CIRCUMSTANCES 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item Page 7 of 13

Packet Page 267 of 308



 

WITT Curriculum 
We’re in This Together (WITT) is a community program specifically designed for the purpose of restoring 
caring adult/child relationships for families in recovery from substance addiction.  Every WITT twelve-hour 
weekend session brings local Professionals and recovering families together for focused activities and open 
discussions to promote: 

1. Communication and listening 
2. Collaborative problem solving  
3. Conflict resolution and emotional regulation 
4. Realistic perceptions and expectations 

Day 1 Curriculum (6 hours) 
 Welcome, Logistics, Family Introductions 

 Appreciative inquiry: instructors model an appreciative introduction of a follow instructor;  
 And participants are asked to follow suit by introducing their child or caring adults offering 

something that they appreciate about him or her. 
 Ground rules are set by the families and instructors 
 Participants are introduced the four ‘participant roles’: vacationer, expert, prisoner and explorer. 
 Objective: Sets a positive tone for the program. 

 
 I Have a Story: 

 Active Listening: participants are asked a series of questions and asked to give their answers and 
in turn listen to a caring adult or child other than their own. 

 Objective: Caring adults and teens have an opportunity to talk to and listen to someone else’s 
caring adult or child.  

 
 Adult: Caring Adults Connection 

 Communication Skills: Caring adults gather with a family therapist to discuss issues and concerns. 
 Objective: Caring adults gain a sense that they are not alone. Caring adults can problem solve 

and gain perceptive from one another. 
 

 Teens: How I Identify Myself-My Purpose 
 Learning Common Grounds: Teens interact with each other in an activity that gets them up and 

moving and brings to light the ways they can identify with each other. 
 Teens write a collective essay about who they are and reveal essay to caring adults at the end of 

program. 
 Objective: Teen find common ground with other teens who share aspects of their own life 

experience; and teens have an opportunity to see past labels that they put on their selves as well 
as the labels others put on them. 

 
 Lunch 

 We provide lunch and eat together as a group. 
 Participants and Facilitators remain on campus. 

Agenda Item Page 8 of 13

Packet Page 268 of 308



Dispute Resolution Center: WITT Program 
May 23, 2017 
Page 2 

 Expressing Beliefs and Emotions: 
 Feelings: Learning how your feelings and emotions are your values and beliefs. 
 Lecture given by a qualified community member. 

 
 Name That Snowball  

 Identifying Issues: Teens and Caring adults write down answers to three questions posed by the 
instructor. After each round of questions, the participants crumple up their paper and throw it into a 
basket in the center of the circle. Each participant takes a crumpled answer (snowball) from the 
basket and reads it aloud to the group. 

 Objective: Movement after lunch and more opportunity to share and listen. 
 
 Announcement Regarding Tomorrow’s Assignment 

 Caring adults and Teens find a quote or song that is inspirational and meaningful to them and to 
bring them to the second session to be shared with the group. 

 
 Reality of Actions 

 Learning responsibility and accountability for the choices we make. 
 This is a lecture that relates to restorative justice and is facilitated by a local law enforcement officer 

 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Day 2 Curriculum (6 hours) 
 Welcome Back and Inspiration Hour: 

 Participants are provided mindfulness techniques and engage in exercises to assess own physical, 
emotional and psychological needs.  

 This activity helps participants gain skills and awareness on their own internal capacity.  
 

 Bingo….What are your strengths?  My Strengths! How can you help guide me? 
 Interactive Bingo game based on the 40 Developmental Assets 
 Caring adults and Teens conduct a 40 Developmental Asset assessment and discuss the results with 

the assistance of a coach trained in mediation.  
 

 Stop the Bullying-We are all important! 
 Led discussion to generate awareness:  expand the conversations about bullying. 
 Educate: What is Bullying? Who is a bully? What is Bullying behavior? What are the consequences for 

the victim and the bully? What are the ramifications of bullying on community and family? 
 Brainstorm solutions and share life experiences. 
 Objective: sharing becomes more honest and real. Participants begin to experience security in honest 

communication. 
 
 
 Lunch 

Agenda Item Page 9 of 13

Packet Page 269 of 308



Dispute Resolution Center: WITT Program 
May 23, 2017 
Page 3 

 We provide lunch and eat together as a group. 
 Participants and Facilitators remain on campus. 

 
 Work Together 

 Caring adults and teens work on a collaborative experience together. Facilitators debrief the activity.   
 The activity helps develop teamwork, cooperation and non-verbal communication skills.  

 
 I Have a Question? 

 How to construct a good, meaningful question? 
 Teens and Caring adults separate into different rooms. Leaders for each group help the participants 

to form questions that they really want to ask their caring adults and children but never have been 
able to find the right words. 

 Participants regroup, caring adults on one side and teens on the other, with chairs facing each other 
to ask the questions that they carefully crafted. 

 Teens and caring adults take turns to ask the questions and listen to the answers. 
 
 Closing…Graduation! 

A group celebration where both caring adults and teens receive certificates. 
 

 Evaluations 
 Caring adults and Teens fill out program/self-evaluations. 

 

 

Agenda Item Page 10 of 13

Packet Page 270 of 308



Copyright 2009 Christopher J. Hayes 

A Short Description of 
Washington State 

Aggression Replacement Training 
(WSART) 

 

Washington State Aggression Replacement Training (WSART) is a specific form of Aggression 
Replacement Training that is implemented statewide through our juvenile justice system.  As 
published by the Washington State Institute for Public Policy (WSIPP) the cost benefit ratio for WSART 
varies from $11.66 to $41.75 in reduced costs of future criminal behavior.  

WSART is a cognitive behavioral intervention consisting of three individual classes per week for ten 
weeks. The first class each week is Social Skills Training or Skillstreaming. Social Skills Training was 
originally developed by Dr. Arnold Goldstein in the 1970s. During each Social Skills Training class the 
participants learn an individual Social Skill which has defined Skill Steps. The class is designed to use a 
“Tell, Show, Do, Feedback” method of skill instruction. The Skill Trainers first describe the Social Skill 
and the Skill Steps (Tell). The Skill Trainers then Demonstrate the Social Skill using and adolescent 
situation (Show). The Skill Trainees each then Practice the Social Skill using a situation they could 
encounter the following week (Do). Following each Practice the practicing Trainee receives 
Performance Feedback from the group (Feedback).  Each Trainee is then assigned Homework and 
required to Practice the new Social Skill in a real life situation during the following week. After 
practicing the Social Skill the Trainee reports back to the group how well the Skill was implemented 
and the results of the real life Practice. 

Anger Control Training is the second component of WSART. It is a sequence of classes originally 
developed by Dr. Eva Feindler. The course teaches the Trainees that anger is a normal emotion. It 
emphasizes the development and maintenance of Personal Power through constructive anger 
management. The Anger Control Chain concepts  (Triggers, Body Signs, Anger Reducers, Reminders, 
Thinking Ahead, Social Skill and Self-Evaluation) are taught incrementally using the same Tell, Show, 
Do, Feedback techniques used in the Social Skills Training classes. Homework for this class is the 
Hassle Log which was developed by Dr. Feindler.  

Moral Reasoning is a structured discussion group developed by Dr. John C. Gibbs. It is founded on  the 
ideas of Piaget and Kohlberg and social learning theory. The Trainees are first taught four cognitive 
distortions or thinking errors commonly used by adolescents and others to justify anti-social 
behavior. During the group the Trainees discuss a moral reasoning dilemma. The dilemmas generally 
have a self-center individual who has created an issue for the central character. The development of 
Moral Maturity is encouraged through discussion between the more Mature Moral Reasoners and 
the less Mature Moral Reasoners. The Trainer’s function in this group is to orchestrate the discussion 
so the Less Mature Reasoners can understand the perspective of the More Mature Reasoners.  

Agenda Item Page 11 of 13

Packet Page 271 of 308



  

   W
SA

RT
 ta

rg
et

s 
yo

ut
h 

ag
es

 1
2 

– 
18

 y
ea

rs
 o

ld
 

w
ho

 e
xh

ib
it 

m
od

er
at

e 
to

 
hi

gh
 r

is
k 

of
 o

ff
en

di
ng

  

   
Lo

gi
c 

M
od

el
 c

re
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Ev

id
en

ce
-b

as
ed

 P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

In
te

rv
en

ti
on

 S
up

po
rt

 C
en

te
r 

(E
PI

SC
en

te
r)

 a
t P

en
n 

St
at

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
it

y.
 L

og
ic

 M
od

el
 

m
od

ifi
ed

 w
it

h 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 to
 fi

t t
he

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St
at

e 
M

od
el

 o
f A

R
T®

 a
nd

 C
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
ss

es
sm

en
t P

ro
ce

ss
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

           

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

St
at

e 
A

gg
re

ss
io

n 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 (W

SA
RT

) 
Pr

og
ra

m
 o

ri
gi

na
lly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
A

rn
ol

d 
P.

 G
ol

ds
te

in
, P

h.
D

., 
Sy

ra
cu

se
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

; B
ar

ry
 G

lic
k,

 P
h.

D
., 

N
ew

 Y
or

k 
St

at
e 

D
iv

is
io

n 
fo

r 
Yo

ut
h;

 
an

d 
 Jo

hn
 C

. G
ib

bs
 P

h.
D

., 
O

hi
o 

St
at

e 
U

ni
ve

rs
ity

; P
ro

gr
am

 fu
rt

he
r a

rt
ic

ul
at

ed
 a

nd
 re

se
ar

ch
ed

 in
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
St

at
e.

 

Ta
rg

et
s 

Pr
og

ra
m

 C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

Pr
ox

im
al

 O
ut

co
m

es
 

D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 
Co

nd
uc

t P
ro

bl
em

 
Be

ha
vi

or
s 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 P
ro

-
so

ci
al

 B
eh

av
io

r 

En
ha

nc
ed

 L
ev

el
s 

of
 M

or
al

 
Re

as
on

in
g 

D
is

ta
l O

ut
co

m
es

 

A
ng

er
 C

on
tr

ol
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
G

oa
l: 

 T
o 

te
ac

h 
yo

ut
h 

se
lf-

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
ng

er
 

So
ci

al
 S

ki
lls

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

G
oa

l: 
 T

o 
te

ac
h 

yo
ut

h 
a 

br
oa

d 
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

 o
f 

pr
os

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

r 

Re
du

ce
 C

ri
m

in
al

 
Be

ha
vi

or
 a

nd
 

Re
ci

di
vi

sm
 

M
or

al
 

Re
as

on
in

g 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

G
oa

l: 
 T

o 
ra

is
e 

yo
ut

h’
s 

le
ve

l o
f m

or
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 u
se

 o
f t

hi
nk

in
g 

er
ro

rs
 

In
cr

ea
se

  
In

-C
om

m
un

it
y 

Fu
nc

ti
on

in
g 

D
ec

re
as

e 
Ri

sk
 

Fa
ct

or
s  

In
cr

ea
se

 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
ve

 
Fa

ct
or

s 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 A
ng

er
 

Co
nt

ro
l 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 P
ro

-
So

ci
al

 B
eh

av
io

r 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

12
 o

f 1
3

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

27
2 

of
 3

08



  

 

Ri
sk

 F
ac

to
rs

: 
A

tt
it

ud
e 

&
 B

eh
av

io
rs

 
La

ck
 e

m
pa

th
y,

 r
es

pe
ct

 fo
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 , 
re

sp
ec

t f
or

 a
ut

ho
ri

ty
 

Be
lie

ve
s 

in
 a

nt
i  

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
r 

A
gg

re
ss

io
n Lo

w
 fr

us
tr

at
io

n 
to

le
ra

nc
e 

Be
lie

ve
s 

in
 v

er
ba

l a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
ag

gr
es

si
on

 

Sk
ill

s 
La

ck
s 

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
ia

l t
hi

nk
in

g 
Po

or
 P

ro
bl

em
 S

ol
vi

ng
 S

ki
lls

 
La

ck
s 

so
ci

al
 s

ki
lls

 
Po

or
 s

el
f-

m
on

it
or

in
g 

 

Pr
ot

ec
ti

ve
 F

ac
to

rs
: 

 A
tt

it
ud

e 
&

 B
eh

av
io

rs
 

H
as

 e
m

pa
th

y 
an

d 
re

m
or

se
 

Re
sp

ec
ts

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
&

 a
ut

ho
ri

ty
 

A
cc

ep
ts

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

Be
lie

ve
s 

in
 p

ro
-s

oc
ia

l 
co

nv
en

ti
on

s 
 A

gg
re

ss
io

n Ra
re

ly
 g

et
 u

ps
et

 o
ve

r s
m

al
l 

th
in

gs
 

Pr
im

ar
ily

 p
os

it
iv

e 
vi

ew
 o

f  
ot

he
rs

  
Be

lie
ve

s 
ve

rb
al

 a
nd

 p
hy

si
ca

l 
ag

gr
es

si
on

 a
re

 r
ar

el
y 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

Sk
ill

s 
G

oo
d 

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
ia

l t
hi

nk
in

g 
G

oo
d 

pr
ob

le
m

 s
ol

vi
ng

 s
ki

lls
 

D
em

on
st

ra
te

s 
go

od
 s

oc
ia

l s
ki

lls
 

M
on

it
or

 th
ou

gh
ts

 a
nd

 fe
el

in
gs

 

 

Re
du

ce
d 

Cr
im

in
al

 B
eh

av
io

r 
an

d 
Re

ci
di

vi
sm

 R
at

e:
 

 

Le
ss

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ar
re

st
ed

 
ag

ai
n 

Le
ss

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
om

m
it 

a 
fe

lo
ny

  
D

ec
re

as
e 

in
 c

on
du

ct
 

pr
ob

le
m

 b
eh

av
io

r  
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 In
-C

om
m

un
it

y 
Fu

nc
ti

on
in

g:
 

 

M
ea

su
re

d 
by

  i
nc

re
as

es
 in

 
ra

tin
gs

 in
 r

is
k/

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

t i
n 

a 
va

ri
et

y 
of

 
do

m
ai

ns
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

at
tit

ud
es

/b
eh

av
io

r,
 

ag
gr

es
si

on
, a

nd
 s

ki
lls

 
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 P
ro

-S
oc

ia
l 

Be
ha

vi
or

: 
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 p
ro

-s
oc

ia
l s

ki
ll 

co
m

pe
te

nc
y 

 
Re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 a

gg
re

ss
iv

e 
an

d 
de

lin
qu

en
t b

eh
av

io
r

 
 

 

D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 C
on

du
ct

 
Pr

ob
le

m
 B

eh
av

io
r:

 
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 
pr

o-
so

ci
al

 a
du

lts
 &

 p
ee

rs
 

p D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
an

d 
in

te
ns

ity
 in

 d
ai

ly
 a

ct
in

g 
ou

t b
eh

av
io

r i
nc

id
en

ts
 

o D
ec

re
as

e 
in

 im
pu

ls
iv

en
es

s 
D Yo

ut
h 

fe
el

s 
m

or
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

an
d 

in
 c

on
tr

ol
 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 P

ro
-S

oc
ia

l 
Be

ha
vi

or
: 

 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 

so
ci

al
 s

ki
lls

 
s M

or
e 

of
te

n 
ch

oo
se

s 
so

ci
al

 
sk

ill
 a

ft
er

 c
on

si
de

ri
ng

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e  
Im

pr
ov

ed
 A

ng
er

 C
on

tr
ol

: 
 

M
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 
an

ge
r 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
el

y 
a Le

ss
 li

ke
ly

 to
 a

ct
 o

ut
 a

ng
er

 
ag

gr
es

si
ve

ly
  

En
ha

nc
ed

 L
ev

el
s 

of
 M

or
al

 
Re

as
on

in
g:

 
 

M
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

m
or

al
  b

eh
av

io
r 

 
D

ec
re

as
e 

Le
ve

ls
 o

f 
Th

in
ki

ng
 E

rr
or

s:
 

 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 u

se
 o

f s
el

f 
ce

nt
er

ed
, a

ss
um

in
g 

th
e 

w
or

st
, b

la
m

in
g 

ot
he

rs
 , 

m
in

im
iz

in
g/

m
is

la
be

lin
g 

Pr
ox

im
al

 O
ut

co
m

es
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 o
ut

co
m

es
 th

at
 th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 im
pa

ct
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 fo
llo

w
in

g  
pr

og
ra

m
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n.

 

D
is

ta
l O

ut
co

m
es

 

O
ut

co
m

es
 im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 

m
on

th
s/

ye
ar

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
se

ar
ch

. 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 R
is

k 
an

d 
Pr

ot
ec

ti
ve

 
Fa

ct
or

s 
 

Ri
sk

 fa
ct

or
s,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
lik

el
ih

oo
d 

of
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 (e
.g

., 
dr

ug
 u

se
, d

el
in

qu
en

cy
, s

ch
oo

l 
dr

op
ou

t,
 te

en
 p

re
gn

an
cy

, a
nd

 v
io

le
nt

 
be

ha
vi

or
) a

re
 ta

rg
et

ed
 fo

r 
a 

de
cr

ea
se

.  
Pr

ot
ec

ti
ve

 fa
ct

or
s,

 w
hi

ch
 

ex
er

t 
a 

po
si

ti
ve

 in
flu

en
ce

 a
nd

 b
uf

fe
r 

ag
ai

ns
t n

eg
at

iv
e 

ou
tc

om
es

, a
re

 
ta

rg
et

ed
 fo

r 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

. 

Pr
og

ra
m

 M
od

al
it

ie
s 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

st
ra

te
gi

es
, 

m
et

ho
ds

, a
nd

 te
ch

ni
qu

es
 

ar
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

ac
co

m
pl

is
h 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 g
oa

ls
. 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

by
 y

ou
th

 

Ex
pe

rt
 

D
em

on
st

ra
tio

n 
of

 
us

e 
of

 s
oc

ia
l s

ki
ll 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 

 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

 
  

Id
en

tif
y 

tr
ig

ge
rs

 

G
ui

de
d 

M
or

al
 

di
le

m
m

as
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

Se
lf 

– 
Ev

al
ua

te
: 

Co
ac

h 
&

 R
ew

ar
d 

So
ci

al
 S

ki
lls

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

G
oa

l: 
 T

o 
te

ac
h 

yo
ut

h 
a 

br
oa

d 
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

 o
f 

pr
os

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

r 
(5

0-
sk

ill
 c

ur
ri

cu
lu

m
 o

f p
ro

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
or

s)
 

A
ng

er
 C

on
tr

ol
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
G

oa
l: 

 T
o 

te
ac

h 
yo

ut
h 

se
lf-

co
nt

ro
l o

f a
ng

er
 

 

M
or

al
 R

ea
so

ni
ng

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 

G
oa

l: 
 T

o 
ra

is
e 

yo
ut

h’
s 

le
ve

l o
f m

or
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
 id

en
ti

fy
 

th
in

ki
ng

 e
rr

or
s 

Tr
an

sf
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
(e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 p
ro

gr
am

) 

U
se

 re
m

in
de

rs
 

(C
hi

ll 
ou

t,
 e

tc
) 

U
se

 re
du

ce
rs

 (i
.e

. 
de

ep
 b

re
at

hi
ng

 
et

c.
)Id
en

tif
y 

bo
dy

 
si

gn
s 

U
se

  “
 IF

 - 
- .

 th
en

 
. .

 .”
  t

hi
nk

in
g 

 

U
se

 S
oc

ia
l S

ki
ll 

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 P

ag
e 

13
 o

f 1
3

Pa
ck

et
 P

ag
e 

27
3 

of
 3

08



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: Roads
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Interlocal Agreement

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Grays Harbor County and Pacific County have agreed to terms on an interlocal agreement for Grays Harbor 
County to provide snow removal on Pacific County’s portion of North River Road.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the interlocal agreement with Pacific County

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Interlocal Agreement with Pacific CountyInterlocal Agreement with Pacific County Agenda Item Page 1 of 17

Packet Page 274 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 17

Packet Page 275 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 17

Packet Page 276 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 17

Packet Page 277 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 17

Packet Page 278 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 17

Packet Page 279 of 308



Agenda Item Page 7 of 17

Packet Page 280 of 308



Agenda Item Page 8 of 17

Packet Page 281 of 308



Agenda Item Page 9 of 17

Packet Page 282 of 308



Agenda Item Page 10 of 17

Packet Page 283 of 308



Agenda Item Page 11 of 17

Packet Page 284 of 308



Agenda Item Page 12 of 17

Packet Page 285 of 308



Agenda Item Page 13 of 17

Packet Page 286 of 308



Agenda Item Page 14 of 17

Packet Page 287 of 308



Agenda Item Page 15 of 17

Packet Page 288 of 308



Agenda Item Page 16 of 17

Packet Page 289 of 308



Agenda Item Page 17 of 17

Packet Page 290 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Works

DIVISION: Roads
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Rob Wilson

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Ocean Beach Access Roads Maintenance Contract

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The GHC Roads Department and the Washington State Parks and Rec Commission have agreed on contract 
terms for the maintenance of the Ocean Beach Access Roads located in Grays Harbor County.  State Parks has 
agreed to pay up to $88,000 for costs incurred by the county to maintain the access roads for the 2 year period 
covered by the contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:
$88,000/2 years in revenue to the Road Fund to pay for maintenance costs.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the contract with Washington State Parks and Rec

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Ocean Beach Access Roads Maintenance ContractOcean Beach Access Roads Maintenance Contract Agenda Item Page 1 of 6

Packet Page 291 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 6

Packet Page 292 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 6

Packet Page 293 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 6

Packet Page 294 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 6

Packet Page 295 of 308



Agenda Item Page 6 of 6

Packet Page 296 of 308



PURCHASE REQUEST

DEPARTMENT: SOLID WASTE / UTILITIES
Date: 02/05/2019
Item to be purchased: Back Up Power Generator

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST
The department requests authorization to purchase a back up power generator for Seaview 
Estates, which is a part of our North Beach Water System. We find this to be a necessary 
purchase, as the last power outage resulted in bad water quality in the area. This expenditure is 
included in the 2019 budget. 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION
Budget information:      General Fund             Miscellaneous Fund:          
Amount of request: Approximately $9,590.00 + WSST 
Funding Source (grant, fees, etc.): North Beach Water Fund # 406.000.000
Will this require a supplemental or emergency budget?          YES           NO      Click 
here to enter text.            
Process used to acquire the item: (bid, state contract, vendor list, quotes, etc.)
 Estimate                                                          
Other information:  N/A

SIGNITURES/APPROVAL
Elected Official/ Department Administrator Signature:

Date:

Grays Harbor County Commissioner Approval: 

Commissioner Wes Cormier 

Commissioner Randy Ross

Commissioner Vickie L. Raines 

Attest: Date:

Was the Contract reviewed by the Prosecutor’s Office? (if applicable- if a contract or lease is included)   

      ☐     YES                 NO        Signature of Deputy Prosecuting Attorney:

Was the agenda item reviewed by the Budget Director?  (req. for all purchases)   

           YES           ☐      NO        Signature of Budget Director:

Was the agenda item reviewed by Central Services?  (req. for technology purchases)   

           YES           ☐      NO        Signature of Central Services Director:

Emergency Resolution - Authorization to Purchase Back...Emergency Resolution - Authorization to Purchase Back... Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 297 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 298 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Public Services

DIVISION: 
Solid Waste / Utilities & Development
SUBMITTER:  Maggie McDougall for Mark Cox

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Right Of Entry for Survey and Evaluation

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

The department requests the Chair of the Board to sign the Right of Entry, which will allow the County 
to perform a survey for the Copalis Beach Water System. The Right of Entry shall become effective on 
the date of signing and shall expire May 31, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

North Beach Water System 406.000.000

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
The department recommends the Chair of the Board to sign the Right of Entry.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Right Of Entry for Survey and EvaluationRight Of Entry for Survey and Evaluation Agenda Item Page 1 of 3

Packet Page 299 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 3

Packet Page 300 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 3

Packet Page 301 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Sheriff

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Ranee Farmer

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Resolution

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

To increase the amount of the Sheriff’s Office Change Fund and changing the fund custodian to the current 
elected or appointed Sheriff.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign attached Resolution.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

ResolutionResolution Agenda Item Page 1 of 2

Packet Page 302 of 308



Resolution No. 2019-_________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2019-________

A RESOLUTION of the Grays Harbor County Board of 
Commissioners amending Resolution No. 01-49 and Resolution 
No. 2014-101, increasing the amount of the Sheriff’s Office 
Change Fund and changing the fund custodian to the current 
elected or appointed Sheriff

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 01-49 established a change fund within the Grays Harbor 
County Sheriff’s Office in the amount of $200 and designated a change fund custodian; and

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2014-101 amended Resolution No. 01-49, changing the 
designated fund custodian to the current County Sheriff by name; and

WHEREAS, the designated fund custodian should be changed to reflect the current 
elected or appointed Sheriff; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to increase the change fund from $200 to $500,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners 
that Resolution No. 01-49 and Resolution No. 2014-101 shall be amended the change the fund 
custodian to “the current elected or appointed Sheriff” and to increase the change fund amount 
from $200 to $500.

ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________________, 2019.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

____________________________________
Randy Ross, Chair, Commissioner

____________________________________
Wes Cormier, Commissioner

____________________________________
Vickie L. Raines, Commissioner

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

__________________________ ____________________________
Jenna Amsbury Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Clerk of the Board

Agenda Item Page 2 of 2

Packet Page 303 of 308



DEPARTMENT: Treasurer

DIVISION: 
(if applicable)
SUBMITTER:  Ken Albert

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:  Cancellation of personal property taxes

EXPLANATION OF REQUEST: (include dates, important information and summary)

Approve submitted list to cancel Personal Property taxes deemed uncollectable.  Approve Resolution to cancel 
same taxes.

FISCAL IMPACT/FUNDING SOURCE:

None

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Approve cancellation.

    

[BELOW TO BE COMPLETED BY CLERK OF BOARD]
BOCC ACTION:

APPROVED
DENIED
TABLED/DEFERRED/NO ACTION TAKEN
CONTINUED  TO  DATE: _____/_____/_____ TIME: ____________
OTHER___________________________

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA COVER SHEET

MEETING DATE
2/5/2019 1:00:00 PM

Cancellation of personal property taxesCancellation of personal property taxes Agenda Item Page 1 of 5

Packet Page 304 of 308



Agenda Item Page 2 of 5

Packet Page 305 of 308



Agenda Item Page 3 of 5

Packet Page 306 of 308



Agenda Item Page 4 of 5

Packet Page 307 of 308



Agenda Item Page 5 of 5

Packet Page 308 of 308


